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This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on the Company’s website at
www.yff.com (the “Company Website”).

Shareholders who have chosen or have been deemed consented to receive the corporate
communications of the Company (the “Corporate Communications”) via the Company Website
and who for any reason have difficulty in receiving or gaining access to the annual report posted on
the Company Website will promptly upon request be sent the annual report in printed form free of
charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of the means of receipt (either in printed form or
via the Company Website) of Corporate Communications.

Shareholders may send their request to receive the annual report in printed form, and/or to change
their choice of the means of receipt of Corporate Communications by notice in writing to the share
registrar of the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by sending an email to the share
registrar of the Company at yunfeng.ecom@computershare.com.hk.

REEREND  EXAEEBHRA QAR Ewww.yff.com ((RATHFHU]) -

CEEFWEREAZEBARRAFWEWHAQXANA BN (RRERD WRER - MEEMEHERERET
BAARRARUBBENFERSETARE  A2RHUER YU VAR EERENFERENVERIA o

PR 3R B B BB D U BN A R RRAY 5 SRV IR 12 (BNIREN 2 @RV ENRI AR » SBEBA A R A UL EUS A REH) o
BRRAUEABAARANROGBFECR BEEPRESBLARQAA  WURBFBEFERRER

1833 & M A L17MIE » S A EBE AN A HI AR 1238 F &5 R (8 B ith it Byunfeng.ecom@computershare.
com.hk) IR HWEAFEREEDRANESR > kK LERKBDRABAHAR o




Corporate Information

RAER

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN W R DM

Independent Actuaries Report on Review of Embedded Value Information
NEBEEFEEEMNBEIBEMBRE

Embedded Value

WEEE

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERENEBAEER

Corporate Governance Report

TEERRSE

Report of the Directors

EEgRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE HEREARRE

Independent Auditor’s Report

B2 B AR

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

maWER

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FmeakzEkEMEZEKER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEmBRRE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEZREHR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
RERERER

Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR MY A

Five Year Financial Summary

hFEKEE

Definitions
B

ERSREBERLR
—E=FFR

Contents
B &%

Pages
=§/:3

29
31
40
45
64
88
123
135
137
139
141
143
145
385

387



Corporate Information
NEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chairman

Mr. Yu Feng (Non-Executive Director)
Executive Directors

Mr. Fang Lin (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Xin

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Michael James O’Connor
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Qi Daging
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard
Mr. Xiao Feng

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard (Chairman)
Mr. Qi Daging
Mr. Xiao Feng

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Qi Daqing (Chairman)
Mr. Huang Xin

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard
Mr. Xiao Feng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yu Feng (Chairman)
Mr. Qi Daging
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Fang Lin
Mr. Chan Man Ko

EEg
£

RERE (FHTEE)
BITES

FBHREE (7THAE#)
EERE

FHTES

Michael

James O’Connorst 4

BE L
BAFHTES
BmRE L
RRFRE

HE L%
EREEE
KRRFRE (ZE)
BEREE
HETE
yWEEE
BREBLEE (LE)
BEELE
RRFRE
HELE
REEEE
E#ERE (ZE)
BEREE
RRFRE
RERR

FHEE
BRI & &

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2023



COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Man Ko
AUDITOR

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance
with the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council
Ordinance

BANKERS

Bank of Communications

China Construction Bank (Asia)

Bank of China (Hong Kong)

China Minsheng Banking Corporation Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited

REGISTERED AND PRINCIPAL OFFICE

Rooms 1803-1806

18th Floor, YF Life Centre

38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716,

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

WEBSITE
www.yff.com
STOCK CODE

376

ERSRERERAT
ZET=FFHR

Corporate Information
NAEEH

DNEWE
BRI & L%
3 401

EEHERAMEHT

HIESETA

RB(ET RV BERBERG) T HEM 2
DNRANEERZHE

FEERBRIT

RBHRAT

B 32 AR SR AT (2=M)
HERIT (B 8)

PR RART
ELRIT

AMEEEREE
&g
B {7 & L TiE385:

BEiBERB 01842
1803-1806%

RHBFETLE
ERTRESBRARAT
T

2 5 AER183%

&M
17#81712-1716 F

8k
www.yff.com
IR AR

376



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

OVERVIEW

During the Year, the high interest rate environment
severely dampened the overall investment climate in
Hong Kong’s capital market. In view of the challenges
and opportunities during the economic recovery, the
Group implemented its business plan in an effective
manner, while actively seeking suitable business
opportunity under the current market conditions
to expand source of revenue and enhance the
Shareholders’ value.

The Group’s main sources of revenue include life
insurance premium income and other financial
businesses including subscription fees and management
fees for products launched by the Group, platform fees
for distribution of third-parties products, administration
fee for employees stock ownership plan management
services and brokerage commission income etc. There
is no material change in the Group’s core business
activities compared to that of year 2022.

For the Year, the Group adopted the new accounting
standard HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts to present
consolidated financial statements in accordance with
the related requirements with Prior Period comparatives
restated. The adoption of HKFRS 17 is an accounting
change with no impact on the underlying economics of
our business. With the accounting change for the Year,
the Group’s insurance revenue amounted to HK$2,625
million, representing an increase of 7% compared to
that of HK$2,447 million for year 2022. The Group’s
consolidated profit amounted to HK$713 million
compared to consolidated loss of HK$664 million (as
restated) for the year 2022. The net profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company amounted to
HK$397 million compared to a net loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company of HK$643
million (as restated) for the year 2022. The net profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the Period was mainly due to the fair value loss of the
Group’s investments having significantly decreased as
compared to the same period last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFNWR DN

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS
REVIEW

REUBRR

FEEFRAERMBRENOT :
REMBRRESN
BE+-A=+—HULFE BBEET

The financial highlights of the Group were as follows:
Consolidated financial result analysis

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

2023 2022 Change %
—E-= = 1%
(restated)
(Eit)
Income ' ON
Net operating income FEEWA 991 850 17
Net profit/(loss) attributable BEAEGER (EE)
to the owners FEE 397 (643) N/AT 38 F
Basic earnings/(loss) per BREXBF(EE)
share (HK$) (Note 1) (Br) (KraE1) 0.10 (0.17) N/AT i A
Final dividend proposed per ERoRKRBEREE
share - - N/ATiE A
At 31 December, HK$ million R+=-—HFA=+—H BEET
2023 2022 Change %
—B-=F% B #1£%
(restated)
(Et)
Total assets EEME 90,149 81,769 10
Total equity FERBEE 16,405 16,262 1
Owner’s equity EE AR 11,003 11,007 -
Owner’s equity per share (HK$) HEEASKREZ GBT)
(Note 2) (Mtzz2) 2.85 2.85 -
Note 1: The denominator is weighted average number of RaET PEABRANTLBEROMETEEE

ordinary shares of the Company.

Note 2: The denominator is total issued shares as of 31
December of the respective years.

ERSRERERAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS

REVIEW (Continued)

Consolidated financial result analysis (Continued)

Analysis on profit for the year, HK$ million

REMBRE (&)

REMBRRON (&
rEEBATH - BEET

2023 2022 Change %
—=E-= —E-= #1t%
(restated)
(But)
YF Life segment net EBRBOMFEERA
operating income 1,036 970 7
Other financial services Hih&®MBRENA A
and corporate segment DI EE B
operating loss (45) (120) (62)
Net operating income FEEWA 991 850 17
Adjust for the following profit or FAEBLUTEZREHA
loss and expenses impact: ga .
— Short-term fluctuations — RS TEAERA WY
in investment returns, HRERLR -ERR
exchange fluctuation and BRI EME K E
discount rate related to
insurance business (129) (952) (86)
— Investment return related — B H & B AR E K

to other financial service MHENZRER IR

business (101) (305) (67)
— Staff share award —BIRHMERBE

amortisation reversal #iEE o 2 - N/A &
- Finance costs (Note 2) —BE A (Hat2) (183) (143) 26
- Other items (Note 3) —HMIE R (#ZF3) 64 41)  NATEHR
- Consolidation adjustments — G OtAE (faF4)

(Note 4) 69 (71) NAFTEHA
Profit/(loss) for the year EFEEEF(FHIR) 713 (664) N/A TEHA
Less: non-controlling interests & - JE1Z IR AE (316) 21 N/A &
Net profit/(loss) attributable to & A EAGER (BiE)

the owners FEE 397 (643) N/A R~EH

Note 1: For detailed analysis related to YF Life segment net Kiatt - EEEBRESY ZELEX WAL ABEF
operating income and related adjustment, please refer BWHMON E2HEREBELITE
to key financial data of insurance business segment EHEEIEI D o
section.

Note 2: The amount includes bank interest expenses and other Ktato : HEHEEAEREBEREMEELRE
finance expenses incurred for the capital required in TR THNEERMEMEIEER -
the Group’s strategic investment.

Note 3: Those items including costs of group restructuring KiFE3 : EHEERAEEBIEEUFERENETT
and special projects considered by management MEPLEEWANER SLEEEESE
which should be separately disclose to enable better EEARSHKER KA -
understanding of net operating income.

Note 4: The consolidation adjustments represent the financial Hiata : EHARIESHERREELENIIEHE -
impact arising from the consolidation of YF Life.

Note 5: Comparative figures are restated due to adoption of Kizt5: It FTEER(E BB HEER)E

HKFRS 17.

173 MEML ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS HREMBRE (&)
REVIEW (Continued)
Changes in owner’s equity BEAEZEH
HK$ million BEEETT
2023 2022
—E-= —E=-=
Balance at 1 January (as previously — B —HZ&8%E

reported) (AT ER I ¥R & %8) 14,794 19,891
Adoption of new accounting standard KAFEER (fE)

(note) 1,468 (2,777)
Balance at 1 January (as restated) —A— B 28R (Eik) 16,262 17,114
Share based payment transaction URGOERAZEERNRS (2) -
Profit/(loss) for the year REERR, (FE) 713 (664)
Other comprehensive income Hfth 2wk & (568) (188)
Balance at 31 December +ZRA=1+—HZ&8% 16,405 16,262
Attributable to: FEfL s
- equity shareholders of the Company - AN RERRR 11,003 11,007
- non-controlling interests —FEERES 5,402 5,255
Total equity ERBE 16,405 16,262
Note: The Group has adopted HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts KiF - REBCR-ZE=-=F—F—BEEHAEB

from 1 January 2023. Accordingly, there are changes in
carrying value of insurance contract liabilities and assets,
reinsurance assets, other related assets and liabilities and
certain financial assets after redesignation, which lead to

BRBEEAEITRRESAH] - At &
BEREENEE BREEE HMHERBE
EMNEEURENEERNELEREEN
REEERLESL ERLAEENERERE

the increase of overall net asset value of the Group. FREEM
INSURANCE BUSINESS REVIEW RIS EE

To facilitate a more thorough and comprehensive review
of the insurance business, YF Life, the related financial
data excludes the fair value accounting adjustments
made on the acquisition. Management considers the full
year operation and financial data excluding fair value
accounting adjustments made on YF Life acquisition and
intragroup transaction elimination with other business
segment of the Group is able to provide reader with
more relevant information on the business performance
of the insurance business segment operating results.

AEREREMEZEBERREEL (A8
BRE)  HBEMBEERTREWRBETH
AARBEESTAE -EEERS  TEHK
BEERBURRSEEEMER D HHEH
WERXZEFEETHNAABESHRAENR
FEBRMBENERVBRECHERM
FERBER I MBEBRREANERIER -

EESREBEERAR
—E=FER 7



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

OVERVIEW

During the year 2023, our insurance business remained
as authorised insurer licensed to carry on life and
annuity, linked long term, permanent health, and
retirement scheme management long term insurance
businesses in Hong Kong. It also operates in Macao
through a branch office and is licensed to sell life
insurance products in Macao.

Our insurance business division maintained a
diversified product suite which includes following
flagship products: (i) the “FLEXI-ULife Prime Saver”,
an enhanced universal life insurance plan; (i) the “MY
Flexi Lifetime Annuity”, a plan providing guaranteed
lifetime annuity income to act as a safety net during
the customer’s retirement; (iii) the “Infinity Saver 3”7, a
flexible insurance savings plan allowing customers to
accumulate capital with potentially higher return; and
(iv) the “PrimeHealth” series which are critical illness
products covering a wide range of illnesses.

As of 31 December 2023, the tied agency force
consisted of approximately 3,050 (2022: 3,204) agents
in Hong Kong and Macao. In addition to the tied agency
force, we also utilise brokers and agency intermediaries
as well as banks and other financial institutions to
distribute insurance products. The insurance business
division has approximately 518 (2022: 511) employees
and more than 536,000 (2022: 529,000) in-force
individual policies.

During the year 2023, our insurance division maximised
the opportunities arising from the full reopening of the
borders between mainland China and Hong Kong and
Macao to grow its Mainland Chinese Visitor (MCV)
business across all distribution channels. We continue
to develop and grow our tied agency to increase
penetration in market while also seeking to expand our
brokerage and agency intermediary distribution channel
to serve sophisticated customers who we believe
are more receptive to independent advice. For our
bancassurance distribution channel, while reinforcing
our existing partnership relationships with banks, we
also strive to explore new partnerships with fintech
companies to tap into the online customer segment.

Our insurance division continues to innovate and
introduce new savings, medical and annuity products
targeted at our key customer segments to support the
company’s continued business growth and channel
development. Furthermore, we dedicate our resources
to promoting our brand through various means to
increase our brand exposure and awareness both online
and offline. Technology empowerment remains one of
the Company’s core values. We are introducing new
features to our sales and customer platforms to enhance
sales efficiency and provide a seamless experience for
our customers.

M=

R=Z=Z=F HEREXEHE  KMANHA
EREEEENESRNTFER EEXAR
%@~ﬁﬂ&&ﬁ@&L%?%*ﬁ§%ﬁ
PRk o AREEBEEB O X HBERFE
VEEERFIEEASREBER °

PN RREBIBEESTILNERRY
BRETIEEER ((BEEBETERASRS
2 SR-MEEREEASKAE (/B
ZARBFEE ER—EATFPERABEERE
HEBORGES WA (iii) [ & 5 B &
HETES ER—ARKESEEL RN
ZRMERRBREEBSE RiVVEERERRE
zﬁ? E—EBEEZERBNBERRARE
BRI

v

BE-_ZE-_=F+=-B=+—8" ﬁzdtﬁ
EEBNBEMAYAESGE(ZE==

3,20418) - BR T BRRE - %ﬂaﬁ’ﬁfzﬂﬁﬁi‘“
£AFRIE RN LR IT A E th & B gk
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FE-ZF :511F8) ET MHE1B536,00018 (=
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Hh’ﬁﬁ‘ ERBERAELCMRERN 2 8H
uWﬁﬁﬁ  RERNEZBE YRR
Mmm%ﬁ ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
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Management Discussion and Analysis

NON HKFRS SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

Total Premium and Fee Income

Total premium and fee income (“TPI”) measures its
business volume by referring to the TPI reported under
the Insurance Ordinance (Cap. 41 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“10”). TPI consists of full amount of single
premium, first year regular premium and renewal regular
premium before reinsurance and includes deposits and
contributions for contracts. In preparing the financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), insurance revenue
represents the changes in the liabilities for remaining
coverage that relate to services for which the Group
expects to receive consideration and an allocation of
premiums that relate to recovering insurance acquisition
cash flows excluding all investment components like
deposits and contributions. Therefore, the insurance
revenue recognised in the financial statements prepared
under HKFRS is less than TPI.

EEENWEDN

E%Eﬁ%#&%ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁl\ﬂ’ﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁ%%

/0N

REMEABARE

RERERRARERBSE(RRERM)
(BBEPFEMNE) ([REEMRAG D) RE R
BENEBEABARERGEHXKE -RER
BERAWANREEEBRZANENREREE
EFHARENERNURE  REERE
MEENHR - RB(BEEYBHREED) R
o B 7 R R B 0 AR B WL A 8 B AR R B TR A
WEHENRESENAIFEEEENE
BUREARDREERNREESREMEENRE
DHEE TEEMERERD (HIWEFRMHE
) o Bk RIE(H BB ®REER) R H
M BREPEINRBRABCRRERE
LN Y-

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+t—BHLFE

2023 2022 Change %
—E-= —=E- 1%
HK$ million HK$ million
HEET B &E T
Total premium and fee income  1RIBRBEKFIREN
reported under |0 RERBRABALE 11,923 11,446 4

Management considers TPl as one of the important
measures of the Group’s operating performance and
believes that they are frequently used by analysts,
investors and other interested parties in the evaluation
of insurance companies. The management also uses
TPl as additional measurement tools for the purposes
of business decision-making. TPl is not measures of
operating performance under HKFRS and should not
be considered as a substitute for, or superior to, profit
before tax in accordance with HKFRS.

ERSREBERLR
—E=FFR

EEERARENEARABERAEEE
LEBENERER 2 MERBIME
REERAMBERL AT ERREQFFER
ERZER EEEEFRAREREAKRA
MEBEREBREENZMMITETAR - R
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BUAFEEXENESR T AERERLBH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

BUSINESS VOLUME XBE

The tables below set forth the TPl of the Insurance TRERADBLHIZHIEET » ()2 HEE
business by (i) geographical region, (ii) distribution BEMNERBEESINTREEXEENRERE
channel and (iii) product type based on internal records. =1 N E-

(i) By geographical region

() ®EESE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—E=-= —E=-=
HK$ million % HK$ million %
BEETT BEET
Hong Kong &8 7,969 67 6,978 61
Macao B FS 3,954 33 4,468 39
11,923 100 11,446 100

(ii) By distribution channel

(i) BoERE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-BL%E

2023 2022
—EC-Z=E —EC-CE
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Hong Kong Macao Total Hong Kong Macao Total
& ! Bt E ! &%
Tied agency BEAE 4,721 1,252 5,979 4,736 1,256 5,992
Brokers and FEE PN
non-tied agency FERKE 2,632 1,405 4,037 1,643 1,114 2,757
Banks and other RITMEA
financial SRIEE
institutions 610 1,297 1,907 599 2,098 2,697
7,969 3,954 11,923 6,978 4,468 11,446

10
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS VOLUME (Continued)

(iii) By product type

EEENWEDN

E$S-¢-))
(iii) ZRERER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-BL%E

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-CF
HKS$ million HK$ million
EEET BEET
Hong Kong Macao Total Hong Kong Macao Total
i R At i RP CH
Regular premium HARE
- First year -8 1,777 583 2,360 748 1,619 2,367
Regular premium HARE
- Renewal —EH 5,727 3,319 9,046 5,803 2,740 8,543
Single premium EHRE 462 48 510 424 106 530
Fee income ERKBA 3 4 7 3 3 6
7,969 3,954 11,923 6,978 4,468 11,446
EMBEDDED VALUE AND VALUE OF NEW RNEBENTEKEEE

BUSINESS

The Embedded Value method is a commonly adopted
alternative method of measuring the value and
profitability of a life insurance company. Embedded
Value is an actuarially determined estimate of the
economic value of a life insurance business based on
a particular set of assumptions as to future experience,
excluding any economic value attributable to future
new business. Value of New Business represents an
actuarially determined estimate of the economic value
arising from new life insurance business issued in the
relevant 12-month period.

We adopted a traditional deterministic discounted
cash flow methodology to determine the components
of embedded value. This methodology makes implicit
allowance for the time value of options and guarantees
and other risks associated with the realisation of the
expected future distributable earnings through the use
of a risk adjusted discount rate and is consistent with
the industry practice in the market.

ERSRERERAT
ZET=FFHR

NEBEERFTEASRRBLAREBEEMAETR
REINERERST Z RSEERERY XK
RERN-—ABERRNVNBEEBRENASR
PREBNEEEE TSRRMEBNEM
KEEBE HEBREERETHERBI12EAH
BRABTHHIASRBEEEENEEEE
B EBEMET

EMRAESNEELERRERNEBERTE
WEEBENARSD - ZA EEBERRR
ABRUERR . fHENERNEBEAENURK
B AT R 3R AT o B Wk a5 AR B 9 H At &L B 5t
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

EMBEDDED VALUE AND VALUE OF NEW
BUSINESS (Continued)

The embedded value of the insurance business as at
31 December 2023 is HK$20,718 million (31 December
2022: HK$20,587 million) with breakdown as below.

HK$ million

31 December

NEBEMMEBEE @)

NR-ZZBE-=F+=ZA=+—8 RBELEN
ANEEBEB20718E8B T (ZE==_F+=
A=4+—R 2058788 x)  FH1BWT °
BEEET

31 December

2023 2022 Change %
—E-= —E-CE
TZA=t-A ftZA=t-H 2%
Adjusted Net Worth (“ANW”) (note 1) R TZE (f12E1) 10,108 8,942 13
Value of in-force (“VIF”) business after BXEBMBRE R K2 %

cost of capital (note 2) HEE (HF2) 10,610 11,645 (9)

Embedded value NEEBE 20,718 20,587 1
Note 1: The ANW represents the net asset value on Hong Kong Hatt : KARFEIETEEBELITEEZFNEE

statutory basis, with marked-to-market adjustment
to certain assets. The ANW change is mainly due to
the decrease in liabilities as a result of rising market
interest rate.

Note 2: The VIF is the present value of future estimated
after-tax statutory profits from in-force business,
discounted at the risk discount rate. The VIF drop is
mainly due to the decrease in liabilities mentioned
in Note 1, which implies less reserve release in the
future, and updates of some operating assumptions.

The new business value of the insurance business for
the year ended 31 December 2023 is HK$1,009 million
compared to that of HK$758 million as of the same
period last year.

For further detailed discussion of embedded value and

new business value of insurance business, please refer
to the Embedded Value section.

12
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEY FINANCIAL DATA OF INSURANCE
BUSINESS SEGMENT

The key financial data of insurance segment is
presented under HKFRS on a full year basis before
any fair value adjustment arising from the acquisition
accounting policy and intra-group transaction
eliminations except for those where other basis and
consideration are stated:

EEENWEDN

REXBIVBETEVHERE

R R E R H AR 5 A Z B A AR5 & RO
REIBHNEZMBERERBB ST BEE
MEERNEFEEENEMXAEBERHENR
B(ERBUMBREENZEZFEI®K -

2023 2022 Change %
—E-= —E-= 1%
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BHEET
(restated)
(Fik)
Insurance revenue (note a) REEW A (Bita) 2,627 2,448 7
Insurance service expenses RESRISE R (#aEb)
(note b) (2,054) (2,003) 3
Net expenses from reinsurance HBRBARELEN
contracts B HFE (26) (5) 4 times &
Insurance service result (note c) 1R R EE (fitc) 547 440 24
Investment return B & B H 3,133 36 86 times 13
Net finance expenses from RBEERELENTKE
insurance contracts (note d) BE5 (fEd) (2,294) (200) 10 times 1&
Net finance income from BREEREEENEE
reinsurance contracts (note d) W A SFEE (B EFa) 85 126 (33)
Movement in investment RESCEAABED
contract liability (208) (221) (6)
Net financial result B EE R 716 (259)  N/A 1@
Revenue from investment RESHERBE WA
management services and FIE MU A
other income 89 87 2
Other operating expenses HhE&EEH
(note e) (Ktite) (274) (217) 26
Profit before taxation BR B A& R 1,078 51 20 times 1&
Taxation Fi1E (105) (48) 1 time &
Profit after taxation PR3 &% A 973 3 323 times fZ
Note a: The amount reflects the consideration which the Hizta : ZEERM TR ATTEHERBIBIR
insurer expects to be entitled for the service provided AR FEFTBEEL A UK A ©
on an earned basis.
BHEBEBERAT
—E=FFR 13



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFNWR DN

KEY FINANCIAL DATA OF INSURANCE
BUSINESS SEGMENT (Continued)

Note b:

Note c:

Note d:

Note e:

The amount reflects service expenses arising from
insurance contracts issued by the Group including
incurred claims and other expenses.

The balance represents the net result of insurance
revenue, insurance service expenses and net expense/
income from reinsurance contract, which comprised
of contractual service margin release and fulfiiment
cashflow variance as explained in more details under
insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract
assets section.

The amount reflects change in carrying amount of
insurance and reinsurance contracts arising from effect
of change in discount rates and financial risks.

The amount represents operating expenses for
supporting MPF business, back office supporting
function, investment contract operation etc.

NET OPERATING INCOME

For management decision making and internal
performance management purpose, the Group refers
to the net operating income (“NOI”) representing profit
generate from core business activities for the Year
increase by 7% to HK$1,036 million.

REEXEBSBETEMBEE @)

Hiitb: ZEBRRRTAEEZZNRMBSEFT
EENBRBER BRCBEERNE
M o

Hatc : ZHRBARBURA REBRBEANE
REBEREENER WAFE b
BECERBEENBHENBARER
MER Z2RRBEEEENERRS
BEEMBOPHOFAHA -

Witd: ZEBERRTHEREXSBHNEKEER
INEEENRIRABMNBRESER
EEFEEE -

Kiate : ZEEREXTEEEER REBE -
REGRAREXBHEBANLEXER -

FERBA

MEEBRENADPERNEE 2BENMS -
AEBFRERNFEZRAEEREEZERNZO
(B THEENERN  AFEELERENE M
7% ZE10.36=8 T ©

2023 2022 Change %
—E=F —E- 21 %
HKS$ million HK$ million
BHEETT HEET
(restated)
(Ei)
Insurance service result (Note 1) 1RIERIEU A (K1) 471 439 7
Investment result (Note 2) KREWR (KF22) 839 714 18
Others (Note 3) Hth (KfaE3) (274) (183) 50
Net operating income BEEIWA 1,036 970 7
Adjust for the following profit or FABLUTEZREHR
loss and expenses impact: -4 -3
— Short-term fluctuations - REEH - EXN
in investment returns, BRI H R &
exchange fluctuation and (K15t4)
discount rate (Note 4) (128) (952) (87)
— Other transactions (Note 5) —-HtR 5 (Mits) 65 (15) N/A FEA
Profit for the year AEERR 973 3 323 times &

14
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

NET OPERATING INCOME (Continued) BEEWA (&)

Note 1: The balance represents the difference between Vitzal A FRIAEFRBERER (0K
insurance revenue and insurance service expenses for BREABEKVAR)NELB (FEEER
provision of services net of the reinsurance contract FAE) R ANFTERREEERK
results excluding exchange adjustment. The key driver WERBRGEMREESRE -
for insurance service result is the net contractual
service margin (“CSM”) release.

2023 2022 Change%
—s=-= —E-= #1t%
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
(restated)
(Fi)
Net CSM release BRNEERE
B 622 613 1
Impact of variances and risk EENERFAE
adjustment net of reinsurance (HIBRBREBEARE)
result me e (151) (174) (13)
Insurance service result R B BR %5 W A 471 439 7

Note 2 The balance represents net financial result of B2 TMEARESO®R RRNBRERSE
investment return, net finance income (expenses) from EAMNBRKA (B SEUAREES
insurance and reinsurance contracts and movement FEaENEs (RaEELFHE) - 6558
of investment contract liability excluding exchange WERENMETEARETEEENSEGK
adjustment. The increase of balance is mainly NEERPERFHEE -
contributed by the increase of investment return which
is consistent with the improvement in market condition
and asset prices change compared to the prior year.

Note 3 The balance represents net result of revenue from B3 MEARESESERBI AR M
investment management services and other income AFNEMSLSBR MENENETES
and other operating expenses. The increase in balance T B AR B N AT 3L o
is mainly contributed by increase in expenses in
corporate marketing activities and tax.

Note 4 The balance comprise of below items which are Hizta ZAEEELTIEE BRI YO 2K
considered not relevant to our core business and the RAARREN NS E By EE o
related decision making and internal management
purpose.

Short term fluctuation represents difference between EHESRMTESRE (FEEFEE
current year return and long term supportable ARE VNEEREEEERESR M
expected return of all equities and funds excluding WER BEHERE SENSENE
mutual funds investment, impairment, unrealised gain REHUREERYABHTE St
or loss and profit or loss from disposal of investment, HESHENAR SRS SN E . B
exchange fluctuation on both asset and liability and FEHBROEEEEE S EEE o
discount rate impact on liability which is affected by

short term economic environment without long term

economic impact on the core business.

Note 5 Other transactions represent the impact which Hs HEXEE CSEEDASZEEZL
management considers not related to core business EHMET AT LS E A RUE
activities and therefore excluded from NOI for TR TRRISZ A B (E BB R R
better understanding. e.g. the implementation and SEANVEI7TENEHENARER ¥
maintenance cost of HKFRS 17, non-recurring other = E AU A o
income, etc.

EHOBEEERAT

—ES=EEH 15



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following table sets out the key financial information
with respect to the assets and liabilities employed by
the insurance division before any fair value adjustment
arising from the acquisition accounting policy and
intra-group eliminations.

EEMEE

TRENTRBEARREENEMDAE
ERBNEEAIBIEE A R D EBAE
ANEENRENEIEZYHBER

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

N8 = R-E—-—
+=A +=A
=t+—H =+—H
HK$ million HK$ million
BEZET BEZEBr
(restated)
(E)
Investments BE 73,372 65,741
Cash and deposits REMFR 4,311 3,381
Reinsurance contract assets BRBERBEE 6,518 6,432
Other assets Hith&EE 2,192 2,045
Total assets EEHAE 86,393 77,599
Insurance contract liabilities REESRER 63,577 55,054
Investment contract liabilities RESEHEE 5,122 5,205
Other liabilities HiaE 1,350 1,467
Total liabilities BEHAE 70,049 61,726
Net assets EEFHE 16,344 15,873

Certain comparative figure is related to be consistent
with current year presentation.

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022,
the asset allocation of the investment portfolio is
restated due to the first time adoption of the new
accounting standard HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.
Debt securities, mortgage loans, equity securities and
unit trusts and investment policyholder plans related
securities are approximately 76%, 9%, 4% and 11% of
the total investments respectively. As at 31 December
2023, 97.9% (2022: 96.8%) of the debt securities are
investment grade rated (i.e. BBB- or above) by reputable
credit rating agencies. As at 31 December 2023, 88.0%
(2022: 89.4%) of the mortgage loans are investment
grade rated (i.e. BBB- or above) as assessed by internal
rating analysis with the support from external investment
manager using similar credit rating methodology from
reputable credit rating agencies.

16

ETHRBFEEINZEAFENZRLTA
REF-—F-

R-ZBZ=F+=ZA=+—-BER=ZZE=Z=
F+-A=+—HB HREARAFETE
A(E B BEBRELENFR (2T A -
RHEMEERBECE FUEMR - BHKEFSH
KIFER EEFFURBENETANBRER
EEEAEEBEISDORNMLBAREN
76% 9% 4% R11% - R=—_ZT=_=F+=
B=1+—HB 97.9%ME¥XEH (===
F:06.8%) WEERITNTIRRBIESR
B4R (BIBBB-U L) e REZBEZ=F+=
A=+—H 88.0% (ZZE==%:89.4%)
WIKIFERBEBABTIRDNTAHRERE
(ENBBB-zm A k) » AR MENIBKRE
KENGMT  RAEGSERFHTRESE
HOIWGE BB A EET -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the total assets under
management (“AUM”) of insurance business including
those managed through non-consolidated entities like
MPF schemes amounted to HK$84,384 million (31
December 2022: HK$76,185 million).

INVESTMENT ASSETS

The table below sets forth the asset allocation of
the investment portfolio of the insurance division
which the Group uses to monitor the performance
of the investment portfolio. The debt securities and
mortgage loans were reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment before
expected credit loss while equity securities and unit
trusts were reported at fair value.

EEENWEDN

EENEE#)

BE-—F_=Ft+-A=+—-0 REXH
(BEEAERESTESEEHEREEN
BN EEEELIEABISB8EBT (=T
ZZE+ZHA=+—H :761.85EBT) °

REEE

TREH T RO BREBENEED B
AEBBLERREAESNEN - BEHES
KR B KR AR R 5 85 7 R SR E R
EHERBRAIS R MERFFNEME
AR AAREESIHR -

As at 31 December

R+=-—BA=+—H
2023 2022
—Z=-= —E—-=
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET B EZ BT
General investment —RRE
Debt securities BE%FES 61,172 55,134
Mortgage loans EIFER 5,035 5,790
Equity securities xRS 2,436 2,604
Cash for investment ARKEENES 475 728
69,118 64,256
Direct participating contracts EEEEZSHSABENER
Debt securities EEES 1,317 420
Equity securities EHES 2,060 1,944
Cash for investment ARKBENRS 1,840 517
5,217 2,881
Unit-linked BuEL
Equity securities EREH 5,748 5,685
80,083 72,822

ERSRERERAT
ZET=FFHR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

INVESTMENT ASSETS (Continued)

The table below sets forth the total investment income
based on internal records:

REEE (#)
TREH TERABLHENRERZLE

For the year ended 31

December
BE+-A=+—HLFE
2023 2022
—E-= —_E-

HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BZEr

Interest income and others FMEWAMEA
Dividend income BREUWA

2,682 2,354
132 233

The investment income excludes income arising from
unit trusts, investment-linked products and direct
participating contracts.

Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance
contract assets

The liability (or asset) recognised for a group of
insurance and reinsurance contracts is measured as
the sum of the fulfilment cashflow, cashflows arise as
the Group fulfils the contracts and CSM presenting
the unearned profit that the Group will recognise as it
provides insurance coverage in the future. The table
below sets forth the related information.

REWAFTEENER REVESHRRA
FEEZHEHJABHENERELENEA -

RESEAENBRBREREE

RARBANBREEFAEINEAE (REE)
EENRENE FAEEBRTERKELEN
BEme8 kA RS EBERRERRRRF
BREERIANAKERINBNSRRBER 2
MetE8 - HBEEERHINT xR -

As at As at
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
N-ZE8—-= R-ZEBE—-Z
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-H§
HK$ million %  HK$ million %
BEET BEETT
Fulfilment cashflow BHEREERE 49,835 87 41,318 85
Net CSM SR RSB FRE 7,224 13 7,304 15
Net balance EREAHEE 57,059 100 48,622 100
Comprised of: B
Insurance contract liabilities RS R &G 63,577 55,054
Reinsurance contract assets BRBAEEE (6,518) (6,432)
57,059 48,622
YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INVESTMENT ASSETS (Continued)

The table below sets forth the net CSM roll forward
which provides information on the economic impact of
changes during the year to understand the performance
of our business in terms of future profitability and
contribution to current year financial performance.

RE

EEENWEDN

BE (&)

TRIRTERBRBEFFENAEREE
HARHTEARAFEASENSEZEN

=B

A S

AT BB MR EEERRBFGE DM

HAFHBEEENEMIEHRR -

2023 2022
—Eg-= —E2-=
Notes  HK$ million HK$ million
Bt EEET HEET
CSM Value as at 1 January R—B—HBZ&R
R 2R EE 7,304 7,619

New business CSM MEBNEERBEER a 1,031 1,098

Expected unwind JEEIREH b 164 91

Economic variances REER c 23 (504)

Experience variances KEMER d (679) (391)

Exchange rate impact Exga 3 4

CSM release & B AR 75 2 PR A 12 Bk e (622) (613)

CSM Value as at 31 December R+=-ZB=+—H2

SRRBEEREER 7,224 7,304

Note: Kiat -

a) It represents the effect of new contracts brought to CSM a) ZEBANEEHEAREHARBRBERIEKW
for the year. 4

b) It represents the effect of interest accreted on CSM which b) ZEHEAFHENEHARRBERELENSE
is measured at the discount rate at initial recognition & AR EEENMEREEREAS
for insurance contract portfolio applying the general BTN R RTE o
measurement model.

c) It represents the impact of economic variance and c) ZEARBEEENBEELNEE - KEK=E
assumption change. Economic variance and assumption BB TEEHPKEEAREH 215
change mainly related to financial related adjustment HBmEgt S-S EE=ETEH
including underlying market price change. The negative REASZHREBELE T ENHEEREEETHRY
variance in 2022 is mainly caused by the impact of drop in ERELENEE - HIATERBARHE /) =
underlying investment value of the products using variable E=FRNEERND o
fee approach. The variance is much smaller in 2023 as the
market performance is less volatile.

d) It represents the effect of experience adjustments and d) ZEEMAERBUTEENECRARNBHREN

assumption update from 1) arising from premiums received
in the period, including any related cash flows such as
insurance acquisition cash flows that relate to future
service, 2) changes in estimates of the present value of
future cashflow of liabilities of remaining coverage, 3)
difference between any investment component expected to
become payable and the actual amount becomes payable
in the period, 4) change of risk adjustment for non-financial
risk that related to the future service. The change in 2022
is mainly due to adjustment on the combined impact of
premium, claim and lapse experience. For 2023, it is mainly
related to updates of some operating assumptions.

ERSREBERLR
—E=FFR

MEE NEHBRINRE SEEMHEER
ERE PINERRBBEEEANRBERRS
RE2) REPEFERENAKRREREREM
STEES) A ENNRERD REMBEREM
MY & 38 2 R Y =584 BRSRBR 75 B B 19 3R B 3%
BB ERBAEES —E__FHNEHITE
RHRERE BRUABERNGRESZEMR
FRNRAE - HR_Z_=F FEH-LEE
RRNEHEE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

INVESTMENT ASSETS (Continued)

e) The release of net CSM is based on coverage units, a
function of quantity of benefit provided and expected
coverage period, provided for the period of the group of
contracts. The CSM release rate throughout 2023 remains

stable compared with 2022.

KEY OPERATIONAL DATA OF THE

INSURANCE DIVISION

The table below sets forth certain other key operational

data of the insurance division.

REEE (#)

e) ERBRBERFENEBRUEEETHER
NERERAEAFEMRUNATHERR
HRBECHBNRE - H_T - —F8
CECCFEEARBERNEBRRASEE -

RESBHNETEREHE

TREI T REDBNAGCERELHE -

As at 31 December

Market position/share (by regular
premium income)

Number of employees
- Hong Kong
- Macao
Number of tied agents
- Hong Kong
- Macao
Number of brokers and non-tied agents
Number of bancassurance partners

MDRT qualifiers (Note 1)

Expenses ratio (Note 2)

R+=—B=+—8
2023 2022
ZEZE :g::
Mg EN, D EE 13th/2.0% 13th/1.8%
(RHBEREKRAN) £1317,72.0% £1317,1.8%
EEHE
—-&B 478 472
— &P 40 39
BRREBEHE
-&8 2,172 2,250
— B 878 954
BREANNIEBRREHS 504 509
BITRBEEBHEHE 6 5
BEBESESSKR AR (K1) 262 275
&R =R (ffit2) 8.7% 9.8%

Notes:

1. Million Dollar Round Table (“MDRT”) is a global professional
association of life insurance and financial services
professionals that recognises significant sales achievements

and high service standards.

2. Expenses ratio is operating expenses expressed as a
percentage of total weighted premium income. Last year
comparative is updated based on current year basis.

20

mat -

1. BHEEBEXZE (MDRT]) E2RASRKBRNEH
BRESZAERE BIRKTERHEEEE
MEBRRISZE -

2. EBERXRRUANERBVANBEILRTNEG
ERX c AFUBBBECEAFENERER -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFNWR DN

FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND SOLVENCY MBEHMENSEED

MARGIN

The table below sets forth a summary of the total TREHNTIHERBENEFENTRE
available capital and solvency ratio, the ratio expressed B ZEZABBREZEIRENE E
as a percentage, of the surplus to the required solvency B WIRBREZERGREVEZENMK MR
margin of the legal entity carried out the insurance oS —HEAMNEE REBERBEEEN
business related activities, as determined at the relevant EERERHTRREXBETEMIEE TR
time in accordance with the |10 and its subsidiary ITHEGB DL -

legislation and based on standards required by the IO
and methodology consistently applied by our insurance

division.
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+—H
2023 2022
—E-=5F —_E-
HKS$ million HK$ million
EEETT BEET
Total available capital AAEREE 8,447 6,603
Regulatory minimum capital BEZEEER 2,896 2,676
Solvency Ratio EBREITER 292% 247%
The solvency ratio was 292% on 31 December 2023, up R-BE-_=%F+=-HB=+—H Ef&EHLZ%E
by 45% from 247% on 31 December 2022. The increase BEEIOY Lk ZE-_—_F+=-B=+—H
was mainly driven by interest rate increase and credit B247% EF T45% c FHAFEBRRAELEFH
spread narrowing. MERRELENFTE -
EERESHEBERAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

OTHER BUSINESSES REVIEW

During the Year, securities business was exposed
to continuous downward pressure of the market
condition and interest rate hikes. The employee stock
ownership plan (the “ESOP”) administration service
division have enhanced the service infrastructure to
improve the functionality of the existing system and
optimise operation efficiency. The financial technology
business continued to promote the Company’s
strategic adjustments, accelerated system optimisation
and reduced overall costs. The securities business
will undergo compression through divestment and
restructuring initiatives, aligning with the Group’s
strategy for the insurance business to further enhance
financial performance.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the outlook for the global macroeconomic
environment is uncertain, and we will continue to strictly
adhere to prudent insurance and investment strategies.
We believe that the market still has a huge demand for
high-quality insurance products, and we will strive to
improve the level of products and services to create
long-term value growth for customers and the Group.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had fixed bank
deposits with original maturity over 3 months and cash
and cash equivalents amounting to HK$5,233 million
(2022: HK$4,173 million). As at 31 December 2023, the
Group has HK$1,399 million (2022: HK$1,393 million)
bank borrowing outstanding and HK$1,641 million
(2022: HK$1,641 million) shareholder’s loan outstanding.
The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2023 is
15.61% (2022: 16.96%), which was measured as total
debt excluding those operation related liabilities to total
debt excluding those operation related liabilities plus
equity.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 36(¢e) to the financial
statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RISK FACTORS

In 2023, the Group carried out timely and complete
identification and evaluation to manage the key risks.
The identified risks are being monitored according to
the risk appetite and the related regulation by the board
of directors and also the related committees assisting
the board.

(i)

(i)

Strategic Risk

Management recognised the importance of
incorporating insurance business with the financial
service ecosystem of the Group. On the other
hand, management is keen on enhancing the
business process and integration with financial
technology to create values to all customers of the
Group. The overall enhancement and integration
process creates uncertainties and increase
degree of difficulties on related risk management
requirement. Management proactively devotes
sufficient resources to support and enhance the
ongoing process.

Insurance Risk

Management considers insurance risk mainly
comprised:

Product design risk — potential defects in the
development of a particular insurance product.
To mitigate the risk, each of the new products
is required to go through pre-launch reviews
by various departments, including product
development, actuarial, legal and underwriting to
ensure the risk being aligned with the Group’s risk
appetite.

Lapse risk — the possibility of actual lapse
experience that diverges from the anticipated
experience assumed when products were priced
as well as financial loss due to early termination
of policies or contracts where the acquisition
cost incurred may not be recoverable from future
revenue. Management carries out regular studies
of persistency experience which will be assimilated
into new and in-force management and build in
measures including surrender charges to manage
the financial impact upon early termination by
policyholders.

ERSREBERLR
—E=FFR

EEEFNWR DN

[ Bz R &
R-ZZBZ=ZF  AEERK TBHETT

w Bl A FE AL

LEBEEEER - R IE R

pEECENINER EESUARBBES
ENNEBEZESETHBEE -

U]

(i)

BB % L B
EEERHEIGRE %i%%)\zﬁﬁlé
BMEEEERGNEEE -5 —FH

EEBHORMAEBRERES
RES AAEBEREEFAIEEE-
BERREANBESREELET THREM -

EIRFIEMN T A A EEEROEE -
BEEREERBRAZTINWERRIZFNE

{EEEETHRE

R B /2 B
EEERARBRAKRFTFESSHE
EmEitRE-BERBEMBEES
EMNEBERRE - ARERR  SEFE
mMEBEELIBRIBM (@?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ?‘i"

*5 I

&i%%ﬂ*ﬂ%) B9 B ff B B A 0 L
mRERESENRERRTFRT -

AHER-BRARERBEINNRERE
BRMBRROVBHEROTEME UK
MR ELE T REEEEBRRWALRE K
BRANRERSERANLILMEHH
BITEIB % o BIEE MR A S -
HEMAFTNERERE AR EHERE
i (BERRER)  WEEREFAA
RAKILIEENTBTE -
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EEENWR DM

RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Insurance Risk (Continued)

Pricing or underwriting risk — the possibility of
product related income being inadequate to
support future obligations arising from a product.
Further details related to this risk and the related
mitigation and monitoring measures is set out in
Note 4 “Insurance and financial risk management”
to the consolidated financial statements.

Claim risk — the possibility that the frequency or
severity of claims arising from insurance products
exceed the levels assumed when the product
was priced. Further details related to this risk and
the related mitigation and monitoring measures
are set out in Note 4 “Insurance and financial
risk management” to the consolidated financial
statements.

Market Risk, Credit Risk, Foreign Exchange Risk
and Liquidity Risk

The details of the market risk, credit risk, foreign
exchange risk and liquidity risk identified and
their related mitigation and monitoring measures
are detailed in Note 4 “Insurance and financial
risk management” to the consolidated financial
statements.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect
loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, personnel and systems or from external
events. The Group manages the risk primarily
through risk and control self-assessment and
reviews losses and fraud issues and provides
guidance, training and assistance to relevant
personnel for ongoing risk management purpose.

Risk and management control

Detailed risk and management control is set out in
corporate governance report section in this annual
report from pages 58 to 59.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

R B L B (48

EEIZRER -EmEBVRATZEN
XEEMEENRAREZNIREME B
B 5% 2 B 2 A B8 B e K R S P HR R 9
ELHBENGS MR HRMT4TRE
M EEBER] -

ERRRE-RREMERNEZRRRE
EERAER BN BRRANKENT
BEME - BRI ZE R & 4B B8 R b PR K % B
RERNESHBENGEEST KRR
FAT R EREREE ] o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and associates during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

At the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did
not have any charges on assets, other than security
deposits of HK$26,655,000 (2022: HK$23,837,000)
for banking facilities and HK$18,717,825,000 (2022:
HK$16,508,677,000) of investment together with
HK$907,291,000 (2022: HK$856,494,000) of fixed bank
deposit in favour of Autoridade Monetaria de Macau to
guarantee the technical reserves in accordance with the
Macau Insurance Ordinance.

COMMITMENTS

Details of commitments are set out in Note 39 to the
financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segments are set out in Note 16 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details of contingent liabilities are set out in Note 46.
STAFFING AND REMUNERATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed 611
(2022: 603) full time employees, 530 (2022: 522) of
which were located in Hong Kong, 40 (2022: 39) in
Macao and 41 (2022: 42) in the People’s Republic of
China. The remuneration of employees includes salary
retention package and discretionary bonus. The Group
also adopted share option and share award schemes to
provide an incentive to the employees.

The remuneration policy and package, including
the share option and share awards, of the Group’s
employees are maintained at market level and reviewed
annually by the management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM
SUBSCRIPTION SHARES

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated
21 September 2020, the Company entered into
subscription agreements on 7 September 2020 with
(1) Jade Passion Limited (“Jade Passion”) in relation
to the subscription of 484,665,279 ordinary shares
of the Company at the subscription price of HK$3.17
and (2) MassMutual International LLC in relation to
the subscription of 160,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at the Subscription Price of HK$3.17 (together
refer to “Issue”). The total gross proceeds for the Issue
was HK$2,043,588,934 and the net proceeds was
HK$2,040,588,934.

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated
12 November 2021, there was subsequent update in use
of proceeds which the Company intends to temporarily
deploy in full or any part of the Unutilised Proceeds in
Strategic Investment to investments in medium term
investments with investment horizon of around 1 to
3 years including (i) debt instruments such as bonds,
debenture, notes and convertible notes, (ii) investments
in private equity and (iii) exchange traded funds and
hedge funds, and other fund investments types which
terms are compatible with Company’s investment
strategy.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM

Management Discussion and Analysis

SUBSCRIPTION SHARES (Continued)

The table below sets out the actual application of net

EEENWEDN

RODBEAERBEARR (#)

T&REIWEZE-_SE-_=F+=-_A=+—81t

proceeds of the Issue up to 31 December 2023: BROTAEREZERENERFERABR
Actual usage
Unutilised from Unutilised
proceeds 1 Jan 2023 proceeds
up to to up to Expected timeline for
Use of 31 December 31 December 31 December utilising the remaining
proceeds 2022 2023 2023 net proceeds
—E-=
BZ -f-BHE Bz
—E-CE —BCCE —E-=H§
+=A +=A T=A
=t-H =t-H =t-8H
‘ 3ok S LER LE & FerfrG A
BRERAR ERAME ERER ERME 156 7R Y 78 19 I T %
HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HKS$ million
BEET BT BEET BEET
Strategic investment Eﬁﬁ%?ﬁ:ﬁ 1,224.6 1,224.6 - 1,224.6 Expected to be fully
(note 1) (Hrit1) utilised on or before 31
December 2024
BAE-ER-OF
TZA=t-HEX
REAFA
Asset management  EEEBER (M:#2) 306.1 - - - -
business (note 2)
Securities brokerage B A EL LW (F:23) 306.2 - - - -
business (note 3)
Working Capital EEES (MiF4) 204.1 - - - -
(note 4)
Total B 2,041.0 1,224.6 - 1,224.6
ERSRERBRAR
—E-=55 27



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFNWR DN

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM
SUBSCRIPTION SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1.

Remark:

mainly utilised on potential strategic investment for business
diversification and enhancement.

mainly utilised on asset management platform for launching
the financial products from time to time, in order to
achieve positive synergies between the Company’s capital
management and growth of its asset management business,
and facilitate external fundraising for such products.

mainly utilised on the securities brokerage business (i) when
more cash is required to be injected into the business to
increase its liquid capital resources in accordance with the
increased trading volumes; and (ii) the securities financing
business when more cash is required to be injected into the
business to support higher demand for IPO loans or margin
financing transactions.

mainly utilised on general working capital which covers
expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business of
the Group, including but not limited to manpower, rental
expenses, data license and network expenses and office
equipment expenses.

The expected timeline of utilising the remaining
proceeds is subject to significant uncertainties
including but not limited to the negotiation with
counterparties, market conditions and demand,
global economic environment, investment sentiment
and regulatory approval (if applicable) for the
above purposes. The Company adopted a treasury
management model that may involve (but shall not
be limited to) holding fixed income instruments and
high-quality financial investments in order to maximise
the Shareholders’ interest as a whole.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of event after the reporting period are set out in
Note 47 to the financial statements.
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Independent Actuaries Report on Review of Embedded Value Information
REEEEERERNNEBELREMBRE

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF YUNFENG
FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

We have reviewed the Embedded Value of YF Life
Insurance International Limited (“YF Life”) (“the YF Life
EV”) set out on pages 31 to 39 of the Annual Report
of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (“the Company” or
“Yunfeng Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023
(“the EV information”).

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of the EV information in
accordance with the general principle and methodology
of traditional embedded value and industry practice
for publicly listed companies in Hong Kong. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal controls relevant to the
maintenance of underlying data and information on the
in-force business and preparation of the EV information
which is free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; performing EV calculations; selecting
and applying appropriate methodologies; and making
assumptions that are consistent with market information
and are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility, as independent actuaries, is to
perform certain review procedures set out in our letter of
engagement and, based on these procedures, conclude
whether the EV methodologies and assumptions are
consistent with industry practice for publicly listed
companies in Hong Kong, the general principle and
methodology of traditional embedded value and
available market information.

We have reviewed the methodology and assumptions
used in preparing the EV information, including the
following:

° The YF Life EV as of 31 December 2023;

o Value of one-year new business of YF Life issued
during the year ended 31 December 2023; and

° Movement analysis of the YF Life EV and sensitivity
analysis of value of in-force business and value of
one-year new business of YF Life.

Our review procedures included, but were not limited
to, discussing with management of Yunfeng Group
the methodology and assumptions, inspecting
documentation relating thereto, and considering whether
the methodologies are consistent with the general
principle and methodology of traditional embedded
value and industry practice for publicly listed companies
in Hong Kong and whether the assumptions are
consistent with available market information.
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Independent Actuaries Report on Review of Embedded Value Information

RNEBEEGEEHNBYUBEMRS

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF YUNFENG
FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED (Continued)

The preparation of EV information requires assumptions
and projections to be made about future uncertain
events, many of which are outside the control of
Yunfeng Group. Therefore, actual experience may differ
from these assumptions and projections, and this will
affect the value of in-force business and the value of
one-year new business.

In forming our conclusion, we have relied on the
integrity, accuracy and completeness of audited and
unaudited data and information provided by Yunfeng
Group. Our work did not involve reperforming the EV
calculations, nor verifying the data and information
underlying the EV information.

Based on our review procedures, we have concluded
that the methodologies and assumptions used in
preparing the EV information are consistent with
industry practice for publicly listed companies in Hong
Kong and with available market information.

This report has been prepared pursuant to an
engagement contract between PricewaterhouseCoopers
Limited and Yunfeng Financial Group Limited. This
report is solely for the purpose set forth in the first and
third paragraphs of this report and is for the use of the
Board of Directors of Yunfeng Group only and is not to
be used for any other purpose or to be distributed to
any other parties. We expressly disclaim any liability or
duty to any other party for the contents of this report
and howsoever arising in connection with it.

Our work does not constitute an audit or other
assurance engagement in accordance with applicable
professional standards. Accordingly, we provide no
audit opinion, attestation or other form of assurance
with respect to our work or the information upon which
our work was based.

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited

Xiaobin Yuan, FSA

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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BACKGROUND

The Group mainly consists of two major segments
including life insurance business and other financial
services in the areas of investment holding, asset
management, pensions, other businesses and
corporate services. Life insurance business is
operated by YF Life, a 69.8%-owned subsidiary,
which is the most significant part of the Group in
terms of total asset and profitability. To provide
additional information of the insurance business
of the Group, the Group disclosed the Embedded
Value (“EV”) of the segment.

DEFINITION

EV is a measure of value of shareholders’ interests
in the earnings distributable (“distributable
earnings”) from assets allocated to the in-force
business after sufficient allowance for the
aggregate risks in the business.

The EV equals to:
o Adjusted Net Worth (“ANW?”), plus

° Value of the in-force business before cost of
capital (“VIF before CoC”), minus

o Cost of Capital (“CoC”)

The ANW represents the net asset value on Hong
Kong statutory basis, with marked-to-market
adjustment to certain assets of our insurance
business segment.

The VIF before CoC is the present value of future
estimated after-tax statutory profits from in-force
business, discounted at the risk discount rate as at
31 December 2023. CoC is the difference between
the amount of required capital as at 31 December
2023 and the present value of future releases,
allowing for future after-tax investment earnings on
the capital.

Similarly, the new business value is calculated as
the difference of new business value before CoC
and CoC arising from new business sales in the
period. The new business value before CoC is the
present value, discounted at issue date, of future
estimated after-tax statutory profits emerging from
new business sales in the past 12 months, i.e. 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2028.

Embedded Value
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Embedded Value
NEEE

32

BASIS OF PREPARATION

We adopted a traditional deterministic discounted
cash flow methodology to determine the
components of Embedded Value and the New
Business Value. This methodology makes implicit
allowance for the time value of options and
guarantees and other risks associated with the
realisation of the expected future distributable
earnings through the use of a risk adjusted
discount rate and is consistent with the industry
practice in the market.

In determining the value of in-force business, our
insurance segment’s in-force policy databases as
at 31 December 2023 were used. New business
volumes and mix were based on the actual
business written by our insurance segment in
the 12-month period from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2023.

It should be noted that, in assessing the total value
of a life insurance company, the value attributed
to future new business can be determined as the
product of the one-year new business value and a
multiple which reflects an allowance for future new
business sales and the risks associated with it at
the assumed profit margin.

The Group has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers
Limited (“PwC”), an international firm of consulting
actuaries, to examine whether the methodology
and assumptions used by us in the preparation of
the Embedded Value as at 31 December 2023 are
consistent with standards generally adopted by
insurance companies in Hong Kong.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The calculations of Embedded Value and the New
Business Value of insurance business segment
are based on certain assumptions with respect to
future experience. Thus, the actual results could
differ significantly from what is envisioned when
these calculations were made. In addition, the
insurance business segment is held through a
69.8%-owned subsidiary of the Group. With the
Embedded Value and the New Business Value of
the insurance business being presented on a 100%
basis below, the related value assessment should
be considered accordingly.
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Embedded Value

NEEE
5. EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE 5 BERRANSEER
5.1 Embedded value 51 NEEE

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
—E-= —E-C
+=A +=A
=+—H =t+—~H

HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEE T

Adjusted Net Worth KARZE 10,108 8,942
Value of in-force business before AREBEINKRER

cost of capital BABI I EE 13,187 13,960
Cost of capital =5 :N (2,577) (2,315)
Embedded value REEBE 20,718 20,587
Attributable to: AR -
Owners of the Company AR ERERER 14,461 14,370
Non-controlling interests IR RE 6,257 6,217
Embedded value REEBE 20,718 20,587

5.2 New Business value 5.2 HEBEE

For the past  For the past

12 months 12 months

as of as of

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

BZE HZE
—E-= —E-=

+=A +=A

=t—H =+—H

11218 A 1121 A
HK$ million HK$ million
BEETT BZEBor

New Business Value before cost of 1R E 78 & 25 5 B9

capital HMEKREER 1,232 893
Cost of capital NN (223) (139)
New Business Value after cost of HBRERREED
capital HEKERE 1,009 758
EHRSREEERAT
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Embedded Value
NEEE

5. EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued) 5 BERBASEEGE)
5.2 New Business value (Continued) 5.2 HEKEME(E)
The new business value for the past 12 BE—_FE-_=F+=-A=+—HI1t
months as of 31 December 2023 is HK$1,009 + =18 B Hi 8 % % 5 {E E £10.09
million, an increase of HK$251 million or 33%, BB REFERH7.58FEE T
from HK$758 million over the same period M2.51EEB T RN383%  TEZH
last year. The growth is primarily driven by RERFFRE ([APED) (T
a significant increase in annual premium RENREER)NBEZERMT
equivalent (“APE”) (excluding short-term B -HAFLFRE (FEREES
endowment products) amounted to HK$2,867 HEEm) EK28.67EB T B E
million, which has risen by 74% over the same FRHBEHT4% o
period last year.
5.3 Movement analysis of embedded value 53 AESEEEHON
2023 2022
—g=-= —s==
Notes  HKS$ million HK$ million
iokia & ET B &E T
Embedded Value as at R—A—HBHRA
1 January =EBE 20,587 18,061
New business value MEKEE 1,009 758
Expected return on Embedded ANEEETEDS
value Uk & 1,684 1,565
Assumption and model changes R MEF &1L (2,109) 2,267
Investment return variance REBHER (33) (1,635)
Other experience variance and Hih&BmEEM
exchange rate impact ERgE (420) (429)
Embedded Value as at 31 R+t=-—B=+-—8
December HWAEEER 20,718 20,587
Note: Bt -

a) New business contribution from sales of new
business in the past one-year

b) Return on value of in-force business plus
expected interest on Adjusted Net Worth

c) Impact of assumption and model changes on
the future distributable earnings of the in-force
business

d) Differences between the actual investment
returns and expected investment returns

e) Differences between the actual experience and

expected experience for mortality, morbidity,
lapses, and expenses

34
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b) FEREBWDBMEERARFEN
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c) BRMBRESIHBEREBRRA
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued)

5.4 Key assumptions

Our policies state that it adopts a best
estimate approach in setting the assumptions
which are used in the calculation of its
Embedded Value and New Business Value.
The assumptions were based on the actual
experience of YF Life and certain industry
experience.

The basis and assumptions used in the
calculations are summarised below. These
assumptions have been made on a “going
concern” basis.

Risk discount rate

The risk discount rate represents the
long-term post-tax cost of capital of the
hypothetical investor for whom the valuation
is made, together with an allowance for
risk, taking into account factors such as the
political and economic environment in Hong
Kong.

We use risk discount rate of 8.75% for 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022 as the
base scenario assumption for both in-force
and new business.

Investment returns

Future investment returns have been
calculated as the weighted average of the
investment returns on existing assets and new
assets.

The investment returns on existing assets
and new assets have been determined by
book yield, the forward rate yields available
on US government bonds, credit spreads that
reflects the risk of default and equity return of
underlying assets respectively.
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued)

5.4 Key assumptions (Continued)

Credit rate

The crediting rates for universal life business
have been set to reflect regulatory and
contractual requirements, policyholders’
reasonable expectations and earn rate
assumptions. The crediting rates were worked
out as earn rate less crediting rate spread.

Mortality

The mortality assumption is based on both
emerging experience and industry experience,
reflecting its expectation of how experience
will emerge.

The experience mortality rates have been set
as a percentage of HKA93 mortality table
with an adjustment of increased mortality at
older ages (“Adj. HKA93”). There were also
adjustment factor for non-smoker and smoker.

Morbidity

Morbidity rate assumptions have been set as
a percentage of the reinsurance rates due to
the lack of credible claims experience.

Lapse

The lapse assumptions were based on YF
Life’s experience and adjusted to reflect
the results of its recent experience. The
assumptions have been set with reference
to pricing assumptions where credible
experience data is not available.

The lapse assumptions vary by products and
policy duration.
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued)

5.4 Key assumptions (Continued)

Operating expenses

Operating expenses have been projected
based on unit expense assumption. Projected
excess or saving of expense compared
with unit expense assumption has not been
included in VIF or new business value. The
historical excess or saving of actual expense
compared with unit expense assumption has
been included in ANW component of EV.

Inflation rate

Future inflation rate was assumed to be 2%
per annum for 2023. This assumption is based
on expectations of long-term consumer price
and salary inflation.

Taxation

A tax rate of 0.825% of net premium income
for Hong Kong business and 12% of pre-tax
statutory profit for Macao business has been
assumed for 2023.

Required capital

The embedded value projections assume
that it maintains required capital at 150% of
minimum solvency margin.

Statutory valuation

The distributable earnings are based on
statutory reserve in accordance with the Hong
Kong reserving regulations.

Reinsurance

Reinsurance assumptions have been
developed based on the reinsurance
arrangements in force as at the valuation date
and the recent historical and expected future
experience.
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Embedded Value

NEEE

5.

38

EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued)

5.5

Sensitivity testing

We performed sensitivity analysis on the
value of in-force business and the new
business value as at 31 December 2023, by
independently varying certain assumptions
regarding future experience. Specifically, the
following changes in assumptions have been
considered.

New money yields increased by 100
basis points per annum

New money yields decreased by 100
basis points per annum

Risk discount rate increased by 50 basis
points

Risk discount rate decreased by 50 basis
points

10% increase in lapse rate and skip
premium rates (i.e. 110% of the central
assumptions)

10% decrease in lapse rate and skip
premium rates (i.e. 90% of the central
assumptions)

10% increase in mortality and morbidity
rates and loss ratios (i.e. 110% of the
central assumptions)

10% decrease in mortality and morbidity
rates and loss ratios (i.e. 90% of the
central assumptions)

10% increase in acquisition and
maintenance expenses (i.e. 110% of the
central assumptions)

10% decrease in acquisition and
maintenance expenses (i.e. 90% of the
central assumptions)

5

BB
5.5 SBMRH

RERSEE @)

RZBZ=5+ZA=+t—-H %
MEBEBRE B RKERN
RERBR  HEMEBEEMHE
BEEET THBMED T - AR
5 RMESZEETIBRROEL -

s HBEEWZEFHIMN00E
E

e HIBEEWHESFHA100ME
¥

o R BENIRZIBNS0E B T
o & B BE 3R ZR I D 5018 B F

o EREMIAMREZRIEZM
10% (BN E EFHREZ110%)

e EBREEMAMBREBZRRD
10%(EDEIE1E R HI90%)

TEMBBHFERUREB X
I HN10% (B EERHZ M
%)

CERMBRERUKREBEX
L 010% (B & 2R &R ©
)

o ERMEEE HIEZIN10% (B
HAEBEN110%)

-M‘c“d

—_
—_
o

S 4%
o\°§m

o EHIAMMEEERR10% (B
EERRH0%)

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2023



Embedded Value

NEEE

5. EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued) 5 BERBASEEGE)
5.5 Sensitivity testing (Continued) 5.5 BBMAIE (&)
Value of
in-force New
business business
after value after
cost of cost
For the year 2023 capital of capital
HBRELR HNBRER
PR A 1 B2 B
—E=-= BEREKEE MEKEE
Assumptions HKS$ million  HKS$ million
B& HEETT HAET
Base scenario VN EE 10,610 1,009
New money yields increased by HIEEEKRSEE
100 basis points per annum 1501 001E 2 F 11,582 1,105
New money yields decreased by s EWSEE
100 basis points per annum A 10018 2+ 9,239 910
Risk discount rate increased by 50 [& [ 8518 =
basis points 05018 2L+ 9,761 936
Risk discount rate decreased by 50 [& [ 8518 =
basis points B A 5018 2+ 11,550 1,090
10% increase in lapse rate and skip BHRZBMIAMRER
premium rates EIM10% 10,439 964
10% decrease in lapse rate and RBRRRMEAMRRER
skip premium rates 10,806 1,058
10% increase in mortality and BHTRMNBBFERURIELAR
morbidity rates and loss ratios 9,550 959
10% decrease in mortality and HTERNEFERURE LR
morbidity rates and loss ratios 11,669 1,057
10% increase in acquisition and ERMEFER
maintenance expenses 10,247 955
10% decrease in acquisition and EMM#EZER
maintenance expenses 10,972 1,064
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSNEEABER

CHAIRMAN

Mr. Yu Feng, aged 60, was appointed as the Chairman
and a non-executive Director and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee in November 2015. Mr. Yu is
the co-founder and the chairman of Yunfeng Capital,
a private equity firm founded by Mr. Yu together with
other entrepreneurs in 2010.

Mr. Yu is a director of YFHL, Key Imagination and Jade
Passion. YFHL, Key Imagination and Jade Passion are
substantial shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Yu obtained an EMBA degree from China Europe
International Business School, the PRC in March 2001
and a master of arts degree in philosophy from Fudan
University, the PRC in July 1991.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fang Lin, aged 53, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company in July 2023. Mr. Fang had served China
Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
and branches for over 20 years in various capacities
including secretary of the board of directors, assistant
to president, executive member of management
committee, marketing director and deputy general
manager. Thereafter, he had served as the chairman,
chairman of the executive committee and chief
executive officer of FTLife Insurance Company Limited.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fang was the deputy
general manager of Realord Group Holdings Limited (a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), stock code: 1196).

Mr. Fang holds a Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering
degree from South China University of Technology in
the PRC, a Master of Business Administration degree
from Antai College of Economics and Management
of Shanghai Jiao Tong University in the PRC, and an
Executive Master of Business Administration degree
from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in the
PRC.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Huang Xin, aged 48, was appointed as an
executive Director and a member of the Remuneration
Committee in November 2015, and was appointed as
the interim chief executive officer of the Company in
September 2022 and ceased to be the interim chief
executive officer in July 2023. Mr. Huang is a partner
and a member of the investment committee of Yunfeng
Capital. Mr. Huang served as the vice president of
Shanghai Kaituo Capital Limited from 2006 to 2010,
and was the vice president of finance at Target Media
Holdings Limited from 2005 to 2006. Mr. Huang worked
at General Electric Company from 1997 to 2005.

Mr. Huang currently acts as a director of Jade Passion,
a substantial shareholder of the Company. He served as
a director of YTO Express Group Co., Ltd (stock code:
600233) which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
until 13 October 2022 and a director of Sanxiang
Impression Co., Ltd (stock code: 000863) which is listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange until 29 June 2021.

Mr. Huang obtained a master of business administration
degree from China Europe International Business
School, the PRC in October 2011 and a bachelor’s
degree in accounting from Fudan University, the PRC in
July 1997.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSNEEABER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Michael James O’Connor, aged 55, was appointed
as a non-executive Director in March 2020. Mr.
O’Connor is the General Counsel of MMLIC, leading its
legal, compliance, government relations, internal audit
and corporate governance functions. MMLIC is the
sole member of MMI, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Mr. O’Connor was appointed as a manager
of MMI, a substantial shareholder of the Company on
August 2020. He is a member of MMLIC’s Executive
Leadership team. Mr. O’Connor initially joined MMLIC’s
Law Division in 2005 and from 2008 to 2011, he led
the company’s corporate law and government relations
teams. From 2011 to 2017, Mr. O’Connor served in a
number of business leadership positions at MMLIC, first
as the chief of staff to MMLIC’s CEO Roger Crandall
and later as the head of corporate development and
mergers and acquisitions and then as the head of
MMLIC’s international insurance operations.

Prior to joining MMLIC, Mr. O’Connor served as the
U.S. General Counsel of Irving Oil Corporation, an
independent global petroleum refiner and marketer
from 2002 to 2005. From 1995 until 2002, Mr. O’Connor
practiced corporate law at Goodwin Procter LLP in
Boston, where he was a member of the M&A/Corporate
Governance and Securities & Corporate Finance
practice groups. Mr. O’Connor received a B.A. in
Legal Studies from the University of Massachusetts at
Ambherst. He earned his J.D. from the Boston University
School of Law, where he was a G. Joseph Tauro
Distinguished Scholar and an Editor of the Boston
University Law Review, and his M.B.A., majoring in
Finance, from the Wharton School of Business at the
University of Pennsylvania.

Ms. Hai Olivia Ou, aged 44, was appointed as a non-
executive Director in November 2015, and was re-
designated as an executive Director and was appointed
as the interim chief executive officer in February 2020.
She has ceased to be the interim chief executive
officer in October 2020 and was re-designated as a
non-executive Director in August 2022. Ms. Hai had
served as a managing director of Yunfeng Capital and
specialises in investments and management related to
the financial services industry, especially on investments
in Internet Finance and strategic management in
insurance company. Prior to joining Yunfeng Capital,
Ms. Hai was an actuarial partner at Deloitte China
from 2012 and was engaged in the provision of
consulting services to overseas and domestic insurance
companies. Ms. Hai has also worked at HSBC Insurance
(Asia) Limited in Hong Kong from 2010 to 2012 and
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in the United Kingdom
from 2002 to 2010.

Ms. Hai is a qualified fellow member of the Institute and

Faculty of Actuaries in the United Kingdom and a fellow
member of the China Association of Actuaries.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Qi Daqing, aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, and a member
of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee in February 2016. In March
2019, Mr. Qi was appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Qi is currently a professor
of Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business where
he previously served as a director and an associate
dean of the executive master of business administration
department. Mr. Qi’s research interests primarily focus
on financial accounting, financial reporting and their
impact on corporate business strategy. Mr. Qi has
published many articles in accounting and finance
journals. Mr. Qi worked at The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and the Feature Syndicate of the
Department of Home News for Overseas, Xinhua News
Agency prior to joining Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business in 2002.

Currently Mr. Qi serves as an independent director of
Sohu.com Limited (NASDAQ: SOHU) and Hello Group
Inc. (NASDAQ: MOMO), all of which are listed on
NASDAQ; and an independent non-executive director
of Haidilao International Holdings Limited (stock code:
06862), Bison Finance Group Limited (stock code:
00888) and SinoMedia Holding Limited (stock code:
00623), all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Qi served as an independent non-executive
director of Honghua Group Limited (stock code: 00196)
from 18 January 2008 to 1 January 2018, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, an independent non-
executive director of Dalian Wanda Commercial
Properties Co., Ltd. (stock code: 03699) from 29
January 2016 to 20 September 2016, a company
delisted from the Stock Exchange on 20 September
2016, and an independent non-executive director of
Jutal Offshore Oil Services Limited (stock code: 03303)
from 31 July 2015 to 27 April 2022. Mr. Qi had also
been an independent director of Focus Media Holding
Limited (NASDAQ: FMCN) and AutoNavi Holdings Ltd.
(NASDAQ: AMAP), all of which were listed on NASDAQ,
an independent director of Bona Film Group Limited
and iKang Healthcare Group, Inc. which were listed
on NASDAQ and ceased to be public companies, and
an independent director of China Vanke Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock
code: 000002; and listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 02202).

Mr. Qi graduated with a doctoral degree in accounting
from The Eli Broad Graduate School of Management
of Michigan State University in the U.S.A. in 1996. He
also obtained a master’s degree in management from
University of Hawaii in the U.S.A in 1992 and dual
bachelor’s degrees (in biophysics and international
news) from Fudan University in 1985 and 1987
respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSNEEABER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard, aged 75, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee in August 2011. Mr. Chu was the vice
president, Asia and the chief representative, China of
Teck Resources Limited. Mr. Chu was responsible for
the development of Asian strategies for the company,
monitoring China’s economic performance and
promoting business development opportunities in China.
Mr. Chu held various positions including corporate
controller for Teck Resources Limited from 1978 to
2007 and was the vice president, Asia and the chief
representative, China from 2007 to April 2011.

Mr. Chu serves as an independent non-executive
director of Grandshores Technology Group Limited
(stock code: 01647), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chu holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from
University of British Columbia and was a member of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

Mr. Xiao Feng, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, and a member of
the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee in
March 2019. Mr. Xiao is currently the vice chairman
and an executive director of China Wanxiang Holding
Co., Ltd. (MEIE @ZEKRBMR D F) . Since 2018, Mr.
Xiao also serves as the chairman and chief executive
officer of HashKey Group. Mr. Xiao has more than 27
years of experiences in finance, asset management and
securities management and had served key positions in
different institutions including securities management
office of the People’s Bank of China, Shenzhen Branch
from 1992 to 1993, Securities Management Office
of Shenzhen from 1993 to 1998 and Bosera Fund
Management Co., Ltd. from 1998 to 2011. Since 1998,
Mr. Xiao has also been appointed as the director,
the chairman and the president of various finance
companies, fund or asset management companies, trust
companies and insurance companies.

Mr. Xiao obtained a bachelor’s degree of arts in Chinese

from Jiangxi Normal University in 1983 and a doctoral
degree in economics from Nankai University in 2003.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of the Company is committed to maintaining
high standards of corporate governance. It believes that
a high standard of corporate governance provides an
effective framework and solid foundation for attracting
and retaining high calibre and talented management,
promoting high standards of accountability and
transparency and meeting the expectations of all the
Shareholders. The Board persists to establish a good
corporate governance framework that is essential for
effective management, continued business growth
and a healthy corporate culture for the enhancement
of shareholders’ value in total. The Board believes
that corporate culture is a prominent element to the
fulfilment of the Company’s mission. The Board has
been putting efforts in review and enhance its risk
management and internal controls and procedures in
light of changes in regulations and developments in best
practices, so as to ensure that the Company’s purpose,
values and strategies are aligned with the corporate
culture. The principles of corporate governance
adopted by the Group stress the importance of a quality
board, sound internal controls, and transparency and
accountability to all the Shareholders.

Throughout the Year, the Company has adopted and
complied with the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) in force
during the Year as set out in Appendix C1 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct
regarding Director’s securities transactions with terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out
in the Model Code. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as stated in
the Model Code throughout the Year.
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THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the formulation of the
Group’s purposes, values, strategies and policies,
regulating and reviewing risk management and internal
control systems, formulating and reviewing the Group’s
corporate governance policy, and directing and
supervising the management of the business operations
of the Group to ensure that its business objectives are
met. The Board also ensures the fullest communication
with the Shareholders and the Company’s recognition of
Shareholders’ interest. The management of the Group
is responsible for the day-to-day business operations
and management of the Group and implementing the
policies and strategies formulated by the Board and is
accountable to the Board.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Group. As at the date of this
report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Chairman
Mr. Yu Feng (Non-executive Director)
Executive Directors

Mr. Fang Lin (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Xin

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Michael James O’Connor
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Qi Daging
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard
Mr. Xiao Feng

The Company has been maintaining the number of
independent non-executive Directors at not less than
one-third of the number of the Board members with a
number of at least three and has ensured that at least
one of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise as required
by the Listing Rules. The participation of independent
non-executive Directors in the Board brings independent
judgement to ensure the interests of all Shareholders
have been duly considered.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

For a Director to be considered independent, that
Director should not have any direct or indirect material
interest in the Group. In determining the independence
of Directors, the Board follows the requirement set out
in the Listing Rules. The Company has received from
each of the independent non-executive Directors a
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules in respect of the year ended 31
December 2023 and the Company considers that they
are independent.

Currently the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors do not have specific terms
of appointment. Code provision B.2.2 provides that
every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. According to the articles of
association of the Company, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if the number is not a multiple
of three, then, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third), shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Directors shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years at each annual
general meeting, and offer themselves for re-election.

The current Directors and their brief biographical details
are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the CEO
are complementary, but importantly they are distinct
and separate with a clear and well-established division
of responsibilities. The Chairman, Mr. Yu Feng, is
responsible for providing leadership to the Board,
ensuring Board effectiveness and fostering constructive
relationship between Directors. The CEO, Mr. Fang
Lin, leads the management team and is responsible
for managing the business of the Group, implementing
the policies and strategies approved by the Board,
and assumes full accountability for the day-to-day
operations and management of the Group.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report, there are no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships between Board
members and between the Chairman and the CEO.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board meets regularly and at least 4 times a year.
Between scheduled meetings, senior management of
the Group provides to the Directors the information on
the activities and developments in the businesses of the
Group on a timely basis and, when required, additional
Board meetings are held. In addition, the Directors
have full access to the information of the Group and
to independent professional advice whenever should
they consider necessary. To ensure all directors an
opportunity to attend, notice of at least 14 days will be
given of a regular board meeting and an agenda and
accompanying board papers will be sent, in full, to all
directors at least 3 days before the date of a board
or board committee meeting (or other agreed period).
During the Year, a total of 5 Board meetings and 1
general meeting, including the annual general meeting
were held and the attendance of each Director is set out
below:
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Number of meetings attended in the year ended 31 December 2023/

Number of meetings eligible to attend

BE-R-CFtA=t-ALFERREEERE/ RERSNNEIRY
Board NC RC AC
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Chairman IR
Mr. Yu Feng (non-executive Director) BELE(FHTEES)
Executive Directors YrEs

Mr. Fang Lin (appointed on 10 July 2023)  FMEE (R-E-Z£+ 51 HEZH)
EF Yk

5/5 212 - - Wl

212 - - - -
5/5 - 202 - 11

Mr. Huang Xin
Non-executive Directors FYTES
Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed Adnan Omar Ahmed % &

(resigned on 30 June 2023)
Mr. Michael James O’Connor
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Qi Daging
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard
Mr. Xiao Feng

Note:

NC - Nomination Committee
RC - Remuneration Committee
AC - Audit Committee
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AGM - annual general meeting held on 16 June 2023
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The Chairman also held meeting(s) with independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should always know their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses and
activities of the Group. Each newly appointed Director
would receive an induction package covering the
Group’s businesses and the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company.

During the Year, all Directors have received the
following trainings:
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Directors
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Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard KERFEE v
Mr. Xiao Feng HRE % v
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted an updated board diversity
policy in 2022 (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets
out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on
the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board.

The Company recognises the benefits of a Board that
possesses an appropriate balance and levels of skills,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
essential to support the execution of its corporate and
business strategies and to enhance the quality and
effectiveness of its performance. Board diversity will
strengthen the Company’s strategic objectives in driving
business results; enhance good corporate governance
and reputation; and attract and retain talent for the
Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including
professional qualifications and experience, cultural and
educational background, race and ethnicity, gender, age
and length of service. The Company will also take into
consideration factors based on its own business model
and specific needs from time to time in determining the
optimum composition of the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board composition

under major criteria for diversity was summarised as
follows:
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

The Board considers that the current Board composition
is diverse and meets the criteria of the board diversity
policy. Accordingly, no measurable objectives have
been set for implementing the aforementioned policy.
The Board will review the policy from time to time to
ensure that the Board Diversity Policy is complied with.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of Board Diversity
Policy on an annual basis. A copy of the Board Diversity
Policy is published on the Company’s website for public
information.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure
independent views are available to the Board. The
summary of the mechanisms is set out below:

(i) Composition: The Board ensures the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive
Directors and at least one-third of its members
being Independent Non-executive Directors
(or such higher threshold as may be required
by the Listing Rules from time to time), with at
least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Further, Independent non-executive
Directors will be appointed to Board committees
as required under the Listing Rules and as far
as practicable to ensure independent views are
available.

(i) Independence Assessment: The Nomination
Committee strictly adheres to the nomination policy
with regard to the nomination and appointment
of independent non-executive Directors, and is
mandated to assess annually the independence
of independent non-executive Directors to ensure
that they can continually exercise independent
judgement.

(i) Board Decision Making: Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are entitled
to seek further information from the management
on the matters to be discussed at Board meetings
and, where necessary, independent advice from
external professional advisers at the Company’s
expense. A Director (including independent
non-executive Directors) who has a material
interest in a contract, transaction or arrangement
shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on any
Board resolution approving the same.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. During the Year, the Board has
reviewed the policies and practices on corporate
governance. The Board has also reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and
the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable
to employees and Directors. The Board has also
reviewed and ensured the Group’s compliance with the
relevant legal and regulatory requirements, compliance
with CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report. Besides, the Company has set up
three committees including, the Nomination Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee.
Each committee has its specific terms of reference with
reference to the CG Code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was chaired by Mr. Qi
Daging with existing members of Mr. Huang Xin,
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard and Mr. Xiao Feng. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management of the
Group. In addition, the Remuneration Committee shall
meet as and when required to consider remuneration
related matters such as making recommendations to
the Board on the Group’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management,
and to assist the Group in the administration of the
fair and transparent procedure for setting policies on
the remuneration of Directors and senior management
of the Group. The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Code
provision E.1.2(c)(i) was adopted by the Remuneration
Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held
2 meetings. The Remuneration Committee reviewed
the remuneration packages for Directors and senior
management of the Group by assessing their
performance and with reference to their expected duties
and responsibilities and the current market condition
and made recommendation to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted a
Remuneration Policy in 2017, which sets out different
remuneration policies and structures for independent
non-executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
executive Directors, reflecting the Group’s objectives
of a sound governance process and long-term value
creation for the Group’s shareholders. Details of
the remuneration of the Directors of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements. The remuneration paid or payable to the
senior management of the Company by bands during
the Year is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was chaired by Mr. Yu Feng
with existing members of Mr. Qi Daqging and Mr. Chu
Chung Yue, Howard. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee have been determined with
reference to the CG Code and posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board at least once every year, making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Group’s corporate strategy,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting individuals
nominated for directorship (if necessary), assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the CEO. In considering the nomination
of new directors, the Board will take into account the
qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
the review of the Board Diversity Policy, considering
factors including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service of
Board members, and review the measurable objectives
that the Board has set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy (if any), and monitor the progress on
achieving the measurable objectives (if any).

The Company has adopted a nomination policy on 1
January 2019 (the “Nomination Policy”). The objective
of the Nomination Policy is to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. The Nomination Policy sets out
formal procedures for selection, appointment and
re-appointment of Directors. The appointment of a new
Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual
vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment
of Directors is a matter for decision by the Board upon
the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a
candidate is qualified shall include but not limited to
his or her integrity, accomplishment and experience, in
particular, in the industry of the Group’s businesses,
commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest and ability to contribute to the diversity of the
Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held 2
meetings. The Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure of the Board and the Board Diversity Policy,
and considered the nomination of director and CEO and
nomination of the retiring Directors for re-election based
on the nomination policy. In considering the nomination
of appointment and/or re-appointment of directors,
the Nomination Committee assessed the relevant
candidates on criteria such as integrity, experience,
skills, professional qualifications, independence and
ability to commit time etc, and made recommendation
to the Board for approval.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chu Chung Yue,
Howard, with existing members of Mr. Qi Daqging and
Mr. Xiao Feng.

Mr. Chu holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from
University of British Columbia and is a member of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Mr. Chu
has appropriate professional qualifications as required
under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in
line with the CG Code and are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee is required, amongst other things, to oversee
the relationship with the external auditors, to review
the Group’s interim results and annual results and to
monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the
Group, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems, internal audit and to review the
Group’s financial and accounting policies.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the Year.
There is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors. The
Audit Committee has reviewed, inter alia, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls, financial reporting and
risk management matters of the Group. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed, and had meetings and
discussions with external auditors, on the interim and
annual consolidated financial statements of the Group.

WHISTLE-BLOWING AND ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Board believes that anti-corruption and
whistleblowing are core to establishing a healthy
corporate culture and promoting high ethical standards
of the Group. We have established a whistleblowing
policy at Group level and a Speak-up Policy at the
main subsidiary (insurance business) (the “Main
Subsidiary”) level. Employees can report any suspected
non-compliance or misconduct without disclosing their
identity to ensure the whistle blowers can uphold the
Group’s ethical standards without concerns of being
retaliated.
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WHISTLE-BLOWING AND ANTI-CORRUPTION
(Continued)

The Group has zero tolerance on any forms of bribery,
extortion, fraud or money laundering in our operation.
Our compliance manual and corporate compliance
guide outline the expectations of ethical behaviour for
all employees to achieve and maintain high standards of
integrity. Business practice and controls for preventing
and combating corruption are assessed at both
Group-level and business unit-level.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

A summary of fees for audit and non-audit services is
as follows:

BHERRET (#)

AEEHWELHEMEANHE R K
FRERITAZED -EMANSHEFHMAL
AERAEEHBATHRAEIMNERTAS
L UBRARESHEHRE - AR MITE
BRHOEFERMNZFEEEREERME
By B E #1527 o

BB &
FEEFFEARB2ERBIOT ¢

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

N-E2—-= R-ZE—-—
Nature of services REHEE +=B=+—H +=ZB=1+-—H
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Audit services BT R A& 23,463 12,370
Non-audit services FEEFTIRIE 883 1,277
Total HARC] 24,346 13,647

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING THE BB RN E (T

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
for preparing financial statements which give a true and
fair view.

The statement of the auditor of the Company on their

responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

While the Group pursues growth in business, it also
recognises the importance of effectively managing
various risks associated with its operations. The Group
aims to achieve a good balance between risks and
growth by implementing appropriate risk management
and internal control.

The Board has the responsibilities for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

As the insurance business has become Group’s
dominant business, to achieve comprehensive risk
management, the Group conducts risk management and
internal control at the Main Subsidiary level as well as
the Group level, and has built a comprehensive system
for which the Board has ultimate responsibilities, and
the risk management and internal control systems
covering all business lines are supervised directly by the
management and supported by relevant professional
committees with close cooperation of all business
functions.

ORGANISATION

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks
which it is willing to take whilst achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives and maintaining sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems (including
their effectiveness) to safeguard Shareholders’
investments and the Group’s assets.

The board of directors of the Main Subsidiary (the
“Board of Subsidiary”) has established its own audit
committee and board risk committee which are
responsible for overall risk management and internal
control and report to the Board of Subsidiary together
with the management of the Main Subsidiary (the
“Management of Subsidiary”). The Management
of Subsidiary establishes and supervises the risk
management committee which identifies, prevents
and controls various risks and reports to the board
risk committee. The internal audit functions are
conducted by the key management appointed by the
Management of Subsidiary and report to the Audit
Committee. Overall, the Board of Subsidiary reports to
the management of the Group on risk management and
internal audit matters.
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ORGANISATION (Continued)

The internal control system of the Group is mainly
composed of operations, finance, risk management,
information technology, legal, compliance, and audit
functions, which is responsible for the risk management
of non-insurance business.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

Currently, the risk management framework of the Main
Subsidiary includes three lines of defence of the overall
risk management model organized by key business
functions, risk management, compliance and legal, and
internal audit:

The first line of defence is in charged by a team of
highly experienced and competent senior management
from key business functions. In particular, the risk
management policies and procedures are put in place
to safeguard a prudent underwriting policy.

The second line of defence is taken by the risk
management, compliance and legal department, as well
as the board risk committee of the Board of Subsidiary
which manage the respective business risks including
insurance risk, currency exchange risk, investment
and interest rate risk, credit risk, operational risk, and
regulatory and compliance risk.

The third line of defence is maintained by the internal
audit department. The audit committee of the Board
of Subsidiary will oversee and monitor through a
risk-based approach to its work, providing assurance to
the Board of Subsidiary.

At Group level, the industry standard “Three Lines of
Defence” for the management of risks was also adopted,
comprising (1) first line of defence: various business
departments manage risk that they respectively own;
(2) second line of defence: the risk management, legal,
compliance and operation function, which defines
and co-ordinates the operational risk strategy and
framework, and is responsible for the statistics and
reporting of various risks; and (3) third line of defence:
internal and external function provides independent
assurance.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL REVIEW

The review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems is conducted
at least annually. During the Year, the management
of the Group regularly conducted risk assessment
and management, and to review the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The risk
committee of the Board of Subsidiary held 3 meetings
and weekly management meetings were also conducted
to discuss routine risks monitoring. In 2023, various
risks were identified, monitored and reported by risk
management function, legal function and compliance
function. Corresponding measures against those risks
were implemented. The risk management department
implemented the internal audit function at the
Group level and conducted internal audit mainly on
department’s operational risks including description of
existing workflow and cases sampling inspection, which
focuses on the inspection of problems and deficiencies
that have occurred, in addition to tracking and recording
follow-up improvements. For the Main Subsidiary,
internal audit department has conducted internal control
reviews for various business functions throughout the
Year including operational, management information
systems and regulatory compliance reviews. The audit
engagements are performed according to the risk-based
and strategically-aligned audit plan which was approved
by the audit committee of the Board of Subsidiary.
Issues raised for improvement had been identified and
appropriate actions were recommended. The major risks
and benchmarks are set out in Report of the Directors
from pages 64 to 69 of this report.

The Risk Management and Internal Control Reports
were presented to the Audit Committee of the Board for
review in March 2024 and the reports show that as of
the time when the annual review is conducted, all risk
assessment tests and risk monitoring reports showed
stable trends and favorable results and no major risk
incidents or events that have caused significant financial
losses to the Group have been identified. The Audit
Committee of the Board has reviewed the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and considered that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective
and adequate.
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DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice
of timely, accurate and sufficiently details disclosure
of material information about the Group. With the
guidelines of the Company regarding the disclosure of
inside information, the Group has management controls
in place to ensure that potential inside information can
be promptly identified, assessed and escalated for
the attention of the Board to determine the need for
disclosure.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company:

- is well aware of its obligations under the SFO,
the Listing Rules and the overriding principle
that information which is considered as inside
information should be announced promptly when it
is the subject of a decision

- conducts its affairs with close regard to the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the SFC

- informs all Directors, senior management
and related staff of the latest regulations and
requirements according to the letters issued or
announcements published by the SFC and the
Stock Exchange

- has developed procedures and mechanisms for the
disclosure of inside information

- has included in its compliance manual a strict
prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential,
sensitive or inside information, and has
communicated this to all staff

- has established and implemented procedures
for responding to external enquiries about the
Company’s affairs. Only Directors and delegated
management of the Company can act as the
Company’s spokespersons and respond to
enquiries on designated areas
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COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports
to the Chairman and the CEO, and is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for
facilitating information flows and communications
among Directors as well as with Shareholders and the
management.

Mr. Chan Man Ko, the company secretary of the
Company, has complied with the training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year.

Shareholders’ Right

How Shareholders Can Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting (“EGM”)

An EGM may be convened by the Directors on
requisition of Shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders or by such Shareholder(s) who made the
requisition (as the case may be) pursuant to section 566
to 568 of the Companies Ordinance and the articles of
association of the Company. The objects of the meeting
must be stated in the requisition which must be signed
by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered
office of the Company. Shareholders should follow
the requirements and procedures as set out in the
Companies Ordinance for convening an EGM.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, Shareholders
representing not less than one-fortieth (2.5%) of the
total voting rights of all Shareholders; or not less
than 50 Shareholders on which there has been paid
up an average sum, per Shareholder, of not less
than HK$2,000, may make requisition in writing for
proposing resolution or business to be dealt with at
the next general meeting. Shareholders should follow
the requirements and procedures as set out in section
615 of the Companies Ordinance for putting forward a
proposal at a general meeting.
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Shareholders’ Right (Continued)

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company
secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Rooms 1803-1806, 18th Floor, YF Life Centre, 38
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2845 9036/(852) 3102 9022
Email: ir@yff.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND DIVIDEND
POLICY

The Company has adopted an updated Shareholders
Communication Policy in 2022 (the “Shareholders
Communication Policy”), and the Board is committed
to provide clear and full performance information of
the Group to the Shareholders. Information will be
communicated to the Shareholders and the Investors
mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim
and annual reports), annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as by
making available the disclosures submitted to the Stock
Exchange and its corporate communication and other
corporate publications on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. A copy of the Shareholders
Communication Policy is published on the Company’s
website for public information. The Company has
reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholder communication policy during the Year and
conclude that it is effective.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meeting and the Chairman and Directors
(including chairman/members of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee) as well as the representative of external
auditor, should attend and answer questions on the
Group’s business at the meeting. All resolutions at
the general meeting are decided by a poll which is
conducted by the Group’s share registrar.

The Group values feedback from the Shareholders on
its effort to promote transparency and foster investor
relationships. Comments and suggestions are always
welcomed.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND DIVIDEND
POLICY (Continued)

Further, the Company has adopted a dividend policy
on 1 January 2019. The Company does not have any
predetermined dividend payout ratio. Declaration,
recommendation and payment of dividends of the
Company is subject to the approval of the Board,
depending on results of operations, working capital,
financial position, future prospects, and capital
requirements, as well as any other factors which the
Board may consider relevant from time to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the Year. The latest version of the
articles of association of the Company is posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors submit herewith their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements. An analysis of the revenue and the results
of the Group by business segments during the Year are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Detailed business review and future development of
the Company’s business are set out in “Management
Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) section in this
annual report from pages 4 to 22. An analysis of the
Group’s performance during the Year using financial
key performance indictors is also provided in MD&A in
this annual report from pages 4 to 25. Discussions on
the Group’s ESG governance and risk management,
environmental policies and performance, compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group and key relationships with
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (“ESG Report”) of this annual report. MD&A and
ESG Report also form part of this report.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the
risk management practices of the Group are sufficient
to mitigate the risks present in our businesses and
operations as efficiently and effectively as possible. The
Board delegates some of this responsibility to various
operational departments.

The Group’s financial position, operations, business
and prospects may be affected by the following
identified risks and uncertainties. The Group adopts risk
management policies, measures and monitoring systems
to prevent and control the exposures to the identified
risks.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Regulatory risk

Our businesses operate in highly-regulated markets
and our success and operations can be impacted by
changes to the regulatory environment and the structure
of these markets. The Group pays close attention to
financial regulatory and legislative developments of the
markets it operates and actively monitors and consults
with regulators of the markets on changes which could
impact our business. Many of our key businesses are
also subject to direct regulatory oversight and we
are required to maintain the appropriate regulatory
approvals and licenses to operate, and in some
cases adhere to certain stringent financial and capital
covenants.

Insurance risks

The Group prices its insurance products based on
estimated benefit payments reflecting assumptions with
respect to mortality, morbidity, longevity, persistency,
interest rates and other factors. If actual policy
experience emerges that is significantly and adversely
different from assumptions used in product pricing, the
effect could be material to the profitability of the Group.
For participating whole life products, the insurance
company’s dividends to policyholders primarily reflect
the difference between actual investment, mortality,
expense and persistency experience and the experience
embedded in the whole life premiums and guaranteed
elements. The Group also makes use of reinsurance to
mitigate the impact of its underwriting risk.

Market risks

Market risk comes from the changes in market value of
investment exposures, which are caused by changes in
market prices. The Group monitors daily market price
fluctuations and major news with evaluation of their
potential impact on the company, and monitors the
company’s exposure to the risk. Market risks disclosure
and an overview of market risks are provided in weekly
and quarterly reports.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Currency exchange risks

For the main subsidiary of the Group (insurance
business) (the “Main Subsidiary”), the currency
exchange risk is mainly related to certain insurance
policies that are not denominated in United States (U.S.)
dollars. However, most of the insurance policies are
denominated in U.S. dollars. As the Main Subsidiary’s
investments are primarily made in U.S. dollars, coupled
with the fact that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the
U.S. dollar, management of the Main Subsidiary does
not consider that the currency risk is material.

For investments made in non-U.S. dollars, Main
Subsidiary mitigates currency risk through the use
of cross-currency swaps and forward contracts.
Cross-currency swaps are used to minimize currency
risk for certain non-U.S. dollar assets and liabilities
through a pre-specified exchange of interest and
principal. Forward contracts are used to hedge
movement in exchange rates. In year 2023, HKD
liabilities were closely hedged by currency swaps and
forward contracts.

Investment and interest rate risks

Interest rate risk is the potential for interest rates to
change, which can cause fluctuations in the value of
investments and in the amounts due to policyholders.
To the extent that fluctuations in interest rates cause
the duration of assets and liabilities to differ, the Main
Subsidiary controls its exposure to this risk by, among
other things, asset and liability matching techniques
that account for the cash flow characteristics of the
assets and liabilities. The Main Subsidiary tends to
match dollar duration of the financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income with its
statutory liability dollar duration under current statutory
regime of Hong Kong, to minimize the volatility in the
statutory solvency ratio. Thus it allows a certain level
of mismatch between asset and liability duration under
economic basis. On the other hand, to prepare for the
new risk-based capital regime, the Main Subsidiary has
started lengthening of the asset duration in the past
years and will continue to maintain its dollar-duration
matched position under the current statutory regime.

After assessment of the ability of the Group to withstand

adverse change in interest rates, the Group’s investment
and interest rate risks are under control.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Credit risks

Credit risk is the risk that issuers of investments owned
by the Group may default or that other parties may
not be able to pay amounts due to the Group. The
management of the Group’s credit risk mainly focuses
on whether various credit risks are within the scope of
the Group’s institutional regulations and are summarized
in the weekly risk report. The risk management
department prepares separate reports on margins and
trading limits every day. In the context of the quite
volatile stock market this year, it promptly reminded the
business and reduced the margin exposure, avoiding
possible losses from credit risks.

The Main Subsidiary attempts to manage its
investments to limit credit risk by diversifying its
portfolio among various security types and industry
sectors as well as purchasing credit default swaps to
transfer some of the risk if necessary. For year 2023,
there is no active breach in concentration limit nor
industry limit. Considering the resilience of the business
to counterparty default events, the credit risk exposure
is maintained within acceptable levels.

Cyber risks

Cyber risk means any risk of financial loss, disruption or
damage to the reputation of an organization from some
sort of failure of its information technology systems,
mainly including the security of network equipment and
possible external attacks.

For the year of 2023, the top cyber threats under
concerns also includes:

a) Data leakage, loss or theft. Confidential or
restricted information has been exposed to an
unauthorized party, internally or externally.

b) Attrition or denial of service. An attempt to make
online service unavailable by overwhelming them
with traffic from multiple sources; attacks that
compromise, degrade, or destroy systems or
networks, over time.

c) Supplier or third party breach. When a third
party that the Group has a business relationship
experiences a breach where the Group’s
confidential or restricted information has been
compromised.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

Cyber risks (Continued)

d)

Improper usage. Any unauthorized activity
resulting in violation of the Company’s technology
acceptable use policy by an authorized user.

Insider threat. An insider threat can occur from
people who have some level of access to the
Group’s networks, computer system(s), email or
data, including: employees, former employees,
contractors, business associates, or anyone who
intentionally misuses that access to negatively
affect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability
of the Group’s information or information systems.

Malware or ransomware. Software that is intended
to damage or disable computers and computer
systems.

Remote working. Unsecured/open Wi-Fi
connections, unattended computers, and data
breaches are just some of the potential negative
impacts the company may experience. Less
information protection awareness, and it’s a
combination that can leave the company vulnerable
to cyber-attacks.

Internet of Things (loT). 1oT is a network of
intertwined devices, software, sensors, and other
‘things’ which enable the world to be connected
throughout physical space. This can include
business software, camera, smart home devices,
or mobile phones. All of these things communicate
with each other without the need for human
interaction. This spider web contains vast amount
of sensitive data and poses serious danger to
information security.

The cyber risk was monitored in 2023, and the risk
management and internal control report in year 2023
showed that the number of incidents was stable and
manageable, the cyber issue was reported, and the
network monitoring had been enforced.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Operational risks

Operational risk is the risk caused by the fact that
actual losses, incurred for inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and operation systems, or from
external events. The sources of operational risk are
relatively wide. System, personnel, process and
other types of problems can lead to operational risks
which may be transformed to other types of risks. It
summarizes the risks a company undertakes when it
attempts to operate within a given field or industry.

The Group reports and tracks various operational risks
that have occurred to ensure the problems are corrected
and resolved. For the potential risks discovered
and recorded, the risk management department has
conducted research and discussion with various
relevant departments on preventive measures and
emergency measures and attempts to avoid unexpected
risk events. Emergency drills for each business line and
support department have been conducted. Solutions for
the problems found were formulated.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year, and the statement
of financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2023 are set out in the financial statements from pages
135 to 140.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (2022: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the Year are set out in note 36(e) to
the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as
at 31 December 2023 are set out in note 36(c) to the
financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 385 to 386.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, the Company, throughout the
Year, did not enter into (i) any agreement that will or
may result in the Company issuing Shares; or (ii) any
agreement requiring the Company to enter into any
agreement specified in (i).

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into
during the Year or subsisting at the end of the Year are
set out below:

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
28 June 2022 (the “Share Option Scheme”) which has a
life of 10 years from the date of adoption.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is for the
Company to attract, retain and motivate talented
Participants to strive for future developments and
expansion of the Group and to provide it with a flexible
means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the
Participants and for such other purposes as the Board
may approve from time to time.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each participant,
the Board would mainly take into account of the
experience of the participant on the Group’s business,
the length of service of the participant with the Group
(if the participant is an employee or a director of any
member of the Group), the actual degree of involvement
in and/or cooperation with the Group and length of
collaborative relationship the participant has established
with the Group (if the participant is an agent of any
member of the Group), and the amount of support,
assistance, guidance, advice, efforts and contributions
the participant has exerted and given towards the
success of the Group and/or the amount of potential
support, assistance, guidance, advice, efforts and
contributions the participant is likely to be able to give
or make towards the success of the Group in the future.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Company

can grant options to participants for a consideration of
HK$1.00 for each grant payable by the participant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No participant shall be granted an option, if the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all the options granted and to be granted
to such participant under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of
such further grant would exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue unless such further grant has been approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting with the participant
and his associates abstaining from voting.

Where the Board proposes to grant any option to a
participant who is a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or any of their
respective associates, which would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to him in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the
total number of Shares in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Shares at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000,

such proposed grant of options must be approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting. In such a case,
the Company shall send a circular to its Shareholders
containing all those terms as required under the Listing
Rules. The participant concerned and all connected
persons of the Company must abstain from voting in
favour of the resolution at such general meeting and/
or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time. Any vote taken at the meeting
to approve the grant of such options must be taken on
a poll.

Subscription price in respect of each Share issued
pursuant to the exercise of options granted hereunder
shall be a price as determined by the Board in
its absolute discretion but in any case the option
subscription price shall be at least the higher of: (a)
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the share option
offer date, which must be a trading day; and (b) a price
being the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the share
option offer date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption
date, after which period no further options will be
granted. Subject to the compliance with the provisions
of Chapter 17 under the Listing Rules, the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect, and options which are granted during the
life of the Share Option Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue. The
period within which the Shares must be taken up under
the option, must not be more than 10 years from the
share option offer date.

According to the Share Option Scheme, the total
number of share options that could be granted is
386,799,167, representing approximately 10% of the
total Shares in issue on the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme (i.e. 28 June 2022) and as of the
date of this report. Details and other principal terms of
the Share Option Scheme are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 2 June 2022.

During the Year, no share options had been granted,
exercised, cancelled, lapsed or outstanding.

SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

The Board had approved the adoption of two share
award schemes on 30 October 2014 (the “2014 Share
Award Scheme”) and 12 December 2016 (the “2016
Share Award Scheme”) respectively.

The purposes of the above share award schemes are
to (i) encourage or facilitate the holding of Shares by
the selected participants; (ii) encourage and retain
such individual to work with the Group; and (iii) provide
additional incentive for them to achieve performance
goals.

The maximum number of shares can be issued or
purchased under the 2016 Share Award Scheme and
the 2014 Share Award Scheme is 10% of the Shares
in issue from time to time (i.e. 386,799,167 Shares,
representing 10% of total issued Shares as at the date
of this report). The total number of Shares which is
available for being further issued under the 2016 Share
Award Scheme and the 2014 Share Award Scheme (i.e.,
353,478,928 Shares) represents 9.14% of total issued
Shares as at the date of this report.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (Continued)
2014 Share Award Scheme

2014 Share Award Scheme is administered by the
administration body and the trustee in accordance with
the rules of the 2014 Share Award Scheme and the
trust deed. Pursuant to 2014 Share Award Scheme,
subject to all relevant applicable terms, conditions
and provisions of the rules relating to the 2014 Share
Award Scheme, the administration body may at its
absolute discretion (a) select or designate any person
to be a selected participant; (b) determine the number
of restricted or unrestricted shares to be granted to
selected participants. Participants includes (i) Group A
participant, any individual being currently employed in
good faith by the Company or any subsidiary and who
is not a connected person (as defined or deemed to
be the case under the Listing Rules) of the Company;
and (ii) Group B participant, means any individual
being a director (including executive and non-executive
director), employee, officer, agent or consultant of the
Company or any subsidiary.

The maximum number of Shares which may be granted
to a selected participant at any one time or in aggregate
may not exceed 10% of the total Shares in issue as at
the date of adoption of 2014 Share Award Scheme (i.e.
30 October 2014) (the “2014 Adoption Date”). Since the
2014 Adoption Date and up to the date of this report, a
total of 9,330,239 Shares have been awarded under the
2014 Share Award Scheme, representing approximately
0.24% of the total Shares in issue as at the date of this
report.

During the Year, no Shares had been awarded under the
2014 Share Award Scheme and no awarded shares had
been vested, cancelled or lapsed. As at 31 December
2023, 26,667 Shares were held by the trustee under the
2014 Share Award Scheme.

2014 Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the earlier
of (i) the expiry of the period of 10 years from the 2014
Adoption Date, or (ii) such date of early termination as
determined by the Board. Details and other principal
terms of the 2014 Share Award Scheme are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 30 October
2014. Further details of the 2014 Share Award Scheme
are set out in Note 37 to the financial statements.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (Continued)
2016 Share Award Scheme

In accordance with the rules of the 2016 Share Award
Scheme, the Board may, from time to time at its
absolute discretion: (i) select any Group A Participant
to be a selected participant and grant share awards
to such selected participant which are to be satisfied
by the new Shares to be subscribed by the trustee
under the Company’s available general mandate on
the relevant grant date or under a specific mandate
approved or to be approved by the shareholders of the
Company (the “Pool A Share Awards”); or (ii) select
any Group B participant to be a selected participant
and grant share awards to such selected participants
which are to be satisfied by the existing Shares
received by the trustee from any shareholder of the
Company or purchased by the trustee (either on-market
or off-market) (the “Pool B Share Awards”). For the
purposes of the 2016 Share Award Scheme, a Group
A Participant can also be a Group B Participant if so
selected by the Board. If an individual is at the same
time a Group A Participant and a Group B Participant,
the Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant to
such individual Pool A Share Awards or Pool B Share
Awards or a combination of both. Among them, Group
A Participant means any individual who is an employee,
officer, agent or consultant of the Company or any
subsidiary who is not a connected person (as defined or
deemed to be the case under the Listing Rules) of the
Company; and if the administration body so determines
in its absolute discretion, any director (including
executive and non-executive director) of the Company
or any subsidiary; and (ii) Group B Participant means
any individual being a director (including executive and
non-executive director), employee, officer, agent or
consultant of the Company or any subsidiary.

TMF Trust (HK) Limited (“TMF Trustee”) and Bank
of Communications Trustee Limited (“BoCom
Trustee”) have been appointed as the trustees for the
administration of the 2016 Share Award Scheme. TMF
Trustee shall hold the Shares for the benefit of the
selected participants who are not connected persons
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company.
BoCom Trustee shall hold the Shares for the benefit of
the selected participants who are connected persons of
the Company. BoCom Trustee and/or TMF Trustee shall
not be entitled to exercise any voting rights in respect
of any Shares held under the trusts.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (Continued)
2016 Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Since the date of adoption of 2016 Share Award
Scheme (i.e. 12 December 2016) (the “2016 Adoption
Date”) and up to the date of this report, 9,330,239
Shares have been awarded pursuant to the 2014 Share
Award Scheme while 43,040,000 Shares have been
awarded pursuant to the 2016 Share Award Scheme, in
aggregate representing about 1.35% of the total Shares
in issue as at the date of this report.

During the Year, no Shares had been awarded under the
2016 Share Award Scheme. As at 31 December 2023,
15,395,000 Shares were held by TMF Trustee under the
2016 Share Award Scheme.

The 2016 Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the
earlier of (i) the expiry of the period of ten (10) years
from the 2016 Adoption Date; or (ii) such date of early
termination as determined by the Board. Details and
other principal terms of the 2016 Share Award Scheme
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated
12 December 2016, 11 January 2017 and 24 January
2017. Further details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme
are set out in Note 37 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report are:

Chairman
Mr. Yu Feng (Non-executive Director)
Executive Directors
Mr. Fang Lin (appointed as executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company on 10 July 2023)
Mr. Huang Xin (ceased to act as Interim
Chief Executive Officer on 10 July 2023)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed (resigned on 30 June 2023)

Mr. Michael James O’Connor
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Qi Daqging

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard
Mr. Xiao Feng
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with article 103(A) of the Company’s
articles of association, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation, provided that every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who
have been longest in office since their last election but
as between persons who became Directors on the same
day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree
between themselves) be determined by lot. The retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors a confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the Year and the Company considers
that they are independent.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no change in the information of the Directors
that is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the publication of
the Company’s 2023 interim report and up to the date
of this report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of directors who have served on the boards
of the subsidiaries of the Company during the Year
and up to the date of this report included: Yu Feng,
Huang Xin, Hai Olivia Ou, Qi Daqging, Yip Ka Lin Victor,
Chan Man Ko, Ng Yu Lam Kenneth, Liu Shu-Yen, Xu
Jinghui, Wong Gah Jih, Yu Tin Yau Elvin, Tse Chi Hung,
Liu Zhiguang, Leung Pui Hong, Ku Sanqi, Gao Ariana
Jiasui, Zhang Ting, Jiao Qi, Wang Jing', Li Wenjia',
Daniel Thomas Rewalt' ~ Lorna Carroll', Brian Eden?,
Neil Gray?, Adnan Omar Ahmed?, Lee Siu Chuen?, Zhou
Haigen?, He Shigiang?, and Liu Shaojie?.

Notes:

1. Companies in which they serve as directors are incorporated
in places other than Hong Kong

2. No longer directors of the subsidiaries as at the date of this
report
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company which requires the Company to give a period
of notice of more than one year, or to pay compensation
or make other payments equivalent to more than one
year’s emolument.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short
positions of each director of the Company and
chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code under the Listing Rules, or known to the
Company, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the
Company and the underlying Shares:

Name of Director

EEpA B EENE

Capacity/Nature of interests

Report of the Directors
EEERE

EECRBEN

BMEBEEZRAQATEREAQNARRTE
i EZL%%’ﬁiﬁﬁ£ﬂﬁ — F B
EZBEMAHMARZBBEELK

EEREFRTHRAERERDAREM
HBEB 2R - HERORES T
BEZ2RBR /IKR

RZBZZF+ZA=+—-B ' ARAKE
ERFETHRAEBRARAREEABBE
B (EERFSRBMEERHEBEXVE) 2B 40
HERORESTHEBCCHENAQTER
BESRAERHEGFEZELMA -
FERBEFSFRBEMRHEXVER R L TR A
THEEFAMERDA KRB HAD
ACHEBZEERXEWMT

REQAAEBERREBROZHFAE :

Number of Shares held
R & B
Percentage of
Long position  shareholding

HR BFREDL

Mr. Yu Feng (note1)
Corporate interest

Held by controlled corporation/

1,827,641,279 47.25%

Bt -

REERE (MiFET) MZREERSE LEER
Note:
1. Mr. Yu Feng, the Chairman of the Group and a non-executive

Director, is deemed to be interested in 1,827,641,279
Shares under the SFO through Jade Passion, a company
of which 73.21% of its issued share capital is owned by
Key Imagination Limited (“Key Imagination”). 91% of the
issued share capital of Key Imagination is owned by Yunfeng
Financial Holdings Limited (“YFHL”), 70.15% of the issued
share capital of which in turn, is owned by Mr. Yu Feng.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying
shares of associated corporations:

BEENFTETHAERARQATHEM
HEEZE2R#G HERORESFH
BEZRER BKE (&)

REBEEROREEARGZEFR

Number of Shares held in
Associated Corporation

REBEEFREROEE
Percentage
Name of Associated Capacity/Nature of Long of
Corporation Name of Director Interests position shareholding
HEEEEE EEpnE B EME ¥r BRESK
Yunfeng Financial Mr. Yu Feng Beneficial owner/ 94 70.15%
Holdings Limited Beneficial interest
ERTHERBRAT E#XLE BRERAS
BEmfEsd
Key Imagination Limited Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1) Held by controlled 9,100 91%
corporation/
Corporate interest
Key Imagination Limited &8 5% (A1) MZEHEERE
B R
Mr. Huang Xin (Note 2) Held by controlled 900 9%
corporation/
Corporate interest
BELE (WiF2) HMEZEFEEFE
EE R
Jade Passion Limited Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1) Held by controlled 7,321 73.21%

corporation/
Corporate interest

Jade Passion Limited EE T (K1) HSEFEEEE
EE RS
Notes: Kzt -
1. Mr. Yu Feng, the Chairman of the Group and a non-executive 1. AEEFFERAQRIAFFTESTER TE

Director, was interested in 9,100 shares, representing 91%
of equity interest in Key Imagination through YFHL, the
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yu Feng was
also interested in 7,321 shares, representing 73.21% of
equity interest in Jade Passion through Key Imagination.
Both Key Imagination and Jade Passion are substantial
shareholders of the Company.

2. Mr. Huang Xin, an executive Director, is the sole shareholder

of Perfect Merit Limited which owns 900 shares, representing
9% of the equity interest in Key Imagination.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023,
none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company and/or any of their respective associates had
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and/or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the Model
Code adopted by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, at no
time during the Year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries or associated corporations, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors (including their
respective spouses and children under the age of 18)
to acquire benefits by the means of the acquisition of
the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

FTERRRAEMALIRRG 2ER

R-ZBE-=F+=ZA=+—R0 > AQFEH
ETHNETERREREMALEZ  BRER
A RPEKHEDBKREE2ETMAERD

As at 31 December 2023, the Company was notified
of the following substantial Shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests, being 5% or more of issued Shares

and recorded in the register kept under Section 336 of

REBRITRO PRI U L2 -

the SFO.

Number of Shares held

FrsRBBE

Long Percentage of

Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interests position  shareholding

TERRES 5%/ REnitE e ERESHL

Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation/ 1,827,641,279 47.25%

Corporate interest
R LA (H5F1) MEZHEEEE LEER
Yunfeng Financial Holdings Limited Held by controlled corporation/ 1,827,641,279 47.25%
(Note 1) Corporate interest
ERERMERERAR (1) HMERHEEEE LEER
Key Imagination Limited (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation/ 1,827,641,279 47.25%
Corporate interest

Key Imagination Limited (##5#1) MERHEEEE LEER

Jade Passion Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner/Beneficial interest 1,827,641,279 47.25%

Jade Passion Limited (#/%1) ERBEAA/BRER

Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Held by controlled corporation/ 960,000,000 24.82%

Company (Note 2) Corporate interest

Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance HEEFLEEREE LEER

Company (#7#£2)

MassMutual International LLC (Note 2) Beneficial owner/Beneficial interest 960,000,000 24.82%

MassMutual International LLC (#73£2) BEREBA/BRER

Notes: Kiat -

1. Mr. Yu Feng, the Chairman of the Group and a non-executive 1. REBFFEEARADNIEHITESEER LLE
Director, is deemed to be interested in 1,827,641,279 BIEBSLEE KGR BFEBJade Passion
Shares under the SFO through Jade Passion, a company E1,827,641,27T9R KR = # %  Key
of which 73.21% of its issued share capital is owned by Imagination# 5Jade Passiont ¥ 1T R4~ =
Key Imagination. 91% of the issued share capital of Key 73.21% » E# L RER#EBKey Imagination®
Imagination is owned by YFHL, 70.15% of the issued share BITHRARZ291%  MEHRLEHEEEZESRE
capital of which in turn, is owned by Mr. Yu Feng. BREEITIRA 270.15% o

2. Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company was 2. Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance

interested in 960,000,000 Shares through its 100%
controlled corporation “MassMutual International LLC”.

Companyi® B £100% % g 2 T MassMutual
International LLC#E960,000,0008% A% 13 °

MEXFEEEN RZZBE-_=F+=A8
=+—B HMEHMATRAEALTZRHH
HEROTEEBERBISFRBE KA E2
RESHEAQAWE  ARBEEFHFRBEK
Bl EI3IR BN AR T EE2E TR
ERHAKA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023,
there were no other persons who had an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under divisions 2 and 3 of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
(i) to which the Company, its holding company or any of
their subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or
his connected entities was materially interested, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the
Year or at the end of the Year, nor (ii) between the
Company, or one of its subsidiaries, and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business that competed or was
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group, other than being a director of
the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following persons, among others, are connected
person of the Company:

- MMI, which holds approximately 24.82% of the
issued Shares, and hence a substantial shareholder
and a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.07 (1) of the Listing Rules;

- MMLIC, the sole shareholder of MMI, and hence
an associate of MMI and a connected person of
the Company under Rule 14A.13 (1) of the Listing
Rules; and

- Barings LLC, a limited liability company organized
in the State of Delaware, the U.S.A. and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of MMLIC, and hence
an associate of MMI and a connected person of
the Company under Rule 14A.13 (1) of the Listing
Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Group conducted the following transactions which
constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company that are not exempt from annual reporting
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
in respect of which a circular dated 21 December
2017 (the “2017 Circular”), an announcement dated
15 November 2019 (the “2019 Announcement”), an
announcement dated 30 December 2020 (the “2020
Announcement”) and an announcement dated 12
November 2021 (the “2021 Announcement”) were
issued.

1. Barings Investment Advisory Agreement and
Renewal of Barings Investment Advisory

Agreement

Parties: Barings LLC and YF Life
HESPIE Barings LLCK B @R &
Date: 15 December 2017
B =F-t#t+=At+EA

Principal terms:

BEXZREEARERS (M)

RAFERBERAKREAY  AEHETT
IRG  BREXRZBRAKEREXZ LEE
REETLTRAUZVAENFERERE -
YERZEREZR-ZE-—tF+=-A=+—
BBEEBR ((ZE-—tFBR])  R=F
—NF+-—A+EABEHRAE(=ZF-NF
RE) RZZBZFFF_RF=THEEL
F(=ZZEZFFQAFNUARR=-ZF=—

T—A+ZRBEAES(=F=—F2&] -

1. BEREFAGBERBETFERERN
1 &

Pursuant to the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement, YF Life agreed to

engage Barings LLC as its investment adviser to acquire, manage, service
and dispose of investments for YF Life. The assets and the type and amount
of assets to be managed by Barings LLC pursuant to the Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement will be determined by the investment committee of YF Life.

The initial term of the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement commenced
from the 16 November 2018 and has expired on 15 November 2021. The
Barings Investment Advisory Agreement will be automatically renewed for
successive one-year terms. Either party may terminate the Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement upon 30 days’ written notice to the other party. Following
the initial term of the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement, and subject
to the satisfactory performance of Barings LLC, the relevant expertise and
the pricing terms, Barings LLC shall continue to be the preferred manager
of YF Life’s fixed income investment portfolio. The Company shall re-assess
the investment needs of YF Life closer to the expiry of the initial term of the
Barings Investment Advisory Agreement and if the Company considers the
continued provision of such services by Barings LLC to YF Life to be beneficial
to YF Life, the term of the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement may be
extended. The Company will re-comply with the applicable requirements under
the Listing Rules as and when the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement
is renewed after the expiry of the initial term. Subsequent to the initial term,
the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement was automatically renewed for
an additional year, subject to Automatic Renewal thereafter (“Renewal of
Barings Investment Advisory Agreement”). For details please refer to the 2021

Announcement.

The Barings Investment Advisory Agreement was negotiated by the Company,
YF Life and MMI on an arm’s length basis and entered into on normal

commercial terms.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND BEXZRFEBERS (&)
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
1. Barings Investment Advisory Agreement and 1. TZEREZHGBREITTEZRERSH

Renewal of Barings Investment Advisory W& (&)

Agreement (Continued)

FEBRR *E?F%Z?xﬁ ZAE BERMEEZZEBarings LLCAERERER  BBER

bl s - B HE&'%?’FDJ‘E%TEE c RIBFBEREFZ AW HEMABarings LLCEENE
Eﬁﬁi%ﬁéﬂ’ﬂiﬁﬂfmﬁ%ﬁ EBEHBBERBRREZEERE -

GEREZABENADD EHHE%E Z-N\E+—-A+"BRE-ZZB=—F+—
JEH'_’EEIE/% FERER ﬂTﬁJ’J%EEEﬁJnaH@ﬁ* FofE—F @ HE M
ﬁSOfiﬁLiﬂé JJ:?HZ%\,% EAE REZREZANMBULSERE R
E—rBarmgs LLC;%TJE - EEEMAERREBER EIJBarmgs LLCrE# &
%%Lﬁ IEHﬂlﬁﬂx‘éﬁﬂA APABREBELFERERAH: ?ﬂ*ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ
H-:E%ﬁ&ﬁ%tﬁ@Z?x émg B4R F ”%Barlngs LLCEBBRRIFE
REEERESSHERRREN  BEREFZAHEEHIER -EHERE
‘*R*’lﬂﬁ%%%ﬂ*iﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ S NN TﬂﬁiéﬁﬁL—rtmfﬁﬂulﬁTE’JﬁﬁﬁﬁE °
%ﬂ*iﬁﬁﬁﬁé“ ERERAGE Eﬁ@]ﬁﬁ%nsﬁ FHZUBEBER (&R
FEREZAMZE] - FBFEZHAERQAT=—F g

BEREBABBDEARRT - BERBREMMIZ A FEEEBILIZE BB XK

EhiT 3
FREJL

Pricing terms: YF Life will pay to Barings LLC fees calculated at rates based on asset type.
The fee rates range from 0.25 basis points to 100 basis points. Such fee rates
were determined based on arm’s length negotiations taking into account (i) the
type of assets to be managed by Barings LLC and (ii) preferred partner status
granted by the Company to MMI under the Strategic Cooperation Agreement.

The Company has assessed the business needs of YF Life for the services
under the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement. The Company considered (i)
the historical amounts of fees paid by YF Life to Barings LLC; (ii) the historical
fee rates charged by Barings LLC; and (iii) the fee rates for comparable services
offered by two other competent independent third party service providers
which the Company considered to be fair and representative given that such
independent third party service providers offer comparable investment advisory
services to clients in Hong Kong. The Company considers that the fee rates
offered by Barings LLC are in line with the market rates offered by other
competent independent third party providers for comparable services as a
whole.

EEMKRK EERKEEOBarings LLCXNEREERRRERTENER - EXNF0.25(@
HEZ100@E T - EEAEXRNZEE() Barings LLCEEMNEEER R ()AD TR
BERSEHEOMMBTFTHNELESERH U ELATEREE -

AABEHEBEREZANBE T REHEBRB2EBLETE - Z!—"D\T%J%E'J(l)
BBRMmOBarings LLCXfF2EL B A €% ; (i) Barings LLCEIK 2 B &£ &R

Ri)EMMRBEELE=FHERIRRM Z—Iﬁttixﬂﬁi%%iz(ﬁﬂﬁ(‘uiﬁl%—
FREHCENEEEAEFRETHEREZARYE XA ARALBBLAFR
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND

BEXZREEARERS (M)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

1.

Barings Investment Advisory Agreement and 1.
Renewal of Barings Investment Advisory

BEREBABBRAIBEREHEN
1ih & (#)

Agreement (Continued)

Reasons for the
transaction:

RZEH :

Annual caps:

FELR:

In connection with underwriting insurance policies, YF Life invests policy
premium, to generate sufficient return for satisfying future insurance claims
and dividend obligations. Barings LLC has assisted YF Life in executing its
long term investment asset allocation strategies since the year 2000. The
continuation of Barings LLC’s asset management services will not only avoid
the operational risks resulting from contracting a new asset manager but will
also avoid any material disruptions in the execution of YF Life’s long term asset
allocation strategies.

RERREMS  BERBREARE  UELERUENRRRBEFEUR 24
BEEMEH - Barings LLCE-—ZZZEFE—HHBEBEBRRBUTERPRESE
EBERE - Barings LLCEEEERBNSES T ETRREHERELETY
ERNEERRE  TUR2EBBERRRVBEERERKIATHENETMERPE -

The maximum aggregate annual amount of fees payable by YF Life to Barings
LLC for the years ending 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022, 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2024 shall not exceed the caps set out below:

BE-_ZE-_ -+ -BA=+—-H ZEB-Zf+ZBA=+-H -ZE2E-=F+4+=C
B=+—HBEZZ-_NE+ZA=1+BHLEE BERKE{IBarings LLCH &
EEEEBRABETESEBTI LR

Proposed Annual Cap for the Year Ending 31 December

(HKD’000)
BET-RA=+-HLEENRBZFELR
(F#7)
2021 2022 2023 2024
—EC--F —EC-CE —EC-Z=E —E-_NE
Total fees ERss 111,000 122,000 138,000 155,000

The aggregate amount paid by the Group in respect of,
the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement and the
Renewal of the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2023 is approximately
HK$78,951,000 (being 57% of the annual cap for 2023.)

All the independent non-executive Directors, having
reviewed the transactions under the Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement and the Renewal of the Barings
Investment Advisory Agreement (the “2023 CCTs”),
confirmed that such transactions had been entered into
(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(c) according to the respective agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholder as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The Company has engaged its external auditor to report
on the 2023 CCTs in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Based on the work performed, the
external auditor of the Company has confirmed in its
letter to the Board that nothing has come to its attention
which caused it to believe that:

(i) the 2023 CCTs have not been approved by the
Board;

(i) the 2023 CCTs were not entered into, in all
materials respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions;

(iii) the aggregate amount paid by the Group in respect
of the 2023 CCTs has exceeded the annual cap of
2023 as disclosed in the 2021 Announcement.

During the Year, the Group did not have any connected
transactions that were subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

A summary of all related parties transactions entered
into by the Group during the Year is contained in Note
40 to the financial statements. All the related parties
transactions described in the said note do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” under the Listing Rules, other
than transactions under the the Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement and the Renewal of the Barings
Investment Advisory Agreement as described in Note 40
which falls under the definition of “continuing connected
transaction” under the Listing Rules and was disclosed
previously by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules with respect to the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group during the Year.
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EEERE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND MAJOR
CUSTOMERS

During the Year, revenue derived from the Group’s 5
largest customers are less than 30% of total revenue
from sales of the Group.

The Group is a provider of insurance business and
financial services. In the opinion of the Board, it is
therefore of no value to disclose details of the Group’s
suppliers.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, none of the
Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the issued Shares, had an interest in the major
customers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, no charitable donations is made by the
Group (2022: nil).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practice of the Company is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual
report.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision as set out in the
articles of association of the Company that provides
for indemnity against liability incurred by directors and
executive officers of the Group is currently in force and
was in force throughout the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this report, there was sufficient public
float of the Company’s securities as required under the
Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been
audited by KPMG who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution
for reappointment of KPMG will be proposed for
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee
comprised three independent non-executive Directors.
The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chu Chung Yue,
Howard with Mr. Qi Daging and Mr. Xiao Feng being
the other members. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are in line with the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules.
The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

By order of the Board
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited

Huang Xin
Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  #HERERBS

ABOUT THIS REPORT
Our Business

Listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”), Yunfeng Financial Group
Limited principally engages in the provision of insurance
products through YF Life, as well as other financial
services covering brokerage, investment research,
corporate finance, asset and wealth management,
employee stock ownership plan administration services
and fintech business, etc.

Through YF Life, we are authorised by the Insurance
Authority to conduct long-term insurance business in
Hong Kong. Based in Hong Kong with branch offices in
Macao, we provide a wide range of insurance products,
including life insurance, medical insurance, annuities,
pensions, and mandatory provident fund schemes.
YF Life is also one of the first (and few) insurance
companies to introduce annuities in the region.

Reporting Reference

Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (the “Company”,
and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is
committed to incorporating sustainability factors into
its governance structure and investment and delivering
sustainable returns to its shareholders.

To communicate our efforts on environmental, social,
and governance (“ESG”) matters, this Environmental,
Social and Governance report (“ESG Report”) has been
prepared in accordance with the “comply or explain”
provisions of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”) set out in Appendix
C2 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
HKEX.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)
Reporting Reference (Continued)

In preparation of this ESG Report, the Group follows the
four ESG Guide reporting principles:

RE  #HERERRE

BRABE (4)
BEBE(F)
EREARIRE ?igﬁ’ﬁiﬁiﬁ%:ﬁ%é ’ 7:;%

BRET(RR HERERKRERE
YU IE E R A

Reporting principles  Materiality Quantitative Balance Consistency

ESRA BEH Bt T - ¥

Application in this Material ESG issues The Group accounts for This ESG Report aims The Group adopts

ESG Report were identified through and discloses ESG key to disclose data in a consistent methodology

materiality assessment performance indicators transparent manner, in compiling ESG data
and prioritised with (“KPIs™) quantitatively providing stakeholders reported in previous
inputs from the Group’s to evaluate the an unbiased overview years to allow a
stakeholders. The effectiveness of ESG of the Group' s overall meaningful comparison
process of materiality policies and strategies. ESG performances with of ESG performance

assessment and list of
our key stakeholders
can be found in

the “Stakeholder
Engagement and
Materiality Assessment”
section of this Report.

ARG #HERER CEBERMFMEEMNE AREAUECHAHEN
REPHEA RER HERERS BERE HERER
2 UREAKER R BRENER ([KPIs])
REENERETER DRMERS  HERE
B5l o ERMFENE BRRMRBHENN
BNIRN@ZEEER
BEHRERENFEH
BEEREBRMTMH]

#5
Scope and Boundary of the ESG Report

This ESG Report covers the ESG policies and
performance of the Group’s operation in all jurisdictions
from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (“reporting
period”). The boundary of the ESG Report covers our
dominant insurance business under YF Life and other
non-insurance financial services, including brokerage,
investment research, corporate finance, asset and
wealth management, employee stock ownership plan
administration services, and fintech business.

The scope of this ESG Report primarily covers all
offices’ of the Group in Hong Kong S.A.R. (“Hong
Kong”), Macao S.A.R. (“Macao”), and the Mainland of
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). The reported
ESG data covers the below offices of the Group:

° Thirteen offices and one warehouse in Hong Kong;
° One office in the PRC; and

° Two offices in Macao.

! Includes two offices that were closed in August and
October 2023 respectively.
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both achievements and over time. Any updates
areas of improvement. in the methods or KPIs
used are disclosed.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  #HERERBS

ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)
Contact

We welcome your comments and feedback regarding
the content of this ESG Report, the reporting approach,
and our ESG performance. Please share your views at:
ir@yff.com.

OUR APPROACH TO ESG
ESG Governance and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
ESG vision, objectives and strategies. It reviews the
Group’s performance on ESG-related issues and
evaluates the nature and extent of the risks that it is
willing to take whilst achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives and maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems (including
reviewing their effectiveness) to safeguard shareholders’
investments and the Group’s assets.

The risk management function of the Group consists of
a defined management structure. The board of directors
of the insurance business (“main subsidiary”) of the
Group (the “Board of Subsidiary”) has established
its own Audit Committee and Board Risk Committee,
which provide practical guidelines and support on risk
management and internal control, and regularly report to
the Board of Subsidiary together with the management
of the main subsidiary of the Group (“Management of
Subsidiary”). The main subsidiary’s Risk Management
Committee, established by the Management of
Subsidiary, is responsible for the continuous
identification, monitoring, and reporting of various
risks to the Board Risk Committee. Management of
Subsidiary authorises the key management to supervise
the internal audit functions and report to the Audit
Committee on identified control weaknesses. Overall,
the Board oversees the implementation and supervision
of the risk management and internal audit function of
the Group, which the Board of Subsidiary reports to the
management of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OUR APPROACH TO ESG (Continued)
ESG Governance and Risk Management (Continued)

The internal control system is supervised by the senior
management of the Group, which includes executive
directors, and heads of business functions from
operations, finance, risk management, information
technology, legal, and compliance teams. They are
responsible for the regular review of the overall risk
management and effectiveness of the internal control of
non-insurance businesses.

As we are primarily engaged in the financial and
insurance services sector, we are required to comply
with all related laws and regulations, including the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
Insurance Ordinance, etc. The overall governance effort
is led by the senior management of the Company,
including executive directors and heads of business
functions, and is implemented primarily through our
operations, finance, risk management, information
technology, legal, and compliance teams.

The Group adopts a top-down approach to manage
ESG issues. As the highest authority of the Group, the
Board is responsible for reviewing and managing the
Group’s strategic objectives, activities, and performance
related to ESG and risk management. To effectively
manage our ESG-related issues, coordinators from the
insurance and non-insurance businesses work closely
with different departments to identify and manage ESG-
related issues and collect quantitative and qualitative
information to prepare the ESG report. The coordinators
report directly to management and the Board to ensure
the Group’s ESG performance aligns with relevant goals
and targets. To safeguard shareholders’ investment and
the Group’s assets, the Board reviews the effectiveness
of its risk management and internal control systems
regularly to ensure that they can adapt to the
ever-changing business environment.

Regarding the details of corporate governance, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report section of the
Group’s Annual Report.
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RIE -HERERRSE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group recognises the importance of interacting
with stakeholders as a vital part of our business
development and strategy. To better understand their
expectations and concerns about our ESG approach,
we regularly engage our key stakeholders through
multiple communication channels, such as meetings,
performance reviews, exhibitions, etc. Their key
concerns are summarised below:

Summary of Stakeholders’ Communication Channels

Communication and feedback

M HEEEEREEEEMRTE

AEBSHINEANZHBEIRNER T -
EREBRRNEBNEEZE-R HEHFH
THRANSEAREHRMRE HEREARA
EMEBMETIH RMAEHBBREE &
BB ERESZEEBERERTIENSMN
HEBBE HIZBINHERANT :

NEEEEEBEBERE ML

Stakeholder groups channels Frequency Topics of discussion
NMEEREER BERRERE RE REES:]
Employees Meetings *  Monthly * Talent attraction,
Performance reviews o Annually development, and retention
Internal email correspondences o Event-driven basis
ET EE ¢ 8A o AFRE| - BRRGE
ERH ' 5F
NHEHER o BHEHEE
Shareholders Annual general meetings (“AGM”), ¢ Annually for AGM * Business development
extraordinary general meetings o Ad hoc for EGM ¢ Financial performance
(“EGM7) o  Event-driven basis for other e Corporate governance
Announcements, annual reports, channels * Major corporate actions and
interim reports, circulars transactions
& BRREFAE - RREBIAE ¢ SEBERRAFAE o XBER
DNEFH - PHRERBR o RRZERRFHAE o BRERE
o HitREZEHEDEE o DEEAR
¢ TERATBRRS
Regulators Correspondence mails/emails *  On need basis * Compliance with regulations
Phone calls o Event-driven basis * Business updates
Site visits
BB B/ EBER « BYEEME o BFER
L= o BHEHEE o XBEH
BRE
Clients Know-your-client (KYC) onboarding ¢  Meeting/phone calls, and ¢ Product and trading system
process emails on an event-driven quality and development
Face-to-face meetings with our basis o Fair and transparent dealing
business representatives ¢ Electronic trading platform practice
Phone calls and emails with our on an event-driven basis * Enterprise branding
client service representatives
2R 7RE L ERE o BEREBRECEZ/  « EGRRSFBERRER
BERRRCEHESS ERERER « XPERZRHEH
HEPREARZEZREBAR o RSABHEEZEFRS o« 2ERR
Fa
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)

Summary of stakeholders’ communication channels
(Continued)

Communication and feedback

RE  #HERERRE

M HEEE R EE E MG (@)

N EREEBBEBERE MM (A&

Stakeholder groups channels Frequency Topics of discussion
NERREEE BERRERE AR HEES:]
Business partners o On-site visits o Event-driven basis * Business development
o Meetings * Fair business practice and
o Conference calls market reputation
* Sound financial strength and
management
BEBH o BHEE o BHEHEE o XBRE .
o B3 ¢ ATEXBHRTHEE
o EFEE « REZHUBER
Media o Press releases o Event-driven basis ¢ Business development and
o Marketing campaigns strategies
o Exhibitions * Product and service
promotion
e o HER o BHRHEE s IERRRER
o EEEH ¢ EmRBRHBER
¢ RE
Communities o On-site visits o Event-driven basis * Policy and commitment to
o Meetings communities
HE . %ﬁﬁﬁ o BHEDEE o BB 2 BRRAH
. E%%i
Materiality Assessment BEMFM

We value stakeholders’ concerns and views on our
sustainable development and therefore we conducted
interviews and surveys to identify ESG-related priorities
for our operations. The results are reviewed regularly
in response to significant changes in our operating
environment and updates on ESG reporting standards,
to ensure the topics identified align with our business
operations. With no significant change to the Group’s
businesses and across the industry, we believe that
the current list of material issues is still valid for the
reporting period.

We continue to consider the overall social aspect to
be more material than environmental aspect, with the
most important issues being anti-corruption, customer
privacy, and the health and safety of our employees.
Moving forward, the Group will continue to engage
with our stakeholders regularly to identify ESG risks
and opportunities in relation to our business operations
and monitor any changes in the sustainability reporting
trends.
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RE  #HERERBS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE

The Group recognises employees as our most valuable
assets. We strive to establish a diverse, inclusive, safe
and equitable workplace where everyone can excel
and attain business goals. The Group is committed to
maintaining fairness and respect in the workplace. Our
human resources practices are governed by YF Life and
the Group’s Employee Handbook, which documents
guidelines and conditions of employment, promotion,
benefits and remuneration, training and development,
and business conduct in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations.

Employment
Talent recruitment and retention

To attract and retain talents, we provide our employees
with comprehensive welfare and compensation
packages, including share option and share award
schemes, retirement, and medical benefits, insurance
coverage, and leave entitlement commensurate to
market standards.

The Group believes our success is dependent on the
collective contribution of our employees. We recognise
the importance of sharing success, and we will reward
individuals based on their annual appraisals. We also
provide unparalleled career development opportunities,
such as an internal mobility programme, such that our
employees can leverage their full potential and have the
opportunity to engage with different teams and clients.

Diversity and equal opportunity

The Group values a diverse workforce as it enables us
to attract a wide variety of talents and achieve desirable
outcomes for our stakeholders. We strictly comply
with the regulations stated in our Equal Employment
Opportunity Policy to guarantee employees’ basic
rights and adhere to fair and impartial human resources
management practices in areas such as recruitment,
promotion, salary administration and training
opportunities. All employment decisions are made based
on bona fide occupational requirements. We strictly
prohibit any form of discrimination, harassment, bias, or
prejudice of employees and job candidates due to their
gender, age, disability, family status, race or marital
status and other statuses protected by local laws.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Employment (Continued)
Diversity and equal opportunity (Continued)

We encourage employees to report any suspected
non-compliance and violations to the Human Resources
Department through designated whistle-blowing
channels without fear of reprisal. Upon receipt of the
suspected case, a thorough investigation will be carried
out without disclosing the whistle-blower’s identity.
Shall any cases be confirmed as violations, we will take
appropriate disciplinary actions accordingly or even
terminate the employment of the persons involved.

To promote better leadership and corporate governance,
the Group adopted a Board Diversity Policy since
2013, which clearly demonstrates our commitment to
non-discrimination and equal opportunity. Our Board
Diversity Policy guides us to achieve board diversity by
considering numerous factors, including professional
qualifications and experience, cultural and educational
background, race and ethnicity, gender, age, and
length of service. For further details, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report section of the Group’s
Annual Report.

Labour practices

The Group shows zero tolerance towards all forms of
child, illegal and forced labour practices. We pledge to
strictly comply with all applicable laws and regulations
in the respective jurisdictions, including the Employment
of Children Regulations and other regulations under
the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong. All job
candidates are required to provide valid personal
identification documents during the recruitment process
for verification purposes.

During the reporting period, we were not aware of
any material non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
related to human rights.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE EREREIER#E)

(Continued)

Our Workforce EMHWET

As at 31 December 2023, we have 611 employees in R—_E-_=F+ZA=+—H &~"&EFEEHE
total. All of which are full time employees. 530 of which GI1BERET » 530 URERE ~40B LR
are located in Hong Kong, 40 in Macao and 41 in the BRI R4A1BIVAFE i o

PRC.

A breakdown by gender, geographical region, age group MR HE - FRANEEERZE >
and employment type is shown below: BHRAOT :

The overall turnover rate was 29.77% in 2023. A R-ZB_=F  BEIWRKLEE29.77% -
breakdown by gender, geographical region, and age TRIETEMER - HERFRAZ SR
group is provided in the table below: KAER
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Breakdown of turnover rate

Employee turnover

RE  #HERERRE

BRERZIER &)

ABRKLL R\

Turnover rate

in 2023 in 2023 (%)
—E=FREE —EB-=FAB
Turnover by category RERNEIHNWABRKER MEANE KL= (%)
By gender E7 Q|
Male B 67 23.51%
Female peg s 114 35.29%
By geographical region 7 ith 38 & i
Hong Kong BiE 166 31.50%
Macao BP9 0 0.00%
PRC hEI A it 15 36.14%
By age group BERE
Below 30 30 AT 47 42.15%
30-50 30 £ 505% 112 26.57%
Above 50 508% BA b 22 29.33%

Regulatory compliance

During the reporting period, the Group adhered to
the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and other
relevant regulations in applicable jurisdictions. The
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
that had a significant impact on the Group related to the
prevention of child or forced labour.

Employee Health and Safety

The health and safety of our employees are top
priorities of the Group, hence we are dedicated to
providing a safe and healthy work environment to
protect employees from occupational hazards. We
strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations,
including the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
and the Fire Safety (Commercial Premises) Ordinance
of Hong Kong. Although our employees are not typically
exposed to high-risk activities, we still regularly conduct
safety inspections to adhere to relevant regulations
and maintain a safe office environment. Fire drill is
conducted annually to raise safety awareness among
our employees and minimise safety risks in offices.

Furthermore, the Group has promoted employees’
wellbeing to foster a positive work environment, by
providing medical insurance coverage, which covers
items such as clinical visits, hospitalisation benefits,
dental benefits, specialist visits, and health check-ups.
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RE  #HERERBS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Employee health and safety (Continued)

During the reporting period, we adhered to relevant laws
and regulations and were not aware of any incidence of
material non-compliance related to health and safety.

Occupational Health and Safety Statistics in 2023
Work-related fatality from FY2021 to FY2023: 0
Work-related injuries: 0

Lost days due to work-related injuries: 0O
Development and Training

The Group continues to invest in the development of our
employees at every stage of their careers to promote
their long term professional and personal growth. We
implemented comprehensive training programmes for
all employees based on their job levels. New hires
were briefed on our high standard of core values and
their responsibilities, as well as legal compliance,
company product knowledge and sales techniques,
and were subsequently introduced to their mentors. For
management staff, we offered training on leadership
to enhance their skills in discharging managerial
responsibilities.

In 2023, the overall training for the Group is as follows:
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HNMBGaMOEm RMAEEASRM
AERY - BRAHBITEERSMNED -

TEI=F  AEEEBEIBRAOT ¢

Percentage of trained employees by RERIZ 7 WZBEFINET

category HEDLE
By gender b7l
Male B 86.2%
Female i 91.5%
By employment category BIEER
Management EEE 60.9%
Non-management FEEE 90.1%

Average training hours

F 19 55 31 R B

By gender R R
Male SH
Female zH

By employment category BRI R
Management EEE
Non-management FEEE
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Development and training (Continued)

To ensure that our agents comply with the regulatory
requirements, we offer regular legal compliance
online refresher training on various topics, including
anti-money laundering, direct marketing, and data
privacy. The compliance training is mandatory for agents
to complete. Failure to comply may result in termination
of their agency contract. We have also established an
Internal Compliance Guide for Sales to PRC Clients
outlining the compliant requirements for agents working
on insurance sales to mainland clients.

Apart from the above-mentioned training, we encourage
our employees at YF Life to join the Designation
Programmes offered by the Life Office Management
Association (LOMA), which offer programmes related
to customer services, reinsurance and compliance,
allowing our staff to learn about various facets of the
insurance industry and equip our staff with the vital skills
to stay abreast of the changing world. Furthermore,
through providing course fee reimbursement and
granting examination leaves, we motivate our employees
to participate in self-improvement courses which are
beneficial to their career development and can enhance
their professional knowledge and skillsets.

Our culture actively supports and embraces the ongoing
development of our employees by offering them a
series of internal and external training opportunities in
non-insurance business and compliance, encompassing
a large variety of topics, including but not limited
to team-building, FATCA? and CRS? updates, SFC*
seminars with regulatory updates, financial reporting
updates, anti-money laundering and counter financing
of terrorism, cybersecurity, and data breaches, and
refresher training on compliance matters.

To ensure that our employees stay informed of the latest
industry developments, we regularly conduct reviews
of our training materials and contents, to enhance the
Group’s business development and successive planning
needs.

2 Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act
8 Common Reporting Standard
4 Securities and Futures Commission
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OPERATION PRACTICES
Product Responsibility

We aim to attain service excellence by providing our
customers with high-quality insurance products and
other financial services. Both industries are highly
regulated by governing bodies and regulators such as
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission
(“SFC”), Hong Kong Insurance Authority, Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority, and
the Monetary Authority of Macao. We maintain strict
compliance with relevant laws and regulations including
sales practice, Know-your-client (“KYC”) checks,
credit control, compliance, risk disclosure, information
protection and data security, as well as trademarks
and intellectual property. All employees are required
to undergo compliance refresher training regularly to
ensure that they can provide quality services to our
customers.

During the reporting period, there was no incident of
material non-compliance against relevant laws and
regulations related to our products and services.

Providing quality insurance products and services

Our insurance products are designed to provide
financial security and assist customers to manage
unforeseen events and their lifelong planning. We strive
to deliver high quality products to our customers and
abide by all relevant laws and regulations. To keep
updated with the evolving market, we collaborate with
various institutions from time to time to conduct market
research and ensure our products suit our customers’
needs.

Since agents are our bridge to the customers, they
are all properly licensed in accordance with the rules
promulgated by the Hong Kong Insurance Authority and
the Monetary Authority of Macao and have satisfied
all legal and internal standards of YF Life before being
permitted to distribute YF Life insurance products.
Besides strictly following the Hong Kong Insurance
Authority’s Code of Conduct for Licensed Insurance
Agents and industry’s best practices, our agents are
also required to conduct business according to our
Agent Handbook. We regularly communicate and
educate our agents on our insurance products to
guarantee the delivery of quality services and allow
proper and accurate representations of product features
to customers.
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OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)

Providing quality insurance product and services
(Continued)

We also have an Internal Compliance Guide for Sales to
PRC customers in place, serving as a guidance for our
staff and agents to outline the “Dos and Don’ts” when
dealing with PRC customers. The policy covers daily
practices, from sales and mentoring to internal training
and qualification requirements. Agents must strictly
adhere to the internal qualification requirements with no
exceptions.

The monitoring of our service quality also extends to
the post-sales periods. We adhere to industry practices
issued by the Hong Kong Insurance Authority, such
as making audio-recorded calls to reaffirm clients’
understanding of the insurance policies purchased,
including both investment-linked and life insurance
products. In addition, we make use of third-party
Mystery Shopper Programmes on an irregular basis to
review and assess the selling practices of our agents.

Providing quality financial products and services

For our investment products, we have an investment
committee chaired by the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group, which oversees all investment decisions and
the new financial products/services launching process.
An internal approval process is adopted to govern the
new product launching process and reduce relevant
risks associated with new products. Launching new
products requires approvals from all relevant middle
and back-office functions to ensure that relevant market
practices and regulations are met.

We are dedicated to communicating updated and
complete information to our customers so that they
can make informed decisions in relation to their wealth
and investment opportunities. In order to ensure that
individuals can understand the terms and conditions to
make sound decisions based on accurate and reliable
information, the communication materials are displayed
in a clear, concise and transparent way. In addition,
clients could raise their concerns in our chatbot which
responds automatically to frequent queries, and if this
does not satisfy their needs, they will be directed to our
customer service representatives.
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OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Customer privacy and feedback
Information security and business continuity

The Group is committed to safeguarding clients’
confidentially. To properly manage information
security-related risks, we have in place the group-wide
Cybersecurity Policy and Information Security Policy
of YF Life outline our rationale for data collection,
processing and preservation following the principles of
confidentiality, integrity and availability.

We strictly comply with the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance in Hong Kong. Disciplinary action shall
be taken in the case of breaches of data protection
obligations. Access permissions are kept to the
minimum necessary to protect our clients’ data and
avoid information leakage from unauthorised or
accidental access, and erasure. In addition, the basic
principles on how to handle customer data are also laid
down in our Corporate Compliance Guide. We ensure
that personal data are collected in a lawful and fair
manner, and only for providing services to clients, when
necessary. Employees who fail to observe customer
confidentiality are subject to internal disciplinary action.
Internal disciplinary measures are instituted against
employees who have failed to observe customer
confidentiality.

In response to the growing cybersecurity threat, the
Group continues to strengthen our cybersecurity
protection. To protect information from enormous
threats and minimise business risks, the Group has
formulated comprehensive and systematic infrastructure
security management strategies for preparing and
responding to emergencies. We developed our
infrastructure with regular backup features at managed
data centres. In case of server breakdown, we can
switch to the back-up server within a short period of
time to ensure minimal disruption to our services. We
also provide employees with cybersecurity training and
updates on the latest cybersecurity risks to ensure that
they are well-equipped to identify and respond to cyber
threats.
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OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Customer privacy and feedback (Continued)
Customer Feedback

We aim to achieve service excellence by thoroughly
understanding the needs of customers and surpassing
their expectations. We provide various channels and
platforms, including customer service hotline and email,
to collect timely customer feedback and suggestions.
Our customer service representatives are trained to
handle customer complaints in a professional, pragmatic
and efficient way. In addition, we regularly seek inputs
from our front-line business units to identify room for
improvement and formulate corrective measures where
practicable.

Intellectual property protection

We respect intellectual property rights and endeavour
to protect the Group from reputational damages.
The Group follows the legitimate intellectual property
application procedures for our new trademark, labels,
and product designs in all operations. In addition, all
software used in our daily operations is with a legal
license.

During the reporting period, we were not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations
regarding product responsibility.

Anti-corruption

The Group has zero tolerance towards any forms of
bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering in our
operation. In order to meet and maintain the highest
standards of integrity, our Corporate Compliance
Guide provides guidelines for each employee on our
expectations of ethical behaviour on them. To prevent
and combat corruption, business practices and controls
are assessed at both the Group-level and business
unit level. For example, all new joiners are provided
with internal guidelines regarding their professional
obligations upon joining the Group.
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OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Anti-corruption (Continued)

The Group complies fully with applicable laws and
regulations related to anti-money laundering (“AML”)
and Counter-Financing of Terrorism (“CFT”) to prevent
the use of our products and services for money
laundering and terrorist financing purposes. For
our insurance business, a policy is established with
reference to the Hong Kong Insurance Authority’s
Guideline on Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing. In this policy, a clear and
comprehensive mechanism for reporting on money
laundering-related matters has been implemented. From
time to time, the policy is updated to keep pace with
the most recent legal requirements, and all employees
should follow. Any report made with sufficient
supporting evidence will be promptly investigated and
appropriate actions will be taken to handle the situation.

Our other financial services and entities regulated by the
SFC under the Company are governed by our AML &
KYC Policy and are based on the following fundamental
principles:

° Exercising due diligence when dealing with
customers, natural persons appointed to act on
the customers’ behalf, connected parties of the
customers and beneficial owners of the customers;

° Ensuring that all business activities adhere to the
Group’s ethical standards and avoid establishing
any business relations or undertaking transactions
that are connected to, or could potentially facilitate
money laundering or terrorism financing;

° Assisting and cooperating with relevant law
enforcement authorities to prevent money
laundering and terrorism financing; and

° Providing annual training to all relevant
employees to ensure that they are aware of their
responsibilities and the protocols they need to
adhere to.

The Group has established a Whistle-blowing Policy
and a Speak-up Policy for employees. Employees can
report any suspected non-compliance or misconduct
anonymously, allowing whistle-blowers to uphold the
Group’s ethical standards without concerns of being
retaliated.
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OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Anti-corruption (Continued)

We take initiatives to enhance employees’ awareness
and their understanding of business ethics. The
Group carried out training on corruption and bribery
prevention during the reporting period. For example,
employees of the Company participated in the annual
refresher training and updates on important compliance
guidelines. To enhance corporate management, we
standardise our expenditures through the Regulations
on Financial Expenditure Management by clearly
documenting the specific approval requirements for
types and amounts of expenditures based on their
nature.

During the reporting period, there was no reported
non-compliance related to corruption or money
laundering.

Supply chain and counterparties management

At YF Life, we are committed to upholding high standard
of quality and social responsibility when dealing with
suppliers. The Group works with a range of suppliers
to support our operations, including information
technology. By taking a prudent approach, we assess
and select our suppliers based on their capability,
pricing, certifications, availability of local support, and
the potential benefits of leveraging additional services.

For our other financial services, efficient counterparty
and transaction due diligence processes are essential
to build lasting partnerships with our valued business
partners. We promote an ownership system where
service/business users within the Company are
responsible for selecting their counterparties and
engaging in transactions. The users are responsible
for gathering sufficient information and using an
appropriate mechanism to address different business,
financial, legal, and compliance-related concerns
raised by relevant internal functions. Once all concerns
are resolved and cleared by the relevant internal
functions governed by the internal new business
approval process, the proposed transactions are
then recommended to senior management for final
approval and execution. Significant concerns and issues
identified will be escalated to senior management and
the Risk Oversight Committee for thorough review
and discussion to determine the appropriate course of
action to be taken.
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OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)

Supply chain and counterparties management
(Continued)

As part of the implementation of the Counterparty
Management Policy, our risk management, finance, legal
and compliance teams review the transaction terms
and related documents and determine the necessity
and level of additional due diligence required for
counterparties, taking into consideration counterparty
risk and the corresponding extent of on-boarding
procedures needed. We have laid down the activities
and types of counterparties that the Company does not
associate with, such as those where there is proof of
child or forced labour and certain transactions which
involve market misconduct, mis-selling, or those with
negative publicity. To maintain service quality, we
continue to monitor all existing counterparties’ market
reputation and business practices.

To engage the most suitable service providers, the
Group has developed a comprehensive set of tendering
and quotation procedures with tailored selection criteria
in areas such as product/service quality, internal control
and risk management of various operational risks,
including credit, reputational and concentration risks.

The Group has extended responsibilities and standards
to our suppliers in relation to environmental protection
and social compliance. We prioritise working with
environmentally and socially responsible suppliers,
in which fair and equal employment practices are
expected. Meanwhile, the Group has zero tolerance
towards unethical treatment, illegal labour practices,
and any form of discrimination. Regular performance
monitoring and evaluation are carried out to assess and
evaluate the performance of our suppliers and identify
risks that may impact the Group.

Project management and quality control teams are
established to maximise automation and segregation
of duties for the internally developed service provision
processes. These teams liaise with different areas
of operations, including the development of product
initiatives, financial infrastructure, and applications,
through the creation of a procedural manual and
conducting regular progress meetings. The teams
ensure quality services and products as per the
standard set by senior management.

During the reporting period, the Group engaged with 98
suppliers, 3% of which are based in the PRC, 85% of
which are based in Hong Kong, 9% of which are based
in Macao and 3% of which are based overseas.
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY
Environment
Use of resources

We carry out our operations with a profound recognition
and respect for nature as we believe that every decision
we make, and the choice enacted, can influence the
future of the planet. We are dedicated to minimising
environmental impacts from our operations, and
proactively address climate-related risks. To achieve
this, we prioritise the adoption of energy-saving
practices and technologies.

The network units consume the most energy among
the equipment used in the office environment of the
main subsidiary. The 24x7 cooling system with an
open-rack design helps to control the energy efficiency
in the office’s network room. In the rented data centers,
there is a 24x7 cooling technology system with airflow
optimisation and an open-rack design for reducing
energy consumption.

To embrace a green office culture, we adhere to the
principles of reduce, recycle and reuse to maintain
resource efficiency in our daily operations, further
minimising our already low impact on the planet. Green
practices adopted to enhance energy efficiency, reduce
water consumption and manage paper usage are as
follows:

° Switching off idle lighting, air conditioning
and electrical appliances to reduce energy
consumption;

° Encouraging double-sided printing and using
recycled paper for printing and copying;

° Encouraging the use of recycled envelopes for
internal courier service;

o Encouraging staff to prioritise the use of email and
electronic communications; and

° Setting up recycling bins in office areas.

YF Life has joined the Energy Efficiency of Lighting
Installations under the Buildings Energy Efficiency
Ordinance that requires professional engineers to
calculate the energy consumption and guide the E&M
contractors to follow the regulatory requirements. LED
lights are preferred to fluorescent lights to reduce
electricity consumption in new office renovations.
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued)
Environment (Continued)
Use of resources (Continued)

Transitioning to a paperless operation has been an
ongoing priority for the Group. This not only reduces
our reliance on traditional paperwork, but also enables
us to pursue opportunities for efficiency and flexibility.
YF Life has also been progressively digitalising its
business operations. FinTech mobile applications
including online applications, electronic policy issues,
online payment, e-Policy Services and claimants have
been further enhanced. In the coming years, it will
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continue enhancing those applications to enrich the HE o

functionalities and improve customer experiences, as

well as reduce our environmental impact while improving

efficiency in operations.

Details of electricity, gasoline, water and paper RMEBREBESNONE - 5H KK BEE
consumption from our operations are summarised in the HFEBERT &

table below:

Summary of resources consumption

BERHFER

Use of resources Unit 2022 2023

ERFER By = = —=E==

Total energy consumption® (kWh in ’000s) 2,546 2,405

RERHERES (AFEFEREE)

— Electricity kWh 2,546,489 2,348,549
= F R
— Gasoline litre 0° 5,805’

= AR

Water® m? 620° 635

ke RS S

Paper (A3) Sheets 77,841 37,6521

45 (A3) %

Paper (A4) Sheets 7,827,625 8,081,139

4 (A4) [

s Energy conversion factors are referenced from the United s RREREHSETRERE  EmNBNSE®
Kingdom Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs EZB (DEFRA) I =2 = — FHEIBREH -
(DEFRA) conversion factors 2021.

6 There is no gasoline consumption in 2022. 6 —ECCFWEERAE

7 Gasoline consumption in 2023 is due to new car purchases 7 CECCZEEANABERERHABRERRE
by YF Life during the reporting period. REHREAAELR o

8 Since the water consumption of some offices was 8 HRALIMAZENAKERAREYEESEETE
managed by the buildings’ property management, we o RAELESERNAKEHE - BbERE
cannot obtain the actual water consumption data. Hence HRAKEHRTZERAE > HHBEATANE
the reported water consumption excluded these offices, BRAE > NMEANREBNEBRBHQLEIUR
which include the Company’s Hong Kong office, nine YF —EARFINEBRERAE -
Life Hong Kong offices and one YF Life Macao office.

9 The water consumption in 2022 is restated to align with 9 BT ZE_FPNAKE  UEE-ZT=-=F
the scope in 2023. WEERIF—H o

10 Paper consumption reduction in 2023 is due to the 10 “E_=FHRERERD i EABEBRE
Paperless Campaign initiated by YF Life during the EREHRNES 7T ERLE

reporting period.
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued)
Emissions

Due to the nature of our business operations, we do
not produce significant direct environmental emissions
such as air emissions, discharges to water and land,
and the generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes. As a result, we do not consider such emissions
to be material. However, we are aware of the carbon
emissions mainly caused by our electricity consumption
and strive to minimise energy consumption in our
offices, servers, and data centres.

YF Life is also taking measures in the renovation work
of new offices so that air emissions can be greatly
reduced. For example, its contractor uses eco-friendly
materials such as Zero Formaldehyde Emission (EO
standard) composite boards and Ecological (ECO) glues
for all the wallpapers and carpets.

During the reporting period, there was no material
non-compliance regarding the reported environmental
emissions.

The environmental and natural resources

The Group has been committed to protecting the
environment by incorporating ESG considerations
into business. At YF Life, Barings LLC is appointed
to be the investment manager of the fixed-income
assets portfolio, who is a signatory of the United
Nation’s Principle of Responsible Investment and has
incorporated ESG factors into its rigorous investment
analysis process. Such integration of ESG factors into
the investment process provides better insights into
the long-term risks and opportunities and enhances the
stability of our portfolio.

We seek partnerships with top-tier fund managers for
our wealth management services, who have integrated
fundamental ESG considerations into their investment
decisions. We select mutual fund partners by laying
strong emphasis on new industries and avoiding
investment in industries with negative ESG impacts. As
part of our due diligence procedures, we also conduct
news screening on funds to gain a better understanding
of their ESG performance. Any adverse media identified,
including those related to ESG, may result in further
investigation or clarification with the fund managers,
depending on the nature of the issue.

The Group recognises the importance of integrating
ESG factors into the decision-making of our investment
strategies and financial services. While we have yet
formulated specific policies or guidelines, we are
actively considering the incorporation of ESG factors
across our investment strategies and the range of
financial services we offer.
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued)
Climate change

Climate change is undoubtedly one of the greatest
challenges faced by the world today. We therefore
must be capable of dealing with such risks to mitigate
impacts to our business.

On the one hand, physical climate risks brought by
extreme weather events can be far-reaching and affect
the quality of life of our communities, which will lead to
significant disruptions to our businesses and adversely
impact our economic output, assets and properties in
the long run. On the other hand, transition risks pose
a significant near-term threat to our operation. While
transitioning to a low-carbon economy, assets of
carbon-intensive companies may deteriorate, affecting
portfolio returns. Extreme weather also changes the
market needs for insurance products and services,
creating a strategic risk to overall business viability. In
response to the risks and challenges brought by climate
change, the Group introduced various initiatives to
manage our environmental footprint. For details, please
refer to the “Use of resources” section in this report.

Community Investment

We leverage our influence and resources to build
greater resilience and more sustainable livelihoods. The
Group actively collaborates with charitable organisations
that share our vision through engaging in meaningful
initiatives and investing to the fullest extent possible in
these organisations.

YF Life Jr. Space Camp Programme

YF Life Insurance International Ltd. has introduced
the pioneering “YF Life Jr. Space Camp Programme”
since 1999. This programme offers simulated astronaut
training to children from Hong Kong and Macao,
enabling them to fulfill their space-related aspirations.
To date, over 150 children have realised their space
dreams through this initiative. The programme
employs an all-rounded, innovative, and unique
training approach to ignite and cultivate children’s
curiosity in space exploration and advanced aerospace
technology. Furthermore, it fosters stronger parent-child
relationships through a series of collaborative activities
designed specifically for parents and children. The
programme’s slogan, “It is Possible!” encourages
children to overcome difficulties and pursue their
dreams with courage and perseverance.
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued)
Community Investment (Continued)
YF Life Jr. Space Camp Programme (Continued)

With the ease of COVID-19 control measures,
the YF Life Jr. Space Camp Programme made a
comeback during the reporting period, offering an
exciting opportunity for young participants. Following
a comprehensive selection process, a group of
exceptional candidates was chosen to attend an
intensive training camp and compete for a chance to
become YF Life Jr. Astronauts. The selected individuals
were then provided with the opportunity to embark on
the “9-Day U.S. Space-Exploration Journey” in July
2023, which included simulated astronaut training at the
U.S. Space Camp in Huntsville, Alabama, and a visit to
the Kennedy Space Centre in Florida.

Participation and sponsorships in social and
environmental events

During the reporting period, the Group continued
committing to corporate social responsibility by
engaging in various initiatives. YF Life sponsored the
Lai See Reuse and Recycle Programme, which aimed to
promote recycling and waste reduction practices within
the community. To further inspire individuals to act
towards a more sustainable future, we also supported
Earth Hour 2023 in March by switching off the rooftop
LED sign at The ONE in Tsim Sha Tsui.

We also actively participated in charitable events
organised by non-governmental organisations. Through
monetary donations to support relief efforts for the
earthquake in Turkey and active participation in events
such as Skip Lunch Day, Dress Casual Day and Love
Teeth Day 2023 supported by The Community Chest,
we seek to address pressing social issues and improve
the well-being of individuals and communities in need.

The Group also has a strong commitment to promoting
education as a key driver of societal progress. In
November 2023, the Group established the “YF Life
Scholarship in Actuarial Science and Risk Management”
at The University of Hong Kong, supporting and
encouraging students to pursue studies in and nurture
talents for the insurance industry.

Throughout the reporting period, the Group remains
dedicated to promoting environmental protection,
community well-being, and education. Building on
these efforts, we are determined to forge ahead and
continue inspiring positive change, fostering sustainable
practices, and contributing to the betterment of society.
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APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE

INDEX
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A1 Emissions
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General Disclosure

— R =

(@) Policies and
(b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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(b) BEBIFYHBRTABEAZENHEBEERRG -

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emission data

RN EEREEHERER

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
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- Due to our business
nature, no significant
amount of air emission
was generated.

HARBMNEBRMLE - KB
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e

- Greenhouse gas
emissions are not
identified as material
to the Group. We will
continue to observe any
regulatory changes to
review our disclosure in

the future.
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Aspects
gilE

Use of Resources

BIRE A

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including

energy, water, and other raw materials.
ﬁgﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁ(@ﬁﬁm KR E AR BB

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in "000s)

and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,

per facility).
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Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
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Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them
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sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them

HUSREGE AR E AT B RERE - LURFEI A
KNz B ERRBEZNELBFEARRNLE -

Total packaging material used for finished products

(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to
per unit produced.

S mrASEMBNES (UMEAE)
BEEEULE -

K (qniE )

sk . ERRBM(RE  -HERE
HEESD RS @)

B

Remarks

B

Section

B

Environment
BiE

Environment
Ri5

Environment
B

Environment
B

The Group is reviewing
its operations and
environmental
performance in
considering target
setting on energy and
water consumption.

AEBEMNHEEBEER
RIBERBUEZEE }T:ﬁb/ﬁ
RAKEBERE

Environment
B

Due to our business
nature, no significant
amount of packaging
material was used.

HAREMNERMLE - K
*ﬁ;ﬁﬁﬁik%ﬁ%ﬂ@@%@ﬁ

Environment
BiE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE
INDEX (Continued)

Aspects
gilE

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

BREERXRER

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural

resources.
BEREBTAHRRERAAREREREALENK
& o

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and
the action taken to manage them.

BLEBEZHHRERRAREFNEALERE KRN

EEARIENTE -

A4 Climate Change
RIRE

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the

issuer.
BN EHE R JESHBTAELEFENERR
REBEENBER -

A4 A Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which

may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to

manage them.
B R IREHRTAELEXENERRIZEEHA
EH KEHTH -

ERSRERERAT
ZET=FFHR

RIE-#HERER

HE

Mtk - BERXZAC(RE HERESR
wEE |>>%€I(5§)

Section Remarks

=41 sk

Environment
B

Environment
BiE

Environment
RIE

Environment
B

The Group’s businesses
are mainly conducted in
offices and hence there
is insignificant impact
on the environment and
natural resources.

REBMNERETEERLE
T HEEHREMBA
BRNEETK -
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RE  #HERERBS

APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE
INDEX (Continued)

Aspects
gilE

B Social
He

B1 Employment
EfE

General Disclosure

— IR E

(@) Policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
EEFMRAE - BEREA - THFEEH - B - F
EHE - Tt RERUREMSERENDN :

(@ BXE R
(b) BFYHBTABEAZENHEBEERRG -

B1.1  Total workforce by gender, employment type (for
example, full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region.

ZUR - BERER (2B RE)
oM EERE -

B1.2  Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.
TR ERASIREESDHESHALE -
116

CFRANREE

Meg : BEEXZA(RE -
#HREEEI) Rl (@)
Section Remarks
=] (o E
Employment
=
Employment
=

Employment

(=
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE
INDEX (Continued)

Aspects
gilE

Health and Safety
BREHEZZ

General Disclosure

—RIKE

(@) Policies; and
(o) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

BRRHZEZTIERERRERESRABEMLREN !

(@ BE: R

(b) BIFHBTABEAZENEBERRSZL -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred
in each of the past three years including the
reporting year.

BE=F(BEEREE)SFRT CRHABRILE -

Lost days due to work injury.

RAIGELIERE -

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

RPN RRE R 2 -
BERAE -

LAUR AR EEAT R

ERSRERERAT
=FFR

RE  #HERERRE

Mtk - BERXZAC(RE HERESR
wEE |>>%€I(5§)

Section Remarks

=41 sk

Employee health
and safety
EERENR

z2

Employee health
and safety
EBERREZE

Employee health
and safety

EBEREREZE
Employee health

and safety
BERERZE
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RIE -HERER

HE

APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE
INDEX (Continued)

B3

B3.1

B3.2

B4

B4.1

B4.2

118

Aspects
gilE

Development and Training

EEEb

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.

FERAEERITIEBENNEBRLRENEER - f#
AIEFNEE ©

The percentage of employees trained by gender

and employee category (e.g. senior management,

middle management).
BUBIRESER(NEREERE - PREEE)E D
MEIMEEF DL ©

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
BUBIREEERE D BEEETHEZIIN TG

o

Labour Standards

& T %A

General Disclosure

—RIKE

(@) Policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BEBLEETSEBIE TH

(@ BX R

(b) BFHBTABEAZENHEBEERRA -

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

i B ES BB RE T REHIET -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

W B RERBREERB BT AT R ER -

Mtk - BERXZAC(RE HERESR
wEE |>>%€I(5§)

Section Remarks

=41 sk

Development
and training

B R AR

Development
and training

B st

Development
and training

B R AR

Employment

E=

Employment

(=

Employment

&=
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APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE
INDEX (Continued)

B5

B5.1

B5.2

B5.3

B5.4

Aspects
gilE

Supply Chain Management
fit e g B3

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.
FHEBHEENRERTESRAMNBER

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BiES D WHEBHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

H AR AHERNIES - aEBITEBIEA YA
FERHE » UREBEHITRERGE

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

M EREE R MRS ERBNRRER LSRRG
Bl DIRAEBERITRERGE -

Description of practices used to promote

environmentally preferable products and services

when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

M EREMERKEES ARRERRRBHE
Bl URAEBRTRERGE -

EERTREBARLTF

—=—

—_—

=ZFFH

RIE-#HERER

HE

Mtk - BERXZAC(RE HERESR
wEE |>>%€I(5§)

Section Remarks

=41 sk

Supply chain and
counterparties
management
HEERTZHTF
=L

Supply chain and
counterparties
management
HEERRZHF
=g

Supply chain and
counterparties
management
HEERRXZHF
BE

Supply chain and
counterparties
management
HEERRXZHF
=i

Supply chain and
counterparties
management
HEERXZHF
=i
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RIE-HERER

HE

APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE
INDEX (Continued)

B6

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

120

Aspects
gilE

Product Responsibility
EmEE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

(@) Policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

BEREERIBRBNREREZE BE 8RR
FBEEURBR L EN

(@ BE R
(b) BIFHBTABERSEMBREEREN -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

CENCEXERAHPRZ = ERZEERMAR K
MBS -

Number of products and service-related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

BREBNEMNRBIIRFEE UREHETE -

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

B AEE R ARIE AR E AR IES -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

MlEERTBREREREWER

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored.

MMUHEEERRERLBBER
%jj_/f °

IR BT RE

Miex : ERXIMC(RE HERER
#HREEEI) Rl (@)
Section Remarks
= s
Product
responsibility
EmEE

- Not applicable to the

Group’s businesses.
HAEENEHTEA -

- The Group is currently
assessing the feasibility
of collecting and
disclosing such
information.

REERIE T RERIKE
ZEERNTITM -
Intellectual
property
protection
A ERRE

- Not applicable to the
Group’s businesses.

BAKENEBTER

Customer privacy
and feedback
BEFIBER
k&8
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APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE
INDEX (Continued)

Aspects
£l
B7 Anti-corruption
RES
General Disclosure
—RIKE
(a) Policies; and
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud, and money
laundering.
BEAMLLERER - B - BFFRIARBEN ¢
(a EX: K
(b) BIFHBTABEAZENAEBERRSRL
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERFRHBTASHESREIESELNESH
ARMHHE REFAER
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, how they are implemented
and monitored.
A fr g RERER - URMEEHTRERLE
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.
HmESRETRENREISTEI -
EERESHEBERAT
—E-FFR

RE  #HERERRE

Mtk - BERXZAC(RE HERESR
wEESlI) RSl (&)
Section Remarks
=41 fas

Anti-corruption
RES

Anti-corruption
R&E5

Anti-corruption
RES

Anti-corruption
RES
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RIE-HERER

HE

APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE
INDEX (Continued)

B8

B8.1

B8.2

122

Aspects
gilE

Community Investment

HERE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

ERUESHRERBTALENTHEZTENRE
REXKIHEZEHLERRHVEE

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

-9z | Jﬁi\%ﬂﬂl (W5 -
Xt - B8E) -

ER - 428 -

CIREEFE ST

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the
focus area.

AEIHRRFABAER (WESEREFRE) -

BEREXZ(RER

Rz
| # 51) &Rl (#)

nﬁ&%

Section Remarks

B L

Community
Investment
HERE

Community
Investment
HERE

Community
Investment
HERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages
135 to 384, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended and notes,
comprising material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBETRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities and
reinsurance contract assets

Refer to note 27 to the consolidated financial statements

and the accounting policies at note 2(h).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group has significant
insurance contract liabilities
amounted to HK$63,577 million
representing 86 per cent of
the Group’s total liabilities and
reinsurance contract assets
amounted to HK$6,518 million
representing 7 per cent of the
Group’s total assets.

The computation of insurance
contract liabilities and reinsurance
contract assets involves significant
judgement about uncertain
future outcomes, primarily the
ultimate total settlement value
of future policyholders’ benefits.
The estimation of these future
policyholders’ benefits in the
measurement of fulfilment cash
flows includes the determination of
economic assumptions, including
investment yields and associated
discount rates, and operating
assumptions including mortality,
morbidity, expenses and lapses.

We identified valuation of
insurance contract liabilities and
reinsurance contract assets as
a key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
and the significant degree of
management judgement involved.

124

How the matter was addressed in

our audit

Our audit procedures to assess
the valuation of insurance contract
liabilities and reinsurance contract
assets with the involvement of
our internal actuarial specialists
included the following:

* assessing the Group's
methodology for calculating the
insurance contract liabilities
and reinsurance contract
assets and the movements in
insurance contract liabilities
and reinsurance contract assets
during the year, including
consideration of whether the
movements are in line with the
assumptions adopted by the
Group, our understanding of
developments in the business
and expectation derived from
market experience;

o assessing the reasonableness
of the key assumptions
adopted in the calculation of
insurance contract liabilities
and reinsurance contract
assets based on the relevant
experience studies and
applicable market observable
data;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities and
reinsurance contract assets (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter

ERSRERERAT
ZEC=FFHR

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

o testing and evaluating the

design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key
controls over the insurance
contract liabilities and
reinsurance contract assets
valuation process, including the
accuracy and completeness
of policy data input into the
actuarial models and systems,
assessment and approval of
the methods and assumptions
adopted in the calculation of
insurance contract liabilities
and reinsurance contract assets
as well as appropriate access
and change management
controls over the actuarial
models and systems;

testing, on a sample basis,
the calculation of insurance
contract liabilities and
reinsurance contract assets for
selected product groups; and

assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to
the assumptions used in the
valuation of insurance contract
liabilities and reinsurance
contract assets are compliant
with the relevant accounting
standard requirements and
appropriately represent the
sensitivities of the liabilities and
assets to alternative scenarios
and inputs.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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B ZBETRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Valuation of investments measured at fair value

Refer to note 23 and 4(c)(i) to the consolidated financial

statements and the accounting policies at note 2(j).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2023, the fair
value of the Group’s investments
carried at fair value totalled
HK$41,341 million, of which
HK$7,555 million was classified as
Level 3 investments under the fair
value hierarchy.

The valuation of Level 3
investments within the investment
portfolio involves significant
judgement due to the lack of
readily available pricing sources
and the expert judgement involved
in determining the appropriate
valuation methodology and
assumptions to be used.

We identified the valuation of
investments measured at fair value
as a key audit matter because of
the degree of complexity involved
in valuing Level 3 investments and
the significant degree of judgement
exercised by management.
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How the matter was addressed in

our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
fair value of Level 3 investments
with the involvement of our internal
valuation specialists included the
following:

* assessing the design and
implementation of key controls
over the valuation of Level 3
investments;

o assessing the appropriateness
of the valuation methodologies;

o assessing the reasonableness
of a sample of the valuation
assumptions;

* evaluating the management’s
valuation assessment and
resulting conclusions to
determine the appropriateness
of the valuations recorded:;

o assessing the appropriateness
of the use of the net asset
value reports provided by
external fund administrators or
the quoted price provided by
external calculation agent when
these are the pricing source
of the Level 3 investments at
reporting date; and

* assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to
the Level 3 investments are
compliant with the relevant
accounting requirements and
appropriately present the
sensitivities in the valuations
based on alternative outcomes.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Refer to note 22(a) to the consolidated financial

statements and the accounting policies at note 2(d).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2023, the
Group has recognised goodwill
of HK$1,826 million for the
acquisition of YF Life Insurance
International Limited (“YF Life”).

There is a risk that the carrying
value of goodwill may not be
recoverable in full through the
future cash flows to be generated
from the relevant cash-generating
unit (“CGU”) to which the goodwill
has been allocated. To assess the
recoverable amount of goodwill,
management calculated the
appraisal value of YF Life as they
considered this is the appropriate
estimation of the recoverable
amount of YF Life.

We identified the impairment
assessment of goodwill as a
key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
and the significant degree
of management judgement
and estimation involved,
particularly in the determination
of the assumptions used in the
calculation of the appraisal value.

ERSRERERAT
ZEC=FFHR

How the matter was addressed in

our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
impairment assessment of goodwill
with the involvement of our internal
actuarial specialists included the
following:

* assessing management’s
identification of CGU and the
allocation of goodwill with
reference to our understanding
of the Group’s business and the
requirement of the prevailing
accounting standards;

* assessing the appropriateness
of the methodology used to
calculate the appraisal value;

e assessing the reasonableness
of the selected assumptions
with reference to recent
historical experience, expected
future experience and based
on our understanding of
developments in the business;
and

* assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to
the assessment of potential
impairment of goodwill are
compliant with the relevant
accounting standard
requirements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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B ZBETRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Initial application and transition to HKFRS 17

Refer to note 3(a) to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group has applied HKFRS
17 which replaced HKFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts from 1
January 2023.

The Group is required to
retrospectively apply the
recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure
requirements at the date of initial
application (i.e. 1 January 2023).

HKFRS 17 is a complex accounting
standard which requires significant
judgement and interpretations
in the implementation of the
transition requirements. This
includes the setting of actuarial
assumptions, selection of
valuation methodologies and
deployment of actuarial models in
the determination of fair value of
the insurance contract liabilities
and reinsurance contract assets
and the measurement of fulfilment
cash flows and contractual service
margin (“CSM”).

We identified the initial application
and transition to HKFRS 17 as
a key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
and the significant degree of
management judgement and
estimation involved.
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How the matter was addressed in

our audit

Our audit procedures to assess
the adjustments made on the
initial application and transition to
HKFRS 17 with the involvement of
our internal actuarial specialists
included the following:

o assessing the appropriateness
of the Group’s determination
of the transition approach,
including the determination of
whether the Full Retrospective
Approach was impracticable;

o assessing the appropriateness
of the Group’s methodology
and models used to calculate
the effects of applying HKFRS
17 to insurance contract
liabilities and reinsurance
contract assets including the
transition CSM;

o assessing the reasonableness
of the key assumptions
adopted in the calculation of
the effects of applying HKFRS
17 to insurance contract
liabilities and reinsurance
contract assets with reference
to recent historical experience,
applicable observable market
data and our understanding of
developments in the business;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Initial application and transition to HKFRS 17

(Continued)

The Key Audit Matter

ERSRERERAT
ZEC=FFHR

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

o testing, on a sample basis,
the calculation of insurance
contract liabilities and
reinsurance contract assets for
selected product groups; and

* assessing whether the
disclosures of the nature and
effect of changes in accounting
policies upon transition to
HKFRS 17 are compliant
with the relevant accounting
standard requirements.
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BB A RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Other matter

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken
as a whole. The reconciliation between HKFRSs and US
generally accepted accounting principles included in
note 44 is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion,
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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BB A RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

132

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence
and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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BB A RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lee Lok Man.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
meEWmEFEX

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BiZ —E_=4F+_-HA=+—HILFEZ
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 # 51 7 )

2023 2022
—ZE=-= —FE=-=
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
et FET FET
(restated)
(Fik)
Insurance revenue 43R Bez Ut A 6 2,625,385 2,446,566
Insurance service expenses RIEREE B 10 (2,054,008) (2,000,819)
Net expenses from reinsurance BREGEREENERFHA
contracts (26,257) (5,337)
Insurance service result RIE RIS & 545,120 440,410
Interest revenue calculated using HHRERANZETEDN
the effective interest method E=NN 7 2,803,589 2,348,294
Other investment revenue/(loss) HiREWRA  (F5E) 7 499,248 (2,311,435)
Net impairment loss on financial cCREEREREFE
assets 7 (123,011) (356,385)
Investment return K& B ] 3,179,826 (319,526)
Net finance expenses from REEEEEN
insurance contracts B & FHiE5 7 (2,293,667) (199,886)
Net finance income from BRESEEEMN
reinsurance contracts B FE UL A S8R 7 85,044 125,713
Movement in investment contract RECSRAESH
liabilities 7 (218,380) (192,649)
Movement in third party interests in ERSHELNE=H
consolidated funds EREENER 7 7,879 1,172
Net financial result B IS EE TR 760,702 (585,176)
Revenue from investment BREEERBE A
management services 8 51,411 67,091
Other income Hiug A 9 73,516 55,291
Other operating expenses H =5 [ 10 (392,557) (423,908)
Other finance costs H At 7t & B AN 11 (202,126) (162,484)
Share of loss of equity-accounted  FE{LIRRER ERXENHIRE
investees, net of tax EEmHE (FEFH) (10,810) (7,954)
Profit/(loss) before tax BB ATRR, (EBE) 825,256 (616,730)
Income tax expense Rzt 12(a) (112,349) (47,607)
Profit/(loss) for the year REEBRN(BA) 712,907 (664,337)

ERSRERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
melE xR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B Z —E _—=#+_F=+—HIFEZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& ¥ %l 7R )

2023 2022
—E=-= —E—-=
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt et FET FET
(restated)
(Ei)
Profit/(loss) for the year THI& 5 E&AER (FE) :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViNNETP: Eod 397,164 (642,735)
Non-controlling interests IR RS 315,743 (21,602)
712,907 (664,337)
Earnings/(loss) per share BATIEERREGER
attributable to equity BF,(FBR)
shareholder of the Company
Basic (HK$) HAR BT 15(a) 0.10 0.17)
Diluted (HK$) #E GBI 15(b) 0.10 (0.
The notes on pages 145 to 384 form part of these F145H ZEFEI4ENTALRZE T HEREN

financial statements. HREED °
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEWam Rk Hitt 2 E s R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &t

2-FC

ZE+ZAE+—AILEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 # 51 7 )

2023 2022
—ZE=-= —FE=-=
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
ioga FET FETT
(restated)
(Eit)
Profit/(loss) for the year after EEEHERAN(EE)
taxation 712,907 (664,337)
Other comprehensive income for ZXNEEH M2 HEWKFH
the year
Item that will not be reclassified HEIASEHVELABEN
subsequently to profit or loss: ER :
Equity investment at fair value UAREBEFEEHZET
through other comprehensive AH M2 E R &S 0 R ER
income-net movement in fair E-DRrREBEERBEEZHF
value reserve (non-recycling) B(AaEm) 11,157 (36,611)
Related income tax HEAFT B 12(b) (91) 91
Items that may be reclassified HETARENIEABEMN
subsequently to profit or loss: HAH :
Net movement in the fair AEEREHMEZEKRES
value reserve during the BRENAAEBEREZD
year recognised in other L]
comprehensive income 17 1,268,564 (6,166,927)
Net movement in hedging reserve  ZN4E E R 7 H i 2 UL %
during the year recognised in RN P EEE S FAE
other comprehensive income 35,431 =
Exchange differences arising on BREMEXBEEELEZE
translation of results of foreign HEER
operations (54,222) 55,969
Net finance (expenses)/income from RIS R ELNI T (EH)
insurance contracts Y ON- 1 7 (2,042,939) 5,954,541
Net finance income from BRESREENHBEHA
reinsurance contracts R ER 7 111,235 55,922
Net deferred tax impact recognised 7t = b 2 E Uiz FERIE
in other comprehensive income EFRIE S EHER 12(b) 102,904 (50,814)
Total comprehensive income for ZFEE2HEKRZHELE
the year 144,946 (852,166)
EHeREBARAT
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
e aE Rk Hitt 2 E W s R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B Z —E _—=#+_F=+—HIFEZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& ¥ %l 7R )

2023 2022
—s=-= —E—-=
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
ioga FET FET
(restated)
(Eit)
Total comprehensive income for ZAFEEEEEEWFHALEE :
the year attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the BATRERBRR
Company (2,434) (778,188)
Non-controlling interests e IR FE = 147,380 (73,978)
144,946 (852,166)
The notes on pages 145 to 384 form part of these F145H ZEEI4EMNTALRZRE T BEREN
financial statements. HARREB D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE B BEAARR &R

At 31 December 2023 R=F==#+=H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& ¥ %l 7R )

At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
NR-ZB-=F R
+=A T=ZA R=ZE=-=F
=+—H =t—H —HA—H
Note HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
iikd FET FET FET
(restated) (restated)
(Ful) (Fik)
Assets BE
Property and equipment ¥ ¥ K% 18 632,460 674,271 711,787
Statutory deposits EEF 19 4,193 5,142 4,579
Deferred tax asset EIERIBEE E 31(b) 70,910 42,245 45
Tax recoverable ] 3E [B] § 18 31(a) 45 3,262 579
Investments in associates REZ ATWNIRE 20 121,500 132,012 148,819
Gooduwill and intangible BERELEE
assets 22 1,923,737 1,909,213 1,910,204
Other contract asset HEHEEERE 28 123,249 109,530 93,566
Investments ®E 23 74,126,597 66,754,778 68,145,212
Reinsurance contract BRESEEE
assets 27 6,517,666 6,432,170 4,556,636
Other accounts receivable H{hEUW R K
and accrued income FEETUR A 24 113,160 119,799 79,531
Other receivables, deposits HMEWF « IRE K
and prepayments FE {3+ Fh 18 25 987,716 904,479 825,841
Bank balance — trust and $R1T8REE— 7T %
segregated accounts BYERP 26 295,166 509,499 779,732
Fixed bank deposits with  FEHIFR Z R
original maturity over =@EAMRIT
3 months EHFR 26 1,259,134 1,624,973 1,060,574
Cash and cash HERHREEEEE
equivalents 26 3,973,788 2,547,901 4,024,475
90,149,321 81,769,274 82,341,580
Liabilities =R
Other accounts payable HihEA R 29 385,563 609,464 844,088
Other payables and H it & {3 5RIE AN
accrued expense FESTRE X 30 891,614 1,020,501 620,970
Financial liabilities at fair LARBETER
value through profit or HBETABRZ
loss ol a=NE 32 518,364 353,870 514,238
Tax payable FEAS B8 31(a) 67,545 5,640 11,632
Insurance contract REEcEEE
liabilities 27 63,577,444 55,054,209 54,855,876
Investment contract mESEAE
liabilities 28 4,774,847 4,847,581 4,817,994
Lease liabilities HEAE 33 212,240 233,066 279,608
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEEE 31(b) 276,079 349,002 260,457
Bank borrowings SRITER 34 1,399,479 1,393,166 1,381,776
Shareholder’s loan BREER 35 1,641,077 1,641,077 1,641,077
73,744,252 65,507,576 65,227,716
NET ASSETS EEFE 16,405,069 16,261,698 17,113,864
ERSRERBRAR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ISR R

At 31 December 2023 R=—FE-_=#+=-H=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& # %7 )

At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022

—E=F RZ-=EBE—_—

+=A +T=ZhA R=E=Z
=t+—H =t+—H —H—8
Note HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
iikd FET FET FET
(restated) (restated)
(i) (Eit)
CAPITAL AND BEXRNFEE
RESERVES

Share capital fg 7 36 11,872,683 11,872,683 11,872,683
Reserves #E (869,362) (865,353) (87,165)
11,003,321 11,007,330 11,785,518
Non-controlling interests ~ FE#BR#E % 5,401,748 5,254,368 5,328,346
TOTAL EQUITY REBE 16,405,069 16,261,698 17,113,864

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 27 March 2024.

Huang Xin
HE
Director

EF

The notes on pages 145 to 384 form part of these

financial statements.
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Director
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2

)

7a

B 5

7

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (&

869'192'9} 898'752' 06e'200'  (71€'8102) 28L'% 0v4'0L0'% 19929 0.5°ce - (ez'ee) (290'286'2) 865') 618} (oz'e8) £89'2L8'11 (RE)BEZ (pajersal)
B-4=H=4+$-28°H 207 Joquisoaq | Je souejeg
- - - £L8 - - (ez8) - - - - - - - -
YUVENILTHE pue Aojness 0} uoendosddy
= = = (i2'0n) = = = = = 10 = = = = = [esodsip uo
NEEY Y (Dstly) sBuluses paureyal o} (Buljofasi-uou)
YUERVYIYHET 8MIaSal an[eA JIe} Wol} Jajsuel|
(6c8'281) (os679) (egp'set) = 2%61'59 0vP'0L0' = Hee = (06t'2) (ov'oszy) - S - - BHEZHEE Gy seel ay) Jof auooul shsuayaIdw0d jalo
(z6e'v99) (e09'12) (se2'2p) (se2'2v9) = S S = S S S = S S S 35y teaf 3y Joj ss0]
| (RE)
EERUZILTH (payeisal) gg0z Jequisosg 1
—L=H=+4-"&SE  pepuo eak auy Joj Ayinba uj sebuey)
vOREHLL  ore'aees Qigeth  (eTeee’l) - = 760'89 (102) = (v6'2€) 778'86'} 9eg't [ (oez'e8) £89°2/8'1H (RE) &%
ZH-H-%-Z&2V  (pajessal) ggog Aenuer | je aouejeg
(166'9.22) (es9'ges) (6e€ges's) (911'092°7) - - - - - (r6'26) 112798 - - - - 7 EES S Sjasse
EEQMWEME%%?W [eloueul} jo co_“m:m_mwtﬁ pejejel pue
(HFPEHESE) R ER L) SHNH o uoneaydde eniul uo joedw|
65806861 866'991'9 198'¢2L'eH 988'/26 - - v£0'89 (o) - - £10'9¢6 8eg'} S8 (oge'eg) £89'2/8°1} (B3 EeHE) (papodas Aisnomaid se)
BUZH-H-3T2&cy 2207 Menuer | je aduejeg
rg4 L4 rg4 rg4 rg4 L4 rg4 rg4 24 L4 rg4 L4 rgt rgt relt
000.$YH 000.$4H 000.$¥H 000.$%H 000.$¥H 000.$4H 000.$¥H 000.$%H 000.$%H 000.$4H 000.$%H 000.8%H 000.8%H 000.8%H 000.$%H
&5 BagEE B0 (B3EE)  HB4E YRHEYY  YEvE LELE LLA (B&kY)  (E&Lk) YRYEIE  HEEY Gz ]
/HEBY  Hye EES YEEEYY  HEEEVV a4 BHURE
0% L B2
el Sjselajul [B30}-0ng (sso| anasal anasal anasal anasal anasal (Bugokoss (Burpofaes) aMasal anasal JuaWwAed ewayas [eydeda
Buyjonuoa pole|nwndy)  Boueul 80UBUlY [exdes pue abueyoxg Buibpey -UoU) 8MJBS3I  BMJRSBI uoien|ensl peseq-aleys  pleme BET
-UoN /sbuiuses ouBisUiBY  AouBINSy| fionjers anjen Jre4 anfen Jie4 Jossy aleys Aq
paurelsy Play saleys
HEEHBRET Y

fuedwo) ay} Jo siapjoyaleys Ainba o} 8|qeINgY

IS
&«
B
T
i
&
<
£y

1
<
-—



EREGEH KR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &£

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (&
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &t

2-F-

SEfSASt—ALFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& # 5 7 )

2023 2022
—E=-= —E—-=
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
(restated)
(Eit)
Cash flows from operating RETHELENR S FE
activities
Profit/(loss) before tax BRELADEF (B5E) 825,256 (616,730)
Adjustments for: E
- Financial investments - EHMEERE (6,146,145) (5,074,632)
- Insurance and reinsurance - RERBRESE
contracts 6,431,302 4,317,113
- Investment contracts - KREER (30,885) 25,963
— Statutory deposits —EEF 949 (312)
- Other contract asset -HEREE (13,689) (15,817)
— Other accounts receivable — H b FE U & FE 13 BR =X
and payable (217,262) (274,891)
- Bank balances - trust and —RITERE —EERB XY
segregated accounts R 214,333 270,232
- Other receivables and payables — H At B R & BB TR IE (286,886) 165,842
- Deemed gain on partial - RAHEHE QTN
disposal of interests in RS
associate (9,845) (750)
- Loss on disposal of property —HEVMENRBENERE
and equipment 2,765 6,674
- Depreciation and amortisation —HrE AN 188,973 208,674
- Equity-settled share-based - URREEWURS X
payment transactions 25 (1,575) -
— Interest credited to —REFEANEFEREST
policyholders’ deposits F &2 179,054 144,713
— Share of loss of — IR RERERE N
equity-accounted investees, REBREE (BRFRH)
net of tax 10,810 7,954
- Finance costs —RE A 202,126 162,484
— Other non-cash operating —HMFBESLKLEE -
items, including investment BREREWENEET
income and the effect of KREBENTE
exchange rates on certain
operating items (137,167) (40,642)
Other operating items: Hih&&E1HE
Interest received —BRFE 146,335 37,322
Dividend received —-BWiRE 268,603 301,634
Interest paid -BFE (12,205) (10,737)
Income taxes paid - BHFER (45,993) (60,664)
Net cash from/(used in) operating K& EZEELE (FEH) W
activities ReFHE 1,568,854 (446,570)
ERSRERBRAR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B Z —E _—=#+_F=+—HIFEZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& #5175 )

2023 2022
—E-= —=E-=
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
ioga F#ET FETT
(restated)
(Eit)
Cash flows from investing RETHELENRERE
activities
Payment for purchase of property BB % BB ETR
and equipment (41,582) (86,522)
Proceeds from disposal of property H & %)% & 3% & Fr 15 Uk 25
and equipment 13 384
Payment for purchase of intangible BEZEFLEEN
assets (15,088) -
Fixed bank deposits placed with EEHRZR =18 WRIT
original maturity over 3 months E B 1FE R 365,975 (562,862)
Net cash from/(used in) investing REFZEEL (EH) WK
activities 2FE 309,318 (649,000)
Cash flows from financing RETBHELENEREERE
activities
Payment made for interest XNHHEEAB-FERD
component of lease liabilities (6,800) (7,250)
Payment made for capital TRHEEEE-EXHND
component of lease liabilities (128,472) (137,106)
Payment for redemption of R Bl [ /B 2 5] BV 12 & R F
preference shares by a subsidiary H S 5 (3,436) (87,917)
Policyholders’ account deposits HEESEMAEZRERES
related to investment contracts ABRFEfES 183,421 234,216
Policyholders’ account withdrawals EERESRMEBEZRERZFE
related to investment contracts ABRFIEEL (403,908) (334,628)
Interest paid EFFE (92,257) (49,412)
Net cash used in financing RETHELEEANES
activities HHE (451,452) (382,097)
Net increase/(decrease)incash BRERKRELZEEBEE M
and cash equivalents (R 2) B8 1,426,720 (1,477,667)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HBHHNBEESRES
1 January ZE®EE 2,547,901 4,024,475
Effect of foreign exchange rates ERGHNEE
changes (833) 1,093
Cash and cash equivalents at RT=ZBA=+—-HEWEER
31 December HE&ZE1EAH 26 3,973,788 2,547,901

E145H EFIAEMAR ARG S M BHREMN
MRER D ©

The notes on pages 145 to 384 form part of these
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong, the shares of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The registered
office of the Company is Rooms 1803-1806,
18th Floor, YF Life Centre, 38 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are long term
assurance business, the provision of securities
brokerage, consultancy and advisory services
and investment research, wealth management,
employee stock ownership plan administration and
principal investment. The principal activities and
other particulars of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in Note 21 to the financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), which is
the functional currency of the Company, and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

B ISR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

1 —RER

ERSREBERAT (AL IR
EREMRI2EBRARA ERHES
BHARGFAAERAT LM - ANAT 2
AMMEEVNEBEF S B8
BEERMED L 18%1803-1806F °

REE 2 TBEXBRHEARRBRIBER
REBSEL LERMEZARRER
R -PEEE BIFRAIEERE
BERE-AEEFEMBLAAZERR
BREMFBRRMBRRMT21 -

REUBHRUBIT2Y  BRSER
RAZNEER BREBEEAEN
BYEYURER Z THINE -

2 EARGFHBE
(a) EHBH

FMBHEREEBREBEIMLE
BEHNAEERNC(EBHBERE
) (hEBESHAEERNE
BICE B BHRELED) (BB
FTEERI) M2 ) ME B (D ARG
MRERHE AU BHBREAESFTS
(BBMEXSMERRAAES L
MR TERRAUDKERE -
AEBRNCERSTHERBESH
AT o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 # %) 7)

2

146

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial information.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2023 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries including
the consolidated structured entities (together
referred to as “the Group”) and the Group’s
interests in associates and joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis except that investments
in certain debt and equity securities and
derivative financial instruments are stated at
their fair value, and insurance and reinsurance
contracts are measured at fulfilment cash
flows, and if any, the contractual service
margin (“CSM”), as explained in the
accounting policies set out below or note
27(e).

The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

2

EXRGFBER (&)

(a)

(b)

BRBH(E)

BESMASEM T E TN
RETN(EBYBHREER) - &
LRERGEAEFEMNA AT ENNG
STHIEMAERR AT HERRA -
FREAEEBBENEE R HER
ELEHMTMEBTNERFRSIRE
RS HENEMSTBE
ZE CERAVBHRRARR B
BEER S RMEES

MBERRZEUEE

BE-_ZT_=F+-A=t+—HLt
FENGEMBERRAEARQATAM
EHMBLAR (KBIAER] > XA
RAEEMBEEHRHEATNEED
ERfER o

AT PR 2 & R BUR M EE
27(e)Fi R - BRNE TEBMER
BERTESHMIANRERER
REEIR  REBRANBRERSER
BITREREBTE  UREERE
B (WH) I EHEIMBEHRTER
Rzt BEERBEERALLE -

EEEFERATE(EBUBR
SEADWMBHRRSFHEHS
SAERENER UREE BB -
BWAMZHBBEBEBRZEN
FIE - A ARER o B LA ET A48
ERRERBUTILEBRNERRER
RERBRASSENSZHEME
ZEHHN HERBRTEEEH
BEMBEHOBREHNRENEER
BENREESAELABNE
o BRAERTTEERRINERT B
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B i R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEARESFTBE#E)
(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) MBEHmRZEREE (F)

statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in
Note 5.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions, cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

ERSRERERAT
=FFR

FEEMAHNEBERREETEE
Bl - MREFHAEANEITRAREE
H-H[ A EEsSEZHER
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(c) MEBLARKRFEZERERS
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SPmE - BAEEHBEBAERR
RN R B %S ERET - BIARE
EEZHZERE EFMAEERS
BAELRELIR EZR (FAEH
MHEMSREEN) BEEEF -

RIEXRNIRERZEFFEAE A
ERHRLEEREFRESUB®RERS
BOFFHE - SEA D BIE 28R
REMRERE  UREBRILR
SREENEMRSRGER S
REGEM BRI DBUIRE - £
B A E8 A 5 BT 5| BUR 2 H E R AV IR
A REARBRWHEMAR - BIEE
BARNRIEEBEBERNC HERE

HYER 7 o

147



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 # %) 7)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

148

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at their proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position depending on the nature of the
liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, no gain or loss is recognised.

2 EXREFEER#E)

(c)

MR RIFZERER (F)

FEREDREEYIFHADNAEE
FEEEENME O RELS  mMA
EEYREHRELESNIFE AR
MM AT EHAEEREELRE
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MRFE s PG S B A B AT P Bl B E F
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BEEED  BAQFERRRE
RS DRIIR  AEEERZ
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REZFAAZBAREE NG
BREREZHWERB 2B
R-FERESERAREZER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B i R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEAEHEEX@#E
(Continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (c) MEBARIKRFZRER (&)
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see Note 2(s)(ii)), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

The Group serves as the manager of funds.
The funds invest mainly in equities, debt
securities and monetary market instruments.
The Group’s percentage ownership in these
structured entities can fluctuate from day to
day according to the Group’s and third-party
participation in them. Where the Group is
deemed to control such funds, with control
determined based on an analysis of the
guidance in HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements, they are consolidated, with the
interests of parties other than the Group
being classified as liabilities because there
is a contractual obligation for the relevant
group entity as an issuer to repurchase or
redeem units or return of capital in such
funds for cash. These are presented as
“Third-party interests in consolidated funds”
within financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 # %) 7)

2

150

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see Note 2(s)

(if))-

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Joint venture (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

When an investment in a joint venture is held
by, or is held indirectly through, a group
entity that is a venture capital organisation
and similar entities, the Group may elect to
measure investments in those joint ventures at
fair value through profit or loss in accordance
with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess
of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment
(see Note 2(s)(ii)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for
the year are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds
its interest in the associate, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the
equity method.

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Insurance, reinsurance and investment
contracts - Classification

Contracts under which the Group accepts
significant insurance risk are classified as
insurance contracts. Contracts held by the
Group under which it transfers significant
insurance risk related to underlying insurance
contracts are classified as reinsurance
contracts. Insurance and reinsurance
contracts also expose the Group to financial
risk.

The Group does not accept insurance risk
from other insurers.

Insurance contracts may be issued and
reinsurance contracts may be initiated by the
Group, or they may be acquired in a business
combination or in a transfer of contracts that
do not form a business. All references in these
accounting policies to ‘insurance contracts’
and ‘reinsurance contracts’ include contracts
issued, initiated or acquired by the Group,
unless otherwise stated.

Some contracts entered into by the Group
have the legal form of insurance contracts
but do not transfer significant insurance risk.
These contracts are classified as financial
liabilities and are referred to as ‘investment
contracts’ (see note 2(i)).

Insurance contracts are classified as
direct participating contracts or contracts
without direct participation features. Direct
participating contracts are contracts for
which, at inception:

= the contractual terms specify that the
policyholder participates in a share of
a clearly identified pool of underlying
items;

= the Group expects to pay to the
policyholder an amount equal to a
substantial share of the fair value returns
on the underlying items; and
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Insurance, reinsurance and investment
contracts - Classification (Continued)

the Group expects a substantial
proportion of any change in the amounts
to be paid to the policyholder to vary
with the change in fair value of the
underlying items.

All other insurance contracts and all
reinsurance contracts are classified as
contracts without direct participation features.

Insurance and reinsurance contracts

(i)

Separating components from
insurance and reinsurance contracts

At inception, the Group separates the
following components from an insurance
or reinsurance contract and accounts
for them as if they were stand-alone
financial instruments.

- derivatives embedded in the
contract whose economic
characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the
host contract, and whose terms
would not meet the definition of an
insurance or reinsurance contract
as a stand-alone instrument; and

- distinct investment components:
i.e. investment components that
are not highly inter-related with
the insurance components and for
which contracts with equivalent
terms are sold, or could be sold,
separately in the same market or
the same jurisdiction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B i R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 8% )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EARSHEEM@E
(Continued)
(h) Insurance and reinsurance contracts (hy RBRAENBRHERAE (&)
(Continued)
(i) Separating components from () HREESEHNERESEH

insurance and reinsurance contracts
(Continued)

After separating any financial instrument
components, the Group separates any
promises to transfer to policyholders
distinct goods or services other than
insurance coverage and investment
services and accounts for them as
separate contracts with customers (i.e.
not as insurance contracts). A good or
service is distinct if the policyholder can
benefit from it either on its own or with
other resources that are readily available
to the policyholder. A good or service is
not distinct and is accounted for together
with the insurance component if the
cash flows and risks associated with the
good or service are highly inter-related
with the cash flows and risks associated
with the insurance component, and the
Group provides a significant service of
integrating the good or service with the
insurance component.

Aggregation and recognition of
insurance and reinsurance contracts

Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are aggregated
into groups for measurement purposes.
Groups of insurance contracts are
determined by identifying portfolios of
insurance contracts, each comprising
contracts subject to similar risks and
managed together, and dividing each
portfolio into semi-annual cohorts and
each semi-annual cohort into three
groups based on the profitability of
contracts:

- any contracts that are onerous on
initial recognition;

- any contracts that, on initial
recognition, have no significant
possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently; and
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts
(Continued)

(ii) Aggregation and recognition of

insurance and reinsurance contracts
(Continued)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

= any remaining contracts in the
semi-annual cohort.

An insurance contract issued by the
Group is recognised from the earliest of:

- the beginning of its coverage
period (i.e. the period during which
the Group provides services in
respect of any premiums within the
boundary of the contract);

- when the first payment from the
policyholder becomes due or,
if there is no contractual due
date, when it is received from the
policyholder; and

- when facts and circumstances
indicate that the contract is
onerous.

An insurance contract acquired in a
transfer of contracts or a business
combination is recognised on the date of
acquisition.

When the contract is recognised, it is
added to an existing group of contracts
or, if the contract does not qualify for
inclusion in an existing group, it forms
a new group to which future contracts
are added. Groups of contracts are
established on initial recognition and
their composition is not revised once all
contracts have been added to the group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Insurance and reinsurance contracts
(Continued)

(ii) Aggregation and recognition of
insurance and reinsurance contracts
(Continued)

Reinsurance contracts

Groups of reinsurance contracts are
established such that each group
comprises a single contract.

A group of reinsurance contracts is
recognised on the following date.

- Reinsurance contracts initiated
by the Group that provide
proportionate coverage: The date
on which any underlying insurance
contract is initially recognised. This
applies to the Group’s quota share
reinsurance contracts.

- Other reinsurance contracts initiated
by the Group: The beginning of the
coverage period of the group of
reinsurance contracts. However, if
the Group recognises an onerous
group of underlying insurance
contracts on an earlier date and
the related reinsurance contract
was entered into before that earlier
date, then the group of reinsurance
contracts is recognised on that
earlier date (see ‘Reinsurance
of onerous underlying insurance
contracts’ under (v)).

- Reinsurance contracts acquired: The
date of acquisition.
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